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NOTICETO THE MEMBERS

NOTICE is hereby given that 20t Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of GMR Airports Limited
will be held on Thursday, September 16, 2021 at 02:00 P.M. {IST) through Video Conferencing {"V(')/ other
Audio Visual Means {{OAVM}, on a shorter notice to transact the following business(s):

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt:

» the annual audited standaione Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021, together
with annexures thereto, and the reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon,

¢ theannual audited consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March
31, 2021, together with annexures thereto and Auditors report thereon,

2. To appomt a director in place of Mr. G.M. Rao (IMN: 00574243), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. G.BS. Raju (DIN: 00061686), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To appoint a director in place of Mr. {L Prabhakara Rao (DIN: 03482239), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

5 Toappoint M/s, KS Rao & Co. as Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fif, to pass, with or without modification{s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to RBI Guidelimes No. RBI/2021-22/25 dated April 27, 2021 and Sections
139, 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 made thereunder (including any statutory mod ification or
re-cnactment thereof for the time being in force), M/s. XS Rao & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration number [0031095]), be and are hereby appointed as Joint Statutory Audiiors alongwith
M/s. Walker Chandiok & L.L.P, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No, 001076N/ N500013) of
the Company, to hold the office of Joint Statutory Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of 29th
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company at such
reruneration plus applicable taxes, out of pocket expenses and reimbursement of cut of pocket
expenses related to Audit as may be decided by Board of Directors of the Company.




RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to
modify /change the tenure of the appointment of Joint Statutory Auditors, if required, to harmonise the

appointment of Joint Statutory Auditors with the requirement of CIC Directions/Regulations issued by
Reserve Bank of India.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

6. To appoint Mr. Subba Rao Amarthaluru (DIN: 00082313) as an Independent Director of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule [V and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or enactment thereof for
the time being in force), Mr. Subba Rao Amarthaluru (DIN: 00082313), whose appointment as an
Independent Director is recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board
of Directors of the Company, and who is eligible for appointment and has consented to act as an
Independent Director of the Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in
writing from a Member under section 160(1) of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of
Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company with
effect from September 19, 2021, to hold office for a term of 3 consecutive years or up to the conclusion of

32th Annual General Meeting, whichever is earlier, and his term shall not be subject to retirement by
rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to the above resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

For GMR Airports Limited
J‘{; |E;.T"‘ o \
r‘r \‘EL:"“I_'E::&'S\\ CC lc ’
[ Iq:f | \ i,
Place: New Delhi /3 Sushil Kumar Dideja
Date: August 27, 2021 \ON—22Y/ Company Secretary
=R

N M.No. A19265




NOTES:

1.

In view of the prevailing Covid-19 pandemic and to maintain the social distancing norms, the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its General Circular dated May 05, 2020 and January 13, 2021
read with General Circulars dated April 08, 2020 and April 13,2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA
Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM or Meeting”) through Video
Conferencing (“VC") facility or Other Audio Visual Means ("AVM"), during calendar year 2021,
without the physical presence of the Members at acommon venue. In compliance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“ Act”) and the aforesaid MCA Circulars, the 29 Annual General Meeting
(“AGM” of “the Meeting”) of GMR Airports Limited (“GAL" or “the Company”) is scheduled to be
held on Thursday, September 16, 2021, at 03:00 p.m. (IST) through VC / OAVM,

As per provisions of the Act and aforesaid MCA Circulars, the Company is not required to provide
the facility of e-voting. The MCA Circulars prescribe that at least half of the total numbers, who
represent not less than seventy-five percent of the paid-up share capital of the Company and gives a
right to vote in the meeting, the AGM of such Company may be conducted through VC facility or
OAVM only. The Company has in its records, the email addresses of all the Members of the Company
representing hundred percent of the total paid-up share capital of the Company and gives right to the
vote at the meeting. However, the Company is required to comply with the framework prescribed by
the MCA vide its Circulars dated May 05, 2020 and January 13, 2021 read with General Circulars dated
April 08, 2020 and April 13, 2020 for conducting the AGMs through VC facility or OVAM and issue of
AGM Notice and subject to the fulfillment of the requirements which are covered hereunder in this
Notice.

The Meeting can be convened at a shorter notice, after obtaining the consent, in writing or by electronic
mode, is accorded thereto by members of the Company majority in number entitled to vote and who
represent not less than ninety-five percent of such part of the paid-up share capital of the company as
gives a right to vote at the meeting, pursuant to the provisions of Section 101 of the Act, format of
Shorter notice consent is enclosed.

Notice convening the 29 AGM along with the Annual Report for FY 2020-21 (including financial
statements, auditors report, board’s report and relevant documents) is being sent only through
electronic mode i.e. by email to all the Members and others entitled to their e-mail addresses registered
with the Company. The Notice convening the 29% AGM has been uploaded on the website of the
Company at www.gmrairports.in.

The company shall provide proper teleconferencing / Webex facility as follows.

ZoomLink:https:https:/ /gmrgroupin.zoom.us /j/ 91879854087 ?pwd=RjZUMzN5YVdOUTFnMEhiW
XVWSESxQT09

Meeting 1D: 918 7985 4087

Passcode: 123456

A unique Zoom Meeting 1D and Password will be provided to the Shareholder to attend the Meeting
on registered email id.

The Shareholder has to click on the Link and the same will take to the User Id and password option.
The shareholder has to add the password and Press on the Join Meeting Button.

The Shareholder has the option to join with Video or Without Video.
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15.

The Shareholder has the feature speak by pressing ‘Unmute’. It is advisable that during the

proceedings, the shareholder to keep on Mute and whenever want t0 say anything, then only
Unmute,

Mobile Number of the concerned IT person who is handling the Zoom in the Company and
alternatively the Mobile Number of the Company Secretary:

Wr. Rahul Mehrotra - M ~ 07042627744 {IT Technician}

Mr. Sushil Kumar Dudeja - M - 00717852211 {Company Secretary)

Arrangement fortwo-way communication through teleconferencing or webex for the ease of
patticipation by the members.

The Members who attend through YO or OAVM will be counted for the purpose of
reckoning guorum.

The facility of joining the meeting shall be kept open at-least 15 minutes before & till 15 minutes
after such scheduled time of the AGM.

The explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Act in respect of Special Business is
annexed hereto.

Pursuant to Section 105 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules thereunder a Member Entitled to
Attend and Vote and Vote at the Annual General Meeting and also entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on poll instead of himself. A proxy need not be member of the Company. The
proxy form in order to be effective must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not
less than 48 hours before the Commencement of the Meeting,

However, in view of the specific circumstances (due to prevailing Covid-19 pandemic} during which
this AGM is being held, pursuant to MCA Circulass on holding of AGM through VC / OAVM, the
requirement of physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility
for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy
Form, and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this AGM Notice.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder whe is higher in the order of
names will be entitled to vote at the meeting,.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives 1o attend the Annual General
Meeting, pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, are requested to send to the Company,
certified copy of the relevant Board Resclution together with the respective Specimen signatures of
those representative(s) authorized under the said resolution to attend and vote on their behaif at the
meeting,

Details of Directors appointment/ re-appointment as required by Secretarial Standards on General
Meeting is also enclosed.

This AGM is being held through VC / OAVM, as such the route map to the venue is not annexed to
this Notice,

Al documents referred to in the accompanying Notice, Annual Report as well as Annual Accounts
of the subsidiary compantes and Statutory registers which are to be kept open for inspection by the
Memibers of the Company shall be available for inspection electronically during 11.00 AM. and 500
P.M. on all working days till the completion of the ensuing AGM. Members seeking to inspect such
documenis can send an email to Davinder.arora@gmrgroup.in Further, the Members seeking any
information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are requested to write




te Davinder.arora@gmrgroup.in, on or before Thursday, September 16, 2021 and response for the
same will be sent by the Company accordingly.




Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

ftem No. 5

The Shareholders of the Company at their meeting heid on September 30, 2019, approved the
appointment of M/s. Walker Chandiok & L.L.P,, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
(01076N/ N300013), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company under Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years to hold the office from the
conclusion of the 274 AGM tili the conclusion of the 32=¢ AGM (ie., up to September 30, 2024)
at such fees to be decided by the Board on the recommendation of the Audit Comunittee,

Recently, Reserve Bank of India vide its Guidelines No. RBI/2021-22/25 dated April 27, 2021,
{("RBI Guidelines”} has notified Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors
(SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) for Commercial Banks {(excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs
{(including HFCs) effective from second half of FY 2021-22 for Companies having specified
threshold based on the an asset size, one of which being Companies (MBFCs) having an asset
size of TAS000 crore as at the end of the previous financial vear, to conduct joint audit by

mimimum of two audit firms neither of them can have common pariners or are under the same
network.

For the purpose of said loint Audit of the Company, it is mentioned to appoint the SCAs/5As
for a period of three years under RBI Guidelines. However, Section 139(2) of Companies Act,
2013 prescribes the tertn up to five consecutive years each for appointment and re-appointment
of the Statutory Auditors (total term 10 years),

Due to the conflict in tenure of appointment in the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
RBI Guidelines, the management would make representation to the RBI seeking solution for
harmonizing the provisions of the Substantive Law and RBI Guidelines.

The total asset size of the Company as on March 31, 2021 is Rs. 22,772 16 crore which is exceeding
the prescribed threshold of Rs. 15,000 crore. Therefore, it is required to appoint new Statutory

Auditor firm in addition to the existing Statutory Auditor to conduct joint audit of the Company
in compliance with afore mentioned RBI Guidelines,

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective
relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at ltem
No. 5 of the accompanying notice.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 27, 2021, recommended the appointment
of M/s K5 Rao, Chartered Accountants as [oint Statutory Auditors of the Company to conduct
the Audit along with M/s Walker Chandiok & Co., Chartered Accountants (the existing

Statutory Auditors of the Company) for approvai of the members by way of an Ordinary
Resolution.

fiem No. &

In tering of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration
Commuttee (“NRC"} and the Board have recommended the appointment of Mr. Subba Rao




Amarthaluru (DIN: 00082313) as an Independent Director of the Company pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has also received a notice in writing from a member proposing the candidature
of Mr. Subba Rao Amarthaluru to be appointed as an Independent Director of the Company.

The Comspany has received a declaration from Mr. Subba Rao Amarthaluru confirming that he
meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and is
registered on the Independent Directors” Data Bank maintained by the Institute of Corporate
Affairs (IICA). Further, the Company has also received consent to act as a Director in terms of
section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and a declaration that he is not disqualified from being
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Subba Rao Amarthaluru fulfils the conditions specified in the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder for his appointment as an Independent
Director of the Company and he is independent of the management.

Considering his deep repository of knowledge and experience, sharp business acumen, and as
a strong votary of the highest standards of corporate governance, the Board of Directors is of
the opinion that it would be in the interest of the Company to appoint him as an independent

Director for a consecutive period of 3 years with effect from the date of this Annual General
Meeting,

Additional information in respect of Mr. Subba Rao Amarthaluru, pursuant to the Secretarial
Standards on General Meetings (S5-2) and brief profile, is enclosed.

Except Mr. Subba Rao Amarthaluru, being the appointee, and his relatives, none of the Directors
and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are concemed or

interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the accompanying
notice,

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 27, 2021, recommended the resolution in
relation to appointment of Mr. Subba Rao Amarthaluru as an Independent Director of the

Company, as set out in Item No. 6 for approval of the members by way of an Ordinary
Resolution.

For GMR Airports Limited

Sushil Kumar Dudeja
Company Secretary

Date: August 27, 2021
Place: New Delhi




Profile of Directors seeking appointment/ reappointment at the Annual General Meeting {In
pursuance of Secretarial Standard- 2 on General Meeting:

Name of Director Mr,G.M, Rao Mr.G.B.S Raju

DN No, (0574243 00061686

Age (Years) 72 Years 47 Years 7

Qualifications Bachelor of Engineering. Commerce Graduate
(Mechanical)

Experience 43 Years (approx.} 25 Years (approx.)

Terms & Conditions
of Appointment/ re-

Non-Execubtive Chalrrmman
(Liable to retire by rotation}

Non-Executive Director {(Vice
Chairman)

appointment {Liable to retire by rotation)
Remuneration NiL NIL

Details

Remuneration last | Rs. 72500/~ [Sitting Fee Paid} = Rs. 1,26,500/- {Sitling Fee Paid]
drawn

Date of first  March 31,2011 May 15, 2018

appointment on

Board

Sharehoiding in the | NIL NIL

Company

Relationship  with | » Fatherof Mr. GBS Raju | » Mr.G. M. Rao-Father
other Directors, and Mr. Grandhi Kiran | % My Grandhi Kiran Kumar-
Manager & KMPs Kumar Brother

> Father inlaw of Mr.

Srinivas Bommidala

No. of  Board | Seven Board Meeting was | Seven Board Meeting was
Meetings attended | conduct during the year out of | conduct during the year out of
during the year which he has attended Five | which he has attended Seven

Board Meetings.

Board Mestings.

Other Directorships,
Chairmanships &
Committee
Membership

1.GMR Infragtructure Limited -
Non Executive- Chalrman
Chatrman-Management
Committee

2. GMR Nagpur International
Adrport Lid- Director

AGMR Hyderabad International

1. GMR Infrastructure Limited
Stakeholders” Relationship
Commitiee-Member
Debenture Allotment Connmnittee-
Member
Management Commities-Member

Adrport  limidted-  Execulive Corporate Social Responsibilily
Chaleman Committee-Member
4. GMR Varalakshmi

Foundaton- Chairman

2. GMR Varalakshmi Foundation
Audit Commitice- Member




5.CMR Visakhapatnam
International Airport Limited -
Dhivector

a6 GMR Alrports Limiled- Non-
Execubive Chairman

7.AMG  Healthcare Destination
Private Limited- Director
§.Parampara Farmuly Business
Instituie- Chatrman

9. Andhra FPradesh Stae Skill
Development Corporation-
Director

10.GMR Goa Inmernational
Ajrport Limited- Chairman
11.GMR Enterprises  Privalke

Limited- Non-Execulive
Chairman
Management Commitiee-
Chatrman

Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee-Member

12, GMR  Eoergy  Limiled -
Chairman

3. Delhi International Airport
Limited ~ Executive Disector
Share Allotment, Transfer and
Grievance Committee - Member

4. GES Holdings Private Limited

5. Limak-GME Adi-Oratski (Limak-
GMER [oint Venture)

6. GMR Goa International Alrport
Lindled

7. GMR Enterprises Private Limiled
Management Commiliee -
Member

§. Delhi Duty Free Services Privale
Limiled

2. GMR Air Cargo and Aerospac
Engineering Limited

10.GMR Airports Limited - Non-
Executive Direclor
MNomination and Remmuneration
Commitiee- Member

11.GMR Aijrport Developers Limited

12.GMR Nagpur International
Adrport

13 GMR Visakhapaloam Infernatioal
Airport Limited

14.GMR Hyderabad International
Alrport Limited

15.GMR Erergy Limited

16.GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited

17.GME Warora Energy Limited

| Name of Mr. I Prabhakara Rao Mz, Subba Rac Amarthaluru
Diirector
DIN No. 03482239 00082313
Agpe {Years) &2 Years 61 years
Qualifiation Bachelor of Engineering Comunerce graduste and a
{Mechanical) Chartered Accountant,
Experience 37 Years (approx. more than 35 years




Tarms &

Executive Director

To be appointed as an Independent

the Company

Conditiens ol | {Liable to retire by rotation) Director for a terrm of 3 consecutive
Appointment years.
Remunetation For details refer the shareholders’ | NIL
Details resolution dated June 29, 2021.
Remunerabion Rs. 1.10 crores NIL
last drawn
Date  of  Hrst | June 01, 2018 August 27, 2021
appoiniment on
| Board
Shareholding in | NIL NIL

Relationship

Wot related with any director

Not related with any director

with other

Direclors,

Manager &

KMPs

No. of Board | Seven Board Meeting was conduct | NA
Meetings during the year out of which he has
atlended during | apended Six Board Meetings.

the year

Other 1L.GMR Goa International Airport | NA
Direclorships, Limited - Director

Chairmanships | 7 GMR Afrports Limited - Executive

& Commiltee | myioeror

Membership

Audit Committee - Member

Corporate Social Responsibility -

Member

Share  Allotment

Conunittee - Member

3. GMR Airport Developers Limited

- Director

Corperate Scocial Responsibility -

Member

4  GMR Nagpur Intemnational

Alrport Limited - Director

5. GMR Visakhapatnam

International  Airport Limited -

Dhirector

6. Delhi International  Airport
Limited - Executive Chairman
Audit Committee - Chairman

Corporate Social Responsibility -
Member

&  Transfer




THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
CONSENT FOR SHORTER NOTICE
{Purguant to Section 101]

To, )

The Board of Directors
GMR Adrports Limited
New Udaan Bhawan
Cpp T3 1GE Adrport
New Delld - 1100537,

We/], .. registered number/ son of having registered office at/resident of

holding eguity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- each in the Company in my/our
own name having client 17 and D ID hereby give consent pursuant o section 101 of
the Companies Act, 2013 to hold the Annual General Meeting of the Company at a shorler notice on
Thursday, September 16, 2021.

SIENalure ..
Name
Designation




GMR Airports Limited

. Content

Directors’ Report

2. | Management Discussion and Analysis Report

3. Annexures of Directors’ Report

4, Independent Auditors’ Report on Standalone Financial Statements

5. Standalone Financial Statements

6. | Independent Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

7. Consolidated Financial Statements




GMR Airports Limited

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF GMR AIRPORTS LIMITED AS ON AUGUST 27, 2021,

S. No. Name of the Directors Designation
1. | Mr. G.M. Rao Chairman
2. | Mr, Augustin de Romanet De Beaune Non-Executive Director
3. | Mr. G.B.S. Raju Vice Chairman
4. { Mr. Srinivas Bommidala Joint Managing Director
5. | Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar Joint Managing Director & CEQ
6. | Mr. Prabhakara Rao Indana Executive Director
7. | Mr. R.S.S.L.N. Bhaskarudu Independent Director
8. [ Mr. N.C. Sarabeswaran Independent Director
9. | Ms. Siva Kameswari Vissa Independent Director
10. | Mr. Philippe Pascal Non-Executive Director
11. | Mr. Xavier Hurstel Non-Executive Director
12. | Mr. Fernando Echegaray Del Pozo 'Non~Executive Director




GMR Airports Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2020-21

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GMR AIRPORTS LIMITED:

Your Directors are pleased to present you the 29 Annual Report on Business and
Operations along with the Audited Financial Statements of your Company for the year
ended March 31, 2021 along with Auditors’ Report thereon. The Consolidated Financial
Statements of your Company for the Year ended March 31, 2021, along with Auditors’
Report thereon also forms part of this Annual Report, as per the provisions of Companies

Act, 2013 and Accounting Standards.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

(Rupees in Cr.)

Standalone Consolidated
Particulars FY 2019-20 FY 20196-30
Revenue from Operations 398.51 6,179.83
Other Income 185.45 - 533.58
Total Revenue 583.96 6,713.41
Less : Total Expenses 74.09 3,956.57
excluding depreciation,
Amortization finance cost
and exceptional items
Earnings  before 509.87 2,756.84
Depreciation,
Amortization and
Finance Cost
Less: Depreciation and 1,93 867.34
amortization Expense
Less: Finance Cost 423.37 1,397.18
Profit/(Loss) before 84,57 492.32
share of profit of
associates and joint
venture and Tax
Share of profit of - 150.90
associates and joint
venture (net) :
Profit/(Loss) before tax 84.57 | 643.22
Less: Tax expenses 9.65 | 111.48
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GMR Airports Limited

Standalone Consolidated
Particulars FY 202021 FY 2019-20 | FY 2020-21 | FY 2019-20
Profit/(lLoss) for the | 7492 | ( 531.74
period .-;
Add: Other Comprehensive |- 2,437.56 | (28.39)
income/(loss) (""OCI”)for |-
the period, net of tax
Total comprehensive [ 2,512.48 503.35
income/(loss) for  the |
period a
Less: Share of Non]| - 303.99
controlling interest
Profit/(Loss) for the |~ 2,512.48 ! 199.36
Year After OCI ;

On standalone basis, the revenue from operations for FY21 was Rs. 360.78 crore as
against Rs. 398.51 crore in FY20. The Loss for the year was Rs. 257.74 crore as against
profit of Rs. 74.92 crore during FY20. The Loss for the year after OCI was Rs. 1,245.55
crore as against Profit of Rs. 2,512.48 crore in FY20.

On consolidated basis, the revenue from operations for FY21 was Rs. 3,469.46 crore as
against Rs. 6,179.83 crore in FY20. The Loss for the year after OCI was Rs. 763.11 crore
as against Profit for the year of Rs. 199.36 crore in FY 20.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during FY 2020-21.

AWARDS & RECOGINITION:

Following are some of the awards, recognitions and accreditations that your Company /
its Subsidiaries / Associates received during the year under review:

Delhi International Airport Limited (“DIAL"):

During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, DIAL has received numerous awards and
has been recognized in various rankings including the following:

» Indira Gandhi International Airport became Asia Pacific’s first Level 4+ (Transition)
accredited airport under ACI’s Airport Carbon Accreditation program

Indira Gandhi International Airport achieved Airport Council International (ACI)
Airport Health Accreditation |

>
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GMR Airports Limited

DIAL won gold in the Digital & CRM category and a silver in the Crisis Management
category at the Mobexx Awards 2020 for its proactive work during the Covid-19
pandemic

DIAL has been adjudged ‘Runners Up’ in the prestigious 15th BML Munjal Awards
2020 for demonstrating business excellence through innovations in learning &
development

DIAL won two silvers in SAMMIE2020 for best use of Digital Data, Analytics &
Listening and Best Travel Brand categories

Indira Gandhi International Alrport received ACI World's (Airports Council
International) prestigious “Voice of Customer” recognition _
Indira Gandhi International Airport won “Best Airport by Size and Region (over 40
Million Passengers Per Annum in Asia-Pacific)” for CY 2020

DIAL was conferred National Water Conservation Award by the Ministry of Jal Shakti
(Government of India) and became the first Indian Airport to be honoured with this

prestigious award.

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited ("GHIAL"):

During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, GHIAL has received numerous awards
and has been recognized in various rankings including the following:

>

Featured in the Best Regional Airports and the Best Airport Staff in India and
Central Asia 2020 categories in the Skytrax World Airports Awards. The Airport
was also ranked Fourth and Eighth in the Best Airport in Central Asia and India and
Best Regional Airports in Asia categories respectively, in the Skytrax World Airports
2020 Awards and Best Regional Airports in Asia respectively with the overall
ranking in the world being at 71st; ,

Received Airport Council International’'s (“ACI”) Asia-Pacific Green Airports
Platinum Recognition 2020, for efficiency in water management practices;

Won the "National Energy Leader" and "Excellent Energy Efficient Unit" Awards
instituted by the Confederation of Indian Industry (CII) in recognition of energy-
efficiency initiatives and best practices;

Awarded the Green Airports Recognition 2021-Gold award by the ACI in the
Category: 15 to 35 MPPA, Asia - Pacific region in February 2021, in recognition of
its efficient air quality management standards:

Achieved the ACI Airport Health Accreditation ("AHA") in recognition of its efforts
towards safety of airport passengers and all the personnel working at the airport;
Won the prestigious CII - Green Power Performance Excellence Awards 2020 in the

“"Ground Mounted Solar” Category;




GMR Airports Limited

» Won the Gold Award In “Telangana State Energy Conservation Awards - 2020
("TSECA") in recognition of energy conservation measures; :

> ACI World’s “Voice of Customer” recognition for its continuous efforts in gathering
passenger feedback, understanding customer needs and ensuring customer voice
was heard during the pandemic in 2020; -

» Won the ACI Airport Service Quality (“ASQ") survey award. RGIA has been
adjudged as the ‘Best Airport by Size and Region’ in Asia-Pacific region for 2020,
in its category of 15-25 MPPA.

DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATIONS:

Due to losses in FY 2021, your Directors are unable to recommended any dividend on
compulsory convertible preference shares as well as equity shares for FY 2020-21.

PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURE:
During FY 2020-21, Non-Convertible debentures were fully repaid on December 28, 2020.

PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF NON-CONVERTIBLE BOND:

In addition to earlier issue of Non-Convertible Bonds (“NCBs") during FY 2020-21, your
Company through private placement issued and allotted additional 1330 no. Rated, Un-
Secured and Listed NCBs of face value of Rs. 1 Crore each aggregating to Rs. 1330 Crore
in dematerialized form on December 24, 2020 in terms of Sections 42 and 71 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules & regulations made thereunder.

Further, during FY 2020-21, the Board of Directors had extended the maturity period of
the existing Bonds i.e. Tranche 01,02 and 03 from December 28, 2020 to December 28,
2023 and Tranche 04 from January 31, 2021 to December 28, 2023, and modified some
of the terms and conditions of Bond Trust Deed ("BTD") executed with respect to all or
part of the issue of Tranche 01, Tranche 02, Tranche 03, Tranche 04 of the Rated, Secured

and Listed NCBs, amounting to Rs.1,670 Crore,

After the end of FY 2020-21 and till the date of this Report, your Company through private
placement issued and allotted additional 3,000 Un-secured Rated Listed Redeemable
NCBs of face value of Rs. 10 Lakh each aggregating to Rs. 300 Crore in dematerialized
form on August 17, 2021 in terms of Sections 42 and 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 and

rules & regulations made thereunder.,

F;REFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT OF EQUITY SHARES:

During FY 2020-21, your Company issued and allotted 78,279,463 equity shares of the
Company at a face value of Rs. 10 each (“Equity Shares”), at a premium of Rs.
117.747427 each aggregating to Rs. 1,000 crore in dematerialized form by way of
preferential allotment to Aéroports de Paris S.A in terins of the provisions of Sections 23,
42, 62(1)(c), 179 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act")
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read with the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014.

DETAILS OF TRUSTEES FOR NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES AND NON-
CONVERTIBLE BONDS:

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Registered Address: No. 604, 6™ Floor, Windsor C.5.T Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East)
Mumbai - 400098, Maharashtra, India

Tel No.: 022-49220505

Fax : 020 - 25280275

Website: http://www.catalysttrustee.com

Contact Person: Ms. Brindha Venkatraman -Vice President

INVESTOR GRIEVANCES:

During FY 2020-21, your Company has not received any complaints from the bond holders
required to be reported under Regulation 13(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Customers Complaints under NBFC Directions.

RESERVES:

The Company being registered as Non-Banking Financial Company is required to transfer
20% of the net profit to special reserve in accordance with Section 45 IC of RBI Act. The
said reserve can be used only for the purpose as may be specified by the Reserve Bank
of India from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2021, due to Loss, the Company
has not transferred any amount to special reserve.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Directors Retire By Rotation:

In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of the
Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao (DIN 00574243),
Mr. Grandhi Buchisanyasi Raju (00061686) and Mr. I. Prabhakara Rao {DIN 03482239),
Directors of the Company, are liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offers themselves for re-appointment. The
Board of Directors has recommended their re-appointment for the consideration of the
members of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao (DIN 00574243), Mr. Grandhi Buchisanyasi Raju
(00061686) and Mr. 1. Prabhakara Rao (DIN 03482239), are not disqualified under section
164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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The resolutions seeking re-appointment of above directors have been included in the
Notice of 29™ Annual General Meeting. The Board of Directors recommends the resolutions

for your approval.
Appointments:

During FY 2020-21, Mr. Augustin de Romanet De Beaune (DIN 08883005), Mr. Philippe
Pascal (DIN 08903236) and Mr. Xavier Hurstel (08732167) were appointed as additional
directors by the Board of Directors on February 05, 2021,

After the end of financial year till the date of this report, the following appointments took
place:

1. Mr. Fernando Echegaray Del Pozo (DIN 09168107) was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company with effect from May 28, 2021, and has been regularized in
the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on July
29, 2021;

2. The appointment of Mr, Augustin de Romanet De Beaune (DIN 08883005), Mr. Philippe
Pascal (DIN 08903236) and Mr. Xavier Hurstel (08732167) Directors of the Company
has also been regularized in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the shareholders

of the Company held on July 29, 2021.

Further, subject to the approval of Central Government, the appointment of Mr.
Antoine Roger Bernard Crombez (DIN: 09069083) as an Executive Director & Deputy
CEO of the Company for a period of 3 years has been approved by the Board of
Directors in its meeting held on May 28, 2021 and Shareholders in their Extra-Ordinary
General meeting held on June 29, 2021. The Company has filed an application with
Ministry of Corporate Affairs for obtaining the approval of Central Government in this
respect on August 07, 2021. The approval of Central Government is awaited.

3. Mr. Saurabh Jain was appointed as Company Secretary & KMP in terms of the
provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Compliance Officer of the
Company in terms of Regulation 6 of (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Reguiations, 2015 w.e.f August 01, 2021.

4. The Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 27, 2021 has approved the
appointment of Mr. Sushil Kumar Dudeja as the Whole-Time Company Secretary and
Key Managerial Personnel in terms of the provisions of the Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Compliance Officer terms of the Reguilation 6 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the Company w.e.f.
August 25, 2021. :
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Re-Appointments:

After the end of FY 2020-21 till the date of this report, the following re-appointments took
place:

In terms of provisions of Schedule V, Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 of the Companies Act,
2013 the re-appointment of Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar (Joint Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer and a Key Managerial Personnel) having DIN: 00061669, Mr, Srinivas
Bommidala (Joint Managing Director) having DIN: 00061464 and Mr. I. Prabhakara Rao
(Executive Director) having DIN 03482239, was approved by the Board of Directors in its
meeting held on May 28, 2021 and Shareholders in their Extra-Ordinary General meeting
held on June 29,2021, for a term of 3 years from June 01, 2021 to May 31, 2024,

Cessations or Resignations:

During FY 2020-21, Mr. Olivier Pierre Guichard and Mr. Gratien Georges Lucien Maire
resigned as Directors of the Company w.e.f. February 28, 2021 and February 24, 2021

respectively.

Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar - Joint Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and Mr.
G.R.K. Babu - Chief Financial Officer continues to be the KMPs of the Company.

Further, Ms. Deepanjali Gulati - Company Secretary of the Company had resigned w.e.f.
close of working hours of July 31, 2020.

Mr. Saurabh Jain was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company who had also
resigned w.e.f. close of working hours of February 26, 2021.

The Board of Directors places on record its deep appreéiation for the services and support
rendered by them as Directors and Company Secretaries of the Company.

The Company has received declarations from ali the Independent Directors of the
Company confirming that they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed under the

Companies Act, 2013.

The policy on director’s appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of directors and other matters as required
by the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, may be accessed on the
Company’s Website at the link: https://www.gmrairports.com/investor.as x?sec=1.)
Further, Board has recently amended its policy based on the suggestion provided by RBI
with respect to succession planning.
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BOARD EVALUATION:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out the
annual performance evaiuation for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, in respect of -
the Board its Committees, the Chairman and Peers of the Directors. The exercise was
carried out by circulating the structured and separate questionnaires among the Directors
through DESS Digital Meeting Platform, for Board and Committees Evaluation, the
Chairman’s Evaluation and the Directors’ Peer Evaluation, after taking into consideration
various aspects of the management and governance. The Directors have successfully
completed the said evaluation through DESS Digital Meeting Platform.

SUBSIDIARY/ ASSOCIATE & JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

As on March 31, 2021, in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, your
Company has directly and indirectly 20 Subsidiaries and 13 Associates Companies.

Following Companies became Subsidiary(ies), Associates and Joint Ventures
during the year:

» GMR Hyderabad Airport Assets Limited (GHAAL) became indirect subsidiary of the
Company w.e.f. November 25, 2020. _

Following Companies Ceased to be Subsidiary(ies), Associate(s) and Joint
Venture(s) during the year:

» GADL (Mauritius) Limited ceased to be indirect subsidiary of your Company w.e.f.

December 25, 2020,
» GMR Hyderabad Airport Distribution Limited (GHAPDL) ceased to be indirect

subsidiary of your Company w.e.f. March 13, 2021,
» GMR Logistics Park Private Limited ceased to be indirect subsidiary w.e.f. April 16,
2020. :

During FY 2020-21, there has been no material change in the nature of the business of
the subsidiaries and associates.

As per the provisions of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, the consolidated
financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries and associates are enclosed in the
Annual Report. The annual accounts of subsidiaries and associates of the Company will
be made available to shareholders on request and will also be kept open for inspection by
any shareholder at the Registered Office and Corporate Office of your Company. A
statement in Form AOC-1 containing the salient features of the financial statements of
the Company’s subsidiaries, associates and joint venture is also enclosed with financial

statements as “Annexure- 1”.
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

During FY 2020-21, 7 Board meetings were held. The intervening gap between the
meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The details of
meetings held and attendance by Directors during FY 2020-21 are enclosed as

"Annexure II”.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Company has a duly constituted Audit Committee in line with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013,

All the members of the Committee have the requisite qualification for appointment on the
Committees and possess sound knowledge of finance, accounting practices and internal

controls.

The composition of the Audit Committee along with the details of meetings held and
attended by Members during FY 2020-21 are given below:-

Sl. | Name June 25, July 06, August November | February
No 2020 2020 21, 2020 | 06, 2020 05, 2021
1. Mr. N.C. | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Sarabeswara
n ~ Chairman
2. Mr. Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
R.S.S.L.N.
Bhaskarudu -
Member

3. Mrs. Siva | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Kameswari
Vissa-
Member
4, Mr. - I.| Yes LOA Yes Yes Yes
Prabhakara
Rao -
Member

5. | Mr. Philippe |- - - - Appointed
Pascal -

Member¥*
*Note: Mr. Philippe Pascal was inducted as a member of the Committee w.e.f. February 05, 2021,

Further, during the'year under review, the Board of Directors has accepted all the
recommendations of Audit Committee
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TERMS OF REFERENCE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The terms of references of the Audit Committee of Board of Directors are as follows: °

(a)the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the company;

(b)review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness
of audit process;

() examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

(d)approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related
parties;

(e)scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; .

(f) valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

(g)evaluation of internal financial controis and risk management systems;

(h)monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

(i) The Committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control
systems, the scope of audit, including the observations of the auditors and review of
financial statement before their submission to the Board and may also discuss any
related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the management of the
company. ,

(j) The Committee shall have authority to investigate into any matter in relation to the
items specified in above point a to h or referred to it by the Board and for this purpose
shall have power to obtain professional advice from external sources and have full
access to information contained in the records of the company.

(k) Such other terms as may be required by the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Board of Directors has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. ‘
The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee along with the details
of meetings held and attended by Members during FY 2020-21 are given below:-

Sl. | Name June 25, 2020 | August 21, 2020 | February 05, 2021
No.
1. Mr. R.S.S.L.N. | Yes Yes Yes
Bhaskarudu - :
Chairman _
2. Mr. N. C. | Yes Yes Yes
Sarabeswaran -
Member
3. Mr. G.B.S. Raju | Yes No No
- Member
4, Mr. Xavier | - - Appointed
Hirstel -
Member*

*Note: Mr. Xavier Hiirstel was inducted as a member of the Committee w.e.f. February 05, 2021.
12
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TERMS OF REFERENCE OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The terms of references of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Board of

Directors are as follows:

(a)NRC shall identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend
to the Board their appointment and removal and shall specify the manner for effective
evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and individual directors to be
carried out either by the Board, by the NRC or by an independent external agency and
review its implementation and compliance.

(b)NRC shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

(c) Formulating the policy under shall ensure that:

(i) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate d:rectors of the quality required to run the company
successfully;

(ii)  relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

(iity remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-
term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its
goals:

SHARE ALLOTMENT AND TRANSFER COMMITTEE:

Your Company has a duly constitured Share Allotment and Transfer Commlttee The
Committee Comprises of the following Directors as Members as on August 27, 2021. No
meeting of Share Allotment and Transfer Committee took place during the year under
review.

SI.A No. | Name of Member of Committee
1. Mr. R.5.5.L.N. Bhaskarudu - Chairman
2. Mr. I. Prabhakara Rao ~ Member

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE:

As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the Composition of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee along with the details of meetings held and attended by
Members durmg FY 2020-21 are given below:-

Sl. No. | Name of Member of Committee June 25, 2020
1. Mr. R.5.5.L.N. Bhaskarudu - Chairman Yes
2. Mr. Srinivas Bommidala - Member No
3. Mr. 1. Prabhakara Rao -~ Member Yes

13




GMR Airports Limited

The terms of references of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Board of
Directors are as follows:

(a) formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy in
accordance with the provisions of Section 135 and Scheduie VII of the Companies Act
2013 and rules made thereunder and in consonance with the GMR Group's vision and
Policy. '

(b) recommend to the Board, the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR
activities to be undertaken by the Company.

(c) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy from time to time and amend the

- policy as it may deem necessary according to the requirement,

(d) Establish a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of CSR activities,

undertaken by the Company.
(e) The CSR Committee is also authorized by the Board to do all such acts, deeds, matters

and things, as required in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, including detegation of
administrative functions to the officials of the Company.

Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 listing out the activities which may be
included by companies in their CSR policies was also placed before the Committee for
its perusal,

-The CSR Committee has formulated and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, which
has been approved by the Board. :

During the period under review your Company was not required to spend any amount
towards the CSR activities as there was an average net loss of Rs. 87.84 Crore, during
the three immediately preceding financial years viz: 2019-20, 2018-19 and 2017-18
calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the various
subsidiaries and Associates of the Company were actively engaged in the CSR activities
across different locations where the GMR Group operates, The CSR spent by subsidiaries
of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 was Rs. 24,34 Cr. (approx.).

As required by the provisions of Section 135 and Rules made thereunder, the annual
report on CSR activities and initiatives, details about the policy developed and
implemented by the Company on CSR initiatives undertaken during the year is enclosed
as Annexure ~ III.
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COMMITTEE(s) AS PER THE RQUIREMENT OF NBFC DIRECTION BY RBI:

Your Company has constituted the following committee(s) as required pursuant to the
directions issued by RBI from time to time. The Committees comprises of the following

members as on the date of approval of this Report:

Sl Name of | Members of the Committee
No. Committee
1. IT Strategy | Ms. Siva Kameswari Vissa - Chairperson
Committee Mr. Kalyan Singh*- Member
Mr. George Thomas Fanthome*-Member
2. IT Steering | Ms. Siva Kameswari Vissa — Chairperson
Committee Mr. Kalyan Singh*- Member
Mr. George Thomas Fanthome*- Member
3. Risk Mr. G.B.S Raju
Management Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar
Committee Mr. G.R.K. Babu
Mr. Sanjeev Sharma*
4, Assets Liability | Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar
Management Mr. G.R.K. Babu
Committee Mr. Sanjeev Sharma¥*
Mr. Manoj Dharewa
Mr, Madhukar Dodrajka

*Note: Mr. George Thomas Fanthome and Mr. Sanjeev Sharma had resngned from the Company
w.e.f June, 2020 and April 07, 2021 respectively and Mr. Kalyan Singh was inducted as a member
of IT Strategy and IT Steering Committee w.e.f. June 16, 2020.

The details of meetings of IT Strategy and IT Steering Committees held and attended by
Members during FY 2020-21 are given below:-

IT Strategy Committee _
Sl. Members of the |June 24, 2020 December 23, 2020
No. Committee
1. Ms. Siva Kameswari | Yes Yes

Vissa - Chairperson
2. Mr. Kalyan Singh - | Yes Yes

Member
3. Mr. George Thomas | Yes NA

Fanthome - Member

IT Steering Committee

Sl.
No.

Members of the Committee

December 23, 2020
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1. Ms. Siva Kameswari Vissa - Chairperson ! Yes
2. Mr. Kalyan Singh - Member Yes
3. Mr. George Thomas Fanthome - Member | NA

OTHER COMMITTEES:

Your Company has also constituted Business Plan Committee and Bidding Committee and
the Committee(s) comprise of the following Directors as Members as on August 27, 2021.
No meeting of Business Plan Committee and Bidding Committee took place during the
vear under review,

Sl. No. | Name of Member of Business Plan Committee
1. Mr. GBS Raju

2. Mr. I. Prabhakara Rao

3. Mr. Philippe Pascal

Sl. No. | Name of Member of Bidding Committee

1. Mr. GBS Raju - Chairman

2. Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar - Member

3. Mr. Xavier Hiirstel - Member

The terms of references of the Business Plan Committee of Board of Directors are as

follows: :

(a)To prepare, deliberate, discuss and approve in advance the Business Plans

(b)The Business Plan Committee shall be authorized to seek appropriate assistance and
relevant professional/technical advice from, and delegate the work in relation to
preparation of the Business Plans to, any employees of GAL, ADP and GIL or external
consultants.

(¢) No Business Plan shall be submitted for approval of the GAL Board unless approved by
the Business Plan Committee, or in order to resolve a deadlock at the Business Plan
Committee.

(d)Decisions of the Business Plan Committee shall be taken by a simple majority

(e)The committee shall comply the other provision of SHA as applicable.

The terms of references of the Bidding Committee of Board of Directors are as follows:

(a)To evaluate and take decisions in relation to bids for new airport operations
concessions by GAL or any Material Subsidiary/JV. '
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(b)The Bidding Committee shall be authorised to seek appropriate assistance and relevant
professional/technical advice from, and delegate the work in relation to evaluation of
any bid to, any employees of GAL, ADP and GIL or external consuitants

(c) Any decision of the Bidding Committee which involves a bid:

() with over INR 1600 crore in potential project costs shali require prior approval of
one ADP Director and one GIL Director; and
(ii) with over INR 400 crore and up to INR1,600 crore in potential project costs shall

need to be discussed with the ADP Director.
(d)The committee shall comply the other provision of SHA as applicable.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING:

In terms of the requirements under Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013, a separate
meeting of the Independent Directors was held on February 24, 2021.

DISCLOSURE OF VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER AS PER SECTION
177(10):

The Company has established a vigit mechanism as per the requirement of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The Vigil Mechanism Policy of the Company to provide for adequate safeguards against
victimization of persons who use such mechanism may be accessed on the Company’s

Website at the Link httgs:[[www.gmrairports.com[investor.aggx?sec:1.

AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT:

M/s Walker Chandiok & Co., were appointed as Statutory Auditors of Company for a
consecutive period of 5 years from the conclusion of 27" Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of 32" Annual General Meeting of the Company by the Board of Directors on
the recommendation of Audit Committee in its meeting held on September 30, 2019 and
Shareholders in their Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 20109.

As per the requirement of RBI Direction, the Company needs to appoint Joint Statutory
Auditors. Therefore, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 27, 2021 had
recommended the appointment of M/s KS Rao & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm
Registration number [003109S]) as the Joint Statutory Auditor of the Company along with
M/s. Walker Chandiok & L.L.P., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 001076N/
N500013), to hoid Office for a consecutive period of 5 years from the conciusion of 29th
Annual General Meeting up to conclusion of 34t Annual General Meeting of the Company
(i.e., up to September 2026) to the Shareholders for their approvai. Accordingly, the said
resolution is being placed before the Shareholders in their ensuing Annual General
meeting for their approval.
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The report given by M/s. Waiker Chandiok & Co., Chartered Accountants {ICAI Firm
Registration No. 101049W), Statutory Auditors on financial statements of the Company
for FY 2021 forms part of the Annual Report.

The Auditors’ Report contains a qualification, as detailed in note 49 to the Standalone &
note 48 to the Consolidated financial statements, the Company has issued Bonus
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares Series A, Series B, Series C and Series D
(hereinafter together referred as “Bonus CCPS") to shareholders of the Company pursuant
to the terms of the Shareholders’ Agreement entered between the shareholders of the
Company, the Company and Aéroports de Paris S.A which are being carried at face value.
In our opinion, basis the terms of such Bonus CCPS, the accounting treatment is not in
accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, as the liability towards these Bonus
CCPS should be recognised at their fair value. Had the Company applied the appropriate
accounting treatment for these Bonus CCPS, ‘Other equity’ would have been lower by Rs.
1,271.34 crores, and ‘Other financial liability’ would have been higher by Rs. 1,271.34
crores as at March 31, 2021.

Managememt reply on the qualification: During the previous year, the Company has
issued 273,516,392 Bonus non-cumulative compulsorily convertibie preference shares
series A each having a face value of Rs. 10 each, for an aggregate face value of INR
2,735,163,920 as per terms of Shareholders’ Agreement ('SHA') dated 20 February 2020
among the Company, Aéroports de Paris S.A. (ADP'), GMR Infrastructure Limited (‘GIL’),
and GMR Infra Services Limited ("GISL’), and the Share Subscription and Share Purchase
Agreement dated 20 February 2020 (“SSPA”) entered among ADP, GIL, GMR Infra
Developers Limited, GISL and Company. These CCPS are convertible into equity shares
no later than 15 November 2024 in accordance with terms of SHA.

Further, during the Current year as part of second closing with ADP, the Company has
issued Bonus CCPS series B, C and D each having a face value of Rs. 10 each, for an
aggregate face value of INR 1,693,392,470 as per terms of the revised Shareholders
agreement dated 7 July 2020. Bonus CCPS Series B, C and D are convertible into such
number of equity shares in accordance with schedule 12 of amended shareholder
agreement which are dependent on GAL consolidated target EBIDTA for financial year
ended 31 March 2022, 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024, Bonus Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares Series A, Series B, Series C and Series D are together herein referred

as Bonus CcCps’,

All these Bonus CCPS are convertible into the equity shares of the Company as per the
terms and conditions specified in the SHA. These Bonus CCPS are issued to the
shareholders of the Company as Bonus Shares and are non-redeemable and can only be
converted into equity shares of the Company. These Bonus CCPS are currently recorded
at the face value not at fair value in accordance with Ind As 109 ‘Financial Instruments’.
The difference between the fair value and face value being notional in nature, amounting
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to Rs. 1,271.34 crore does not impact the Other Equity., Considering the terms of these
Bonus CCPS, once converted, the requisite adjustments will be made in the Other Equity.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

The Board had appointed M/s Arun Kurmar Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries
(Certificate of Practice Number: 5086) to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company

for FY 2020-21.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the year ended March 31, 2021, is enclosed as Annexure
IV. The Secretarial Auditors’ report is self-explanatory and therefore, does not require
further comments and explanation. The Secrétarial Audit Report does not contain any

‘qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks.

The Board has re-appointed M/s Arun Kumar Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries
(Certificate of Practice Number: 5086) as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for FY

2021-22.
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards (SS), i.e., SS-1 and
SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and 'General Meetings’, respectively,

issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company after the end of financial year till the date of this report, except the potential
impact of COVID-19 pandemic on your Company’s business operations and financial
position as explained in the notes to accounts of the Standalone financial statements and

in the MDA.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has a well laid out Risk Management Policy, covering the process of
identifying, assessing, mitigating, reporting and reviewing crltlcal risks impacting the
achievement of Company’s objectives.

The GMR Group has framed and implemented a risk management policy across the Group
and the same is adopted by the Company. The policy is aligned to ISO 31000:2009
framework (Risk Management - Principles and Guidelines) for identification of elements
of risk. There are certain inherent risks as associated with every business and your
company is also not immune to the same. As per the RBI regulations applicable to Core
Investment Companies, your Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee
and had appointed a Chief Risk Officer, which identifies the risks associated with the
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business and continuously reviewing the same and preparing strategies to mitigate it.
There are no risks identified by the Board which may threater the existence of the

Company.
CREDIT RATING

The Company has a standalone issuer credit rating of Care A - by Care Rating.
Various borrowing programs of the Company have also been given the same rating (i.e.
Care A- from credit rating agency). '

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATOR OR COURTS
OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE: '

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulator or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future except explained
in the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Company conducts its Internal Audit and compliance functions within the parameters
of regulatory framework which is well commensurate with the size, scale and complexity

of operations.

The Company has an Internal Audit department (Management Assurance Group) which
Is staffed with experienced personnel. Its reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee
of the Board. The Audit Committee reviews the performance of the Internal Audit
function, the effectiveness of controls & compliance with regulatory guidelines.

The Company has established its internal financial control framework, in accordance with
the COSO framework, to ensure the adequacy of design and operating effectiveness of
operational, financial and compliance controls. _

The Company has adopted policies and procedures including the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of fraud and
errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of
reliable financial disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013. These controls and
processes have been embedded and integrated with SAP and/or other allied IT
applications which have been implemented. :

During the year under review, such controls were reviewed and tested by the internal
audit department of the Company. The Statutory Auditors of the Company have also

tested the Internal Controls over financial reporting.
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There were no reportable material weakness observed in the design or operating
effectiveness of the controls except few areas where the risk has been identified as low
- and there is a need to further strengthen the controls which are addressed through
systemic identification of casuals. Corrective actions, if required, are taken by the
respective functions. As far as possible, emphasis is placed on automation of controls
within the process to minimize deviations and exceptions. '

DEPOSITS:

The Company being Core Investment Company-NBFC has invested or would invest/hold
its investments in the shares/securities of its group/holding/subsidiary companies of not
less than 90 per cent of its assets and that it would not trade in such shares/securities
and that it has neither accepted nor would accept any public deposit during the year,
therefore, no disclosure is required as per Rule 8(5) of The Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

COST RECORDS:

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to
maintain the Cost Records. :

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS AS PER SECTION 186:

The Company being a NBFC Company, it is in the ordinary course of business of the
Company to give loans, to made investments, to give guarantees and to provide
securities. The provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable

to the Company.

However, the details of Investments, loans made by the Company form part of the notes
to the Financial Statements in the Annual Report.

PARTICULARS O.F CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
AS PER SECTION 188:

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the financial
year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length
basis, therefore the provision of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not

applicabie.

The members may refer Note No. 39 to the Standalone Financial Statements and AOC-2
sets out related party disclosure pursuant to Ind AS and the Companies Act, 2013 as
enclosed as Annexure V.
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ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Extract of the Annual Return for the period ended as at March 31, 2021, is available on
the Company’s website on https:zzwww.gmrairoorts.com/investor.asox?sec=3.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES, DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The information required pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 is enclosed as Annexure — VI.

The disclosure as required in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 157 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for fiscal 2021 is enclosed as Annexure VII.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:

The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption as reguired to
be disclosed under the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicabie on Company, as the
Company is involved in activity of financial services therefore, NIL disclosures is given
under Annexure VIII to the Report.

Further, details regarding to Foreign Exchange Outgo and Farnings are given in the Note
No. 46 & 47 “Other Disclosures” to the Notes to Accounts to the Balance Sheet as

attached
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of
Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013,

1. That in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March
31, 2021, the applicable accounting standards read with the requirements set out
under Schedule III to the Act, have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures, if any;

2. That such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements
have been selected and applied consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and
of the profit/loss of the Company for that period;
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3. That proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

4. That the annual financial statements have been prepared for the financial year
ended March 31, 2021 on a ‘going concern’ basis;

5. That the company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of ali applicable iaws and that such systems are adequate and operating

effectively.
GENERAL:

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following
items as there were no transactions on these items during FY 2020-21:

1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under
any Scheme. '

4. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

Further, your Directors state that, your company has complied with the provisions related
to constitution of Internal Committee (Internal Complaints Committee) under the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and. Redressal) Act, 2013.
Further, during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Also, the Company has put in place policy and processes to ensure adherence to the
requirement of Fair Practices Code, Know Your Customers (KYC) and Anti Money
Laundering (AML) norms as per the regulatory guidelines.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS:
Forward-looking Statements

This document contains certain forward-looking statements based on the currently
held beliefs and assumptions of the management of GMR Airports Limited, which are
expressed in good faith, and in its opinion and judgment, are fairly reasonable. For
this purpose, forward- looking statements mean statements, remarks or forecasts
that address activities, events, conditions or developments that the Company expects
or anticipates which may occur in the future. Because of the inherent risks and
uncertainties in the social and economic scenarios, the actual events, results or
performance can differ materially and substantially from those indicated by these
statements. GMR Airports Limited disclaims any obligation to update these forward-
looking statements to reflect future events or developments.

Macroeconomic Indicators

FY 2021 may very well be called the COVID year. The Pandemic prevailed throughout
the year disrupting global economy at a macro level and impacting human life on an
individual level. The period was marked with stringent lockdowns across the globe,
loss of employment, struggle of inadequate healthcare infrastructure and finally much
sought after roll out of vaccinations. All this while countries came up with various
fiscal initiatives to support their dwindling economies.

As a result of pandemic related disruptions, the global economic growth for 2020 as
estimated by IMF came in at -3.2% as compared to 2.9% in 2019 and 3.6% in 2018.

While the world continues to reel under the effects of the pandemic, economies have
started to cautiously open up after initial stringent lockdowns. Rapid vaccination
across the globe coupled with pent up demand from last year is expected to support
the global economic growth in 2021. As a result, the global economy is expected to
grow 6.0% in 2021 and then moderate to 4.9% in 2022 (IMF). However, these
estimates are subject to severity of successive COVID waves we might encounter in
future and progress made on vaccination coverage.

With the onset of pandemic, in order to protect human life and limit stress on medical
infrastructure, India implemented one of the most stringent lockdowns in the world
which significantly impacted economic activity. Accordingly, India recorded its worst
ever GDP growth numbers due to the pandemic related lockdown. Even before the
pandemic, India had been heading towards an economic slowdown owing to demand
contraction. Overall FY20 GDP was recorded at 4.0%.

Due to pandemic induced lockdown, April-June 2020 saw a GDP de-growth of 24.4%
versus same period of last year. India’s manufacturing and service PMI (Purchasing
manager’s index) also reduced drastically from 51.8 and 49.3 in March 2020 to 27.4
and 5.4 in June 2020 respectively. Similarly, IIP (index of industrial production) fell
by 57% YoY in April 2020.

Meanwhile, Government announced various economic packages to stem the
economic downfall, supported by Reserve Bank of India, which reduced interest rates
(policy repo rate cut from 5.15% in February 2020 to 4% in May 2020) and supplied
liquidity to fuel growth. Finally, India came out of lockdown in June 2020, and the




economy reopened in a phased manner. Most restrictions were removed, and macro-
economic indicator trends turned positive. IIP growth climbed back in positive
territory and reached pre-COVID levels by September2020. India’s manufacturing
and service PMI also recovered sharply from 27.4 and 5.4 in June 2020 to 55.4 and
54.6 in March 2021 respectively. Post reopen, India’s GDP fall softened to -7.4% in
Q2 FY21 and climbed into positive territory in Q3 FY21 to +0.5% and further
improved to +1.6% in Q4 FY21.

However, this exuberance was short-lived and another wave of pandemic hit the
country. The 2" wave was far more devastating that the initial outbreak and
restrictions were re-imposed. The V-shaped recovery took a significant hit as
economic activities were impacted by state specific restrictions. The wave peaked in
first week of May 2021, and since then has moderated, once again paving path for
the economy to recover. As per various estimates, India’s GDP growth for FY22 is
expected to be in the range of 9.5% - 10.0%. However, such estimates may change
significantly, if the country is hit by a major third COVID wave.

On the forex front, Indian rupee has remained within a range of ~ INR 72 to 75 per
USD during H2 FY21. India’s forex reserves touched an all-time high of over USD 605
billion by 2nd week June 2021. Reserve Bank of India, in a bid to support economic
growth, continues to hold repo rate to 4.0% with accommodative stance.

Even during a pandemic year, India remained an attractive investment destination.
During FY21, India managed to attract highest ever FDI inflow of ~USD 81.7 Bn; a
10% rise over the previous financial year.

However, strong economic recovery during H2 FY21 and overall global boom in
commodities led to steep rise in wholesale price index (WPI), a measure of inflation
from close to zero in June-July 2020 to ~12% in June 2021.

On the COVID-19 front, India begun its massive vaccination drive in 2" week of
January 2021. Vaccination rate has been increasing since then as manufacturers
continue to enhance their capacity. By July 2021, more than 25% of the population
has been covered during this vaccination drive and received at least one dose.
Government of India has set an ambitious target of vaccinating almost the entire
eligible population by December 2021.

COVID impact was also felt in other countries where our Group operates. Philippines,
home to Mactan-CEBU International airport, instituted one of the longest and most
stringent community lockdowns globally in the wake of the COVID-19 outbreak in the
country. These measures resulted in GDP contraction by ~9.5% in 2020. Further,
growth outlook remains relatively downbeat with authorities recently tightening
partial lockdown measures further in April 2021 as COVID-19 infections spiked.

Industry Structure and Developments

The global aviation sector was among the worst affected due to COVID pandemic. Air
travel came to a standstill amid COVID induced lockdowns imposed by majority of
nations. While some recovery is visible on domestic front, International travel
continues to see little growth on account of travel restrictions imposed by various
countries.




Such challenging times have tested our teams not only in terms of operational
flexibility, but also in terms of financial resilience. In order to counter the effect of
revenue loss due to low traffic, our airport took up various measures to ensure
optimal use of capital. These include terminal usage optimization, deferment/
avoidance of non-essential operational expenditure, renegotiation of major
expenditure contracts, manpower expense optimization and so on.

As a result of such measures, we have on one hand, sustained the operational aspects
of the airport and maintained safe and efficient operating conditions while, on the
other hand, ensured financial sustainability of the airport.

Even in a pandemic hit world, we believe that aviation market sector in India remains
attractive. Government has already announced that 100 new airports are to be
developed by 2024 under UDAN scheme. Further, as government continues with
privatization of existing airports, investment opportunities in Indian aviation sector
are immense. The UDAN - regional connectivity scheme has been very effective in
connecting more cities and thus tapping the largely untapped aviation market in
India. We believe, that this scheme will be a major driver towards increasing India’s
air traffic. Further, Government also launched a development program for water
aerodromes under UDAN 3.0. Even airlines seem upbeat on the future growth
prospects and continue to add more aircrafts to their fleets. Further, with sale of Jet
Airways and prospective addition of new airlines, aviation sector in India is expected
to grow in future.

Key developments at GMR Airports

During the first half of this financial year, GMR Group successfully completed the final
leg of strategic partnership transaction for our airport business with Groupe ADP,
France based Global Airport Operator, which is a testament to the inherent strength
of our Airport portfolio and also to the Group’s credibility and ability to reinvent itself
during difficult times. GMR Airports Limited is now jointly owned by GMR
Infrastructure Limited (51%) and Groupe ADP (49%), with GIL retaining
Management Control The money received from the deal has primarily been used for
reducing debt and to improve overall liquidity at the Group level.

Groupe ADP, formerly Aéroports de Paris or ADP (Paris Airports), is an international
airport operator based in Paris (France). Groupe ADP owns and manages Parisian
international airports Charles de Gaulle Airport, Orly Airport and Le Bourget Airport,
all gathered under the brand Paris Aéroport since 2016. Overall, the group managed
24 airports and 234.1 million passengers in 2019.

According to terms of the deal, GMR will retain management control over the airport
business with Groupe ADP having board representation at GAL and its key
subsidiaries. The strategic partnership is built on two-way exchange of expertise,
personnel, knowledge and market access. Passengers and other stakeholders will
also benefit immensely and thereby setting newer industry-defining benchmarks.

While ESG has been core to the ethos at GMR, we have renewed our efforts even
during the Covid Period to make sure that we continue to strive towards excellence.
In particular, our flagship Delhi Airport is setting new standards on the front of
environment safety and sustainability. Delhi Airport has now become Asia Pacific's
first Level 44+ (Transition) accredited airport announced by ACI Europe Annual




Assembly & Congress. Our focus on sustainability has won us accolades and awards
for almost all our operating assets across all business segments.

Leveraging its sustainability focus, DIAL also raised 450 Mn US$ Green Bond to
finance its’ expansion plans and refinance dollar bonds maturing in February 2022.
DIAL was able to do so as it was able to demonstrate the environment friendly nature
of its terminal expansion as also the carbon savings it will be able to achieve with the
construction of the Eastern Cross Taxiway (which is part of phase 3A expansion
project).

Further GMR has accelerated its innovation activities also, and has formally launched
GMR Innovex, a new platform for Innovation. GMR Innovex will create a structured
mechanism to build creative ideas, nurture and foster them, and build a Go-To-
Market strategy for all successful initiatives. It will facilitate startups with various
kinds of assistance like mentoring, access to resources, POC opportunities, help with
filing patents among others. The collaborators will have access to internal resources,
subject matter experts among others in an informal yet aesthetically set ambience
that unleashes creativity. The advantage that this exchange brings in is that
collaborators can also try their products/services at GMR Innovex across a very large
landscape of businesses like Airports, MRO, Cargo, Logistics, Infrastructure etc. With
a major focus on airports and with a broad array of industries under its span, GMR
Innovation Hub is interested in multitude of technologies like Video Analytics,
Machine-Vision, Blockchain, Drone-Tech, Smart Tagging, Contactless Technology,
RPA, EV, Autonomous, AR/VR, IoT and others.

Accelerated Digitalization - With the onset of COVID pandemic, safety of the
passengers travelling through our airports became of paramount importance.
Introduction of new concepts, initiatives, trials and technologies designed to enhance
the passengers’ safety took center stage. Accordingly, our airports introduced a
number of technology innovations / solutions addressed towards enhancing
passenger safety including surface sanitation and measuring systems, UV
disinfectants, air filtrations systems, passenger tracking systems, etc. Our airports
launched HOI, a dedicated AI-enabled app, which will help passengers on multiple
fronts including tracking their upcoming flights, getting real-time alerts about gate
changes, weather forecast at the destination, Indoor Navigation with Voice Guidance,
Contactless ordering and Gate delivery of foods and beverages, contactless shopping
solution, etc. The HOI App is available in multiple form factors such as a mobile app
for Android & I0S, Web app and Digital Self Order Kiosks at airports. By providing
contact-less solution at the airport, it helps reduce human interface and overcrowding
at the airport.

In lieu of travel restrictions and rules for all international passengers flying into India,
our Delhi Airport developed and deployed the Air Suvidha Portal, which facilitated the
process for all International Passengers coming to India to share relevant information
including their Testing and Vaccination details as required. This information formed
the basis for the pre-clearance given to passengers to facilitate their entry into the
country and reduce passenger waiting times at all Indian airports. Further all our
operating airports at Cebu, Delhi and Hyderabad took the lead in establishing RTPCR
testing facilities and delivering results in a matter of hours, thereby providing great
convenience to all passengers.




In Philippines at our CEBU airport, as a result of tight travel restrictions imposed by
the government and CEBU pre-dominantly being a tourist destination, recovery of air
traffic has been relatively slow. We expect traffic to pick up at CEBU with progress in
global vaccination drive and gradual unlocking by the local government.

At GMR Airports, our commitment to the cause of Nation building is through creation
of quality assets. We are proud to have been associated with land mark infrastructure
projects in India like Delhi and Hyderabad Airport. We will strive to continue
developing more such marquee infrastructure assets in service of the nation.

Risks and Concerns for the Company:

The aviation industry across the globe is facing an unprecedented situation due to
the COVID-19 outbreak. In India, a total shut down of all domestic and international
air travel was implemented since March 24, 2020 until May 25, 2020 when scheduled
domestic operations resumed. This resulted in near wipe out of passenger traffic
across airports in India. Domestic operations started with a cap of 30% of capacity
while international travel was restricted to special evacuation flights under the Vande
Bharat Mission of government of India. International traffic then took a gradual route
to recovery till March 2021 reaching to about 30% to 35% of pre-COVID level, while
domestic traffic reached about 70% to 75% of pre-COVID levels.

The resurgence of COVID-19 in April 2021 led to the reset of traffic to the minimum
level. Cargo volume recovery has been much stronger by comparison to pre-COVID
levels in FY 21 and the second wave has not made a significant impact. Based on the
estimates of various established agencies and looking at the current growth, the next
few months will continue to witness a gradual recovery in passenger traffic levels
unless we are hit with further waves of COVID-19. As per a recent estimate by IATA,
global passenger traffic level for the year 2021 could be nearly 48% lower than the
2019 level. However, further recovery of traffic may get affected with the resurgence
of COVID through additional waves.

Given that India has been a large domestic market, its’ recovery has been relatively
stronger as international travel has struggled across the world given restrictions
imposed by various governments. Further, given that air travel was established as a
safe mode of travel, it appeared to encourage many first time travelers to travel by
air. Further, despite the constrained capacity available, at both our airports we were
able to expand the network to cover destinations that were not covered earlier. This
is likely to further accelerate growth trends post recovery as new destinations and
flyers join the system.

The rapidly-evolving situation related to COVID-19 required a robust response by
airport operators to ensure the safety of passengers, staff, and operations at airports.
GMR is proud to mention that it has done exceedingly well in the current situation
and has proactively implemented contingency plans and adapted wherever needed
by developing new ones.

At GMR, we have looked at business continuity in the context of sustaining operations
(aircraft movements and passenger management), maintaining safe operating
conditions, and managing the financial sustainability of the airport with respect to
business resilience and crisis management for addressing a prolonged crisis. We have




considered the following four points regarding business continuity from an airport
system perspective:

e Operational continuity — Our Airport teams have worked ceaselessly during the
entire lockdown period to systematically prepare for a Safe and Reliable
experience post-lockdown with strong focus on health and sanitation across
passenger, partner and employee journey through the airport.

e Employee Safety - During this period, employee safety has been the utmost
priority to us and we have worked 24*7 with a dedicated team to cater to
employee’s needs related to but not limited to COVID testing, providing
medicines, travel support, hospitalization etc. We have provided free vaccination
for our employees and facilitated vaccination for all the aviation stakeholders at
our airports premises.

e Financial sustainability — Our Teams have been focused on cash conservation and
cost reduction through various interventions in our capital and operating
expenditure. An important part of the effort for long term sustainability has
involved stakeholder management with the various partners of our airport
business and policy advocacy to various Government agencies through industry
bodies.

¢ Organizational resilience — During this period of crisis, our teams have worked
seamlessly to introduce new systems and processes to ensure that the
organization continues to perform optimally while ensuring safety and well-being
of the employees and other partners of the organization. In particular, a new
work-from-home policy was introduced, while a number of measures were taken
at the work place to ensure continued safety and sanitation. Accordingly, IT
infrastructure and systems were strengthened to ensure protection of data in
these changed circumstances.

We have focused all our efforts towards facilitating a safe and reliable journey for our
passengers and are hopeful of a fast recovery of air traffic.

Opportunities and Threats:

We look forward to a COVID free world, where the opportunities for aviation sector
will be immense. Given the fact that air travel penetration in India is still quite low,
we believe that aviation sector in India remains attractive. Government has already
announced that 100 new airports are to be developed by 2024 under UDAN scheme.
Addition of these new airports will result in development of new routes and in turn
increase in air traffic. Our airports, being in metro cities will be in a great position to
capitalize on this new air traffic. Also, our airports at Delhi and Hyderabad are in
process of major capacity expansion, which will enable them to host this additional
air traffic. In addition, as government continues with privatization of existing airports,
investment opportunities in Indian aviation sector are immense. This has resulted in
entry of new players in the airport sector. However, given our extensive experience
in operating airports, we are well placed to judiciously capitalize on such investment
opportunities.

Further, on account of its strategic location in the cities, the real estate, available as
part of the concessions for our airports, continue to hold tremendous potential. We




intend to progressively realize value in our real estate asset portfolio by diversifying
the monetization models as well as the end use formats for development of these
assets to capture demand for a wide range of developments.

GMR Airport’s business is conceptualized as a platform with airport concessions being
the core and a range of adjacent businesses built around the same. The rich
experience over the past decade of operating in diverse markets world has given us
a unique understanding of business drivers and its various business adjacencies. We
have identified five key strategic business segments for GMR Airports - Duty-Free,
Cargo, Carpark, Service business and EPC / PMC business. As part of strategy, it is
planned to leverage not only the existing airports but also to expand into these
segments in external airports.

While growth opportunities for us are immense in a COVID free world, but the impact
of pandemic still looms. Till the time the pandemic fully dissipates, threat to air traffic
continues on account of lockdowns, travel restrictions, drop in travel confidence and
so on. However, given the long-term nature of the Airport concessions, we are
confident of strong growth post pandemic. The relatively stronger recovery after the
first wave as compared to many geographies has demonstrated the intrinsic resilience
of the Indian market.

Segment - wise performance:
Indira Gandhi International Airport (IGI) — Delhi Airport operated by DIAL

With the COVID-19 impacting the aviation sector, in FY 20-21 IGI handled 22.6 Mn
passengers and 0.74 MMT of cargo with substantial de-growth over last year. In FY21,
IGI Airport has expanded its International market share from 27% to 32% amongst
Indian airports. IGI Airport would continue to be the leading Airport among all Indian
airports in both passenger traffic and cargo handled. DIAL was once again recognized
as the Best Airport for service quality in the region by ACI and ‘Best Airport in India
and Central Asia’ by Skytrax.

DIAL's traffic has been heavily impacted by the travel restrictions imposed by the
central and various state governments and the severe impact of the 2" wave of
COVID cases in India. While the reduced traffic levels will affect DIAL in this fiscal,
we are looking forward to a strong recovery in traffic in second half of FY22 and
substantial recovery in FY 23. With increased pace of vaccination in India and gradual
decline of COVID cases, we feel that both domestic and international traffic will
achieve strong recovery. We are already seeing some green shoots of recovery post
second wave. It is important to note that there is no fundamental change in the value
drivers of the business. The impact from the COVID-19 outbreak on the business is
expected to be a short to medium-term blip followed by a good recovery further aided
by strong pent-up demand, especially from visiting friends and relatives (VFR) and
leisure travel, once the spread is contained. Despite the pandemic, we were able to
enhance the domestic connectivity within India by connecting to a number of new
destinations, and further our passenger surveys also show that a higher number of
first time passengers have started flying over the past year. These developments
should accelerate the passenger growth trends post pandemic recovery.

To overcome the crisis, DIAL has been putting efforts towards various fronts such as
Safe Flying and Passenger Experience, financial resilience, stakeholder engagement




and employee health & safety. DIAL has been continuously engaging with the state
and regulatory authority for several support measures and policy interventions and
we look forward to their consideration of these requests.

To repose faith in flying for passengers, DIAL has taken every necessary action and
will continue to do so. A recent survey at Delhi Airport tells that all the passengers
traveling to or from Delhi Airport, felt ‘absolutely safe’ to travel. This may be
substantiated with domestic recovery where IGIA had reached to around 70% of pre-
Covid level towards the end of FY21.

DIAL will continue with the necessary parts of expansion of its airside infrastructure
and terminal capacity as per the approved Master Development Plan in order to cater
to the future growth in passenger and air traffic. The Phase 3A expansion, which
includes, among others, expansion of Terminal 1 and Terminal 3, construction of a
fourth runway along with enhancement of airfields and construction of taxiways, will
expand IGIA capacity to around 100 Mn passengers annually.

DIAL continues to work with all stakeholders including the airlines to further establish
IGI Airport as an international hub airport for passengers and cargo. In line with this
goal, DIAL will continue to work for reopening key international destinations gradually
in accordance with the uplifting of international border restrictions. We will also
continue to work with international carriers to boost long haul flights as well as
dedicated freighters coming into Delhi.

DIAL has also made significant progress in achieving all approvals necessary for
progressing with the commercial real estate transaction with Bharti Realty after
securing the requisite approval from Delhi Urban Arts Commission (DUAC). This is an
important milestone in the further development of Aerocity as the premier Central
Business District (CBD) of the National Capital Region (NCR), and we expect to
progress this transaction further in FY 21-22.

With respect to regulatory updates for DIAL, AERA issued tariff order no 57/2020-21
for third control period on December 30, 2020 allowing DIAL to continue with
BAC+10% tariff for the balance period of third control period plus compensatory tariff
in lieu of Fuel Throughput Charges. The regulator has further confirmed the right of
DIAL to charge the minimum tariff of BAC+10% for the balance period of the
concession when the determined tariff is lower than BAC +10%. DIAL had also filed
an appeal against some of AERA’s decision in third control period order on January
29, 2021 with TDSAT.

Rajiv Gandhi International Airport (RGIA) - Hyderabad Airport operated by
GHIAL

Focus Areas for FY 2021-22

Despite the pandemic related challenges during the year, in FY 2020-21, RGIA
handled 8.1 million passengers, over 86,200 Air Traffic Movements (ATMs), and over
112,700 MT of cargo. With the emergence of new covid-19 variants and 2" wave of
the COVID-19 pandemic in the year FY 2020-21, traffic and revenues have been
impacted significantly across the global aviation value chain including India. With the
situation yet to return to normalcy, GHIAL will continue to maintain focus on financial




resilience and sustainability until traffic recovery through measures for cash
preservation and additional cash generation.

Recognizing our focus on sustainability, ACI bestowed us with Asia-Pacific Green
Airports Gold Recognition 2021. Further GHIAL was adjudged the ‘Best Regional
Airport in India and Central Asia’ by Skytrax.

During FY 22, GHIAL shall make all efforts to recover the passenger traffic with
proactive engagement with airlines, development of both domestic and international
routes.

During this period, a key focus area will be ensuring the health and wellbeing of
passengers, staff and all airport community stakeholders and to convey a clear
message to all that aviation remains the safest mode of transport.

As part of the capital expansion works, GHIAL has already commissioned the 4 Rapid
Exit Taxiways, completed the rehabilitation works of Main Runway in Q1 FY22. In the
balance part of the year, GHIAL intends to complete the construction of East Pier
straight portion and North East Apron. GHIAL would ensure seamless integration of
expansion with existing operations by following due procedures.

Given the strong business fundamentals, strategic and competitive advantages, and
initiatives to sustain and grow the business, GHIAL is well-positioned to return to the
growth path as soon as the situation resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic returns
to normalcy.

AERA, in case of Hyderabad Airport, issued consultation paper no 11/2021-22 on 2nd
July’2021 for third control period (FY'22 -FY’'26). The order on the subject matter is
expected by September 2021.

GMR Megawide Cebu Airport Corporation (GMCAC)

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a considerable impact on Mactan-Cebu
International Airport with annual traffic dropping significantly in CY 2020. The
passenger footfall for CY 2020 was recorded at ~2.7 Mn, constituting of ~1.9 Mn
Domestic passengers and ~0.8 Mn International passengers, thereby witnessing a
78% decline in overall traffic from CY 2019. COVID-19 has acted as a major deterrent
towards travel especially since ~2.4 Mn passenger footfall (~90% of the total CY
2020 footfall) was recorded in the first quarter in 2020.

Scheduled domestic services resumed in June, with traffic ramping up as travel
restrictions across the Philippines continue to be eased. MCIA has witnessed a
sequential increase in traffic, with the traffic recovery being led by domestic travel.
While in June 2020, MCIA was capturing ~3% of the monthly pre-covid traffic levels,
in March 2021, it captured ~8% of the monthly pre-covid traffic.

The airport handled several international repatriation and utility flights, working
closely with government stakeholders to ensure safe passage for Filipinos and
foreigners alike. Following the ban on scheduled international services since March
2020, the airport welcomed its first batch of overseas travelers in mid-July - a feat
made possible only by the establishment of a COVID-19 testing laboratory at the
airport, which is the first dedicated, airport-centric testing facility in the world. The
lab has a capacity of handling 3,000 RT-PCR tests a day, and till March 2021, the lab




successfully handled 41,300 returning Filipinos, with an average testing time of 15.6
hours, which is the fastest in the country.

With the loss of traffic, GMCAC undertook a debt restructuring exercise to avoid stress
on its cash flows. Along with this, GMCAC successfully rightsized the organization by
affecting a significant rationalization in outsourced and manpower expenses. The
combined demand for international (departure) and domestic (both departure and
arrival) travel at MCIA is being fulfilled from Terminal 1 starting November 2020
leading to savings of $0.07 Mn per month. Also, specific initiatives were undertaken
to reduce power, and water consumption leading to additional savings.

With domestic traffic on a sequential rise, coupled with on-going vaccinations and an
upcoming national election, and with Cebu’s international markets well on their way
to recovery, the Management is confident that traffic shall rebound sooner than in
other tourist-centric destinations. In addition to working with government
stakeholders to resume operations and drive tourism revival in Cebu, the focus of the
Management this year is to address COVID-related concerns i.e., building passenger
confidence and aid recovery, make the business leaner and more efficient through
zero-based costing and reducing operating costs, and ensure that the airport is ready
to embrace the new normal. GMCAC is also working with government to establish
policy framework to boost travel.

Crete International Airport

The consortium of GMR Airports and TERNA attained the concession commencement
date for the design, construction, financing, operation, maintenance of the new
international airport of Heraklion at Crete in Greece on February 6, 2020. The
concession period is 35 years including the design and construction phase of five
years.

Having attained the concession commencement, the design and construction
activities of the project are underway. Company has received significant portion of
land and also the entire state grant of Euro 180 million as envisaged under the
concession agreement. Contractor has mobilized requisite manpower and equipment.
Development and investigation studies are nearing completion. Site office and
warehouse has been constructed. Earthworks for the Airport Airside and connecting
Road networks have progressed well. All the works are being carried out with strict
adherence to CoVID-19 protocols and other safety measures. The Airport Company
has also received ISO 9001 certification in this year.

Overall EPC construction is progressing well and focus for the next year would be on
civil works and substantial construction of road network.

GMR Goa International Airport Limited (GGIAL)

At Goa Airport, Construction and Development works resumed at site in Feb 2020
post the reaffirmation of Environmental Clearance to the Project by Hon’ble Supreme
Court of India. The project has achieved Milestone III in terms of both financial and
physical progress within the agreed timelines as defined in Concession Agreement
and have achieved physical progress of 28.26% as of 31st March 2021.

As a result of delays due to COVID, the project COD has been further extended to
August 2022.




GMR Vishakhapatnam International Airport Limited (GVIAL)

We signed the concession agreement in June 2020 for Bhogapuram International
Airport in Andhra Pradesh. Preparatory works such as Aerial LIiDAR survey and soil
investigation have been completed since then. Developmental activities including
detailed design of the Airport are also currently in progress. Land acquisition by the
authority is in process. Construction works will commence after the Authority gives
the Right of way for entire land area.

Airport Land Development

On account of its strategic location in the cities, the real estate, available as part of
the concessions for our airports, continue to hold tremendous potential. At Delhi,
Aerocity is being developed as a Hospitality and Office led Global Business District
providing word-class social infrastructure and services to its users in a safe and
sustainable environment. Addition of new asset classes, continuous improvement of
infrastructure services and technology driven operational excellence remain key focus
areas in the future.

At our Hyderabad Airport City, the office leasing which saw a dip on account of Covid
seems to be picking up and more leasing is expected in the forthcoming year. The
Master Plan refresh at Hyderabad is expected to open up areas for development in a
strategic manner and monetization is likely to accelerate in the years ahead. In
addition to commercial office space, industrial and warehousing, hospitality, we
intend to open up new initiatives in the social infrastructure such as education,
healthcare, co-living, senior living, Innovation Hubs, Training facilities, etc.

We intend to progressively realize value in our real estate asset portfolio by
diversifying the monetization models as well as the end use formats for development
of these assets to capture demand for a wide range of developments. We intend to
use a combination of lease, self-development and joint development models targeting
developers and end-use customers respectively. Further, given the long term
economic growth prospects of India, we believe that with dissipation of COVID impact
and people rejoining offices, there will be an increase in demand for Grade A office
spaces. Similar trend may play out for other real estate asset classes. Our airport
real estate should definitely benefit in line with above macro trend.

Growth Outlook — New Opportunities

Though aviation sector has been going through unprecedented challenges this year
due to pandemic, however, at GMR Airports we have strategized to convert these
challenges into opportunities. Group’s resilience and agile strategies have been
helpful in navigating through the current pandemic and at the same time charter the
new growth territories.

In line with our larger strategy for airports business, we believe that Airport business
has huge underlying strength and it will continue to be the growth engine for the
Group. Now with combined expertise and reach of both GMR and ADP, we are
strategically much better placed to further scale up the airports business in Indian
and new foreign territories.

Domestically, GMR is actively pursuing opportunities for new airports as and when
they arise. In our immediate sight is the opportunity of next round of regional airports




privatization. Out of India, the Group is strategically focusing in promising
geographies of South Asia, South East Asia, Middle East, Africa, Eastern Europe and
Latin America. We are actively evaluating and participating in multiple airports
privatization opportunities in these geographies.

GMR Airports Business is conceptualized as a platform with airport concessions being
the core and a range of adjacent businesses built around the same. Our rich
experience over the past decade of operating in diverse markets in the developing
world has given us a unique understanding of drivers and a rich understanding of the
various adjacency businesses.

As a result, we pushed forward with Group’s vision to diversify and expand in the
airport adjacency space. We are currently evaluating multiple opportunities in the
cargo, duty free and services business across the geographies and believe that in the
short to medium term we will have more adjacency businesses to add to our overall
portfolio. We have created a richly experienced team at GMR Airports to drive our
vision for airport adjacencies.

We broke ground in this direction with launch of Kannur Duty Free operations in
February 2021, notwithstanding challenges due to the COVID pandemic. We also
evaluated duty free opportunities in Mumbai, Indonesia, South Korea, and other
geographies and this has enhanced the group’s understanding of international duty
free space.

At the same time, Group is also looking to unlock value from its existing non-aero
commercial businesses. This year, we launched a range of initiatives to enhance the
value creation in our non-aero businesses. As a first step, we have launched non-
aero Centre for Excellence (CoE) for duty-free and cargo businesses. Under the CoE
initiative, we are going to channel the collective non-aero wisdom of the group to
achieve commercial excellence.

As we look forward into post -COVID future, we have a robust pipeline of airports
and five strategic business units of adjacency opportunities and we believe that
they will add significant value to the Group and all stakeholders

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions And Operational
Performance

The standalone financial position as at March 31, 2021 and performance of the
Company the financial year ended on that date are discussed hereunder:

1. NON FINANCIAL ASSETS
1.1. Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

PPE has slightly decreased from Rs 2.27 crores as at March 31, 2020 to Rs 1.71
crores as at March 31, 2021 primarily due to depreciation / amortization charge
for the year.

1.2. Right of use asset

Right of use asset decreased from Rs 2.69 crores as at March 31, 2020 to Rs 1.97
crores due to depreciation / amortization charge for the year

1.3. Capital work-in-progress




Capital work-in-progress was Rs.0.84 crores as at March 31, 2020 which becomes
NIL as at March 31, 2021 due to transfer of business to GMR Kannur Duty Free
Services entity.

1.4. Current Tax Assets (Net)

Current Tax assets slightly increased from Rs. 28.82 crores as at March 31, 2020
to Rs. 28.91 crores as at March 31, 2021.

1.5 Other Non - financial Assets

Other non - financial assets increased from Rs. 14.12 crores as at March 31, 2020
to Rs. 31.99 crores as at March 31, 2021.

1.6 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Other non - financial assets increased from Rs. 62.59 crores as at March 31, 2020
to Rs. 105.96 crores as at March 31, 2021 on account of creation of deferred tax
on business losses

2. FINANCIAL ASSETS
2.1. Financial assets — Investments

Investments have decreased from Rs 22,959.08 crores as at March 31, 2020 to
Rs 21,988.16 crores as at March 31, 2021 primarily on account of loss of fair
valuation of equity investment and forex loss on OCD restatement. There was an
additional infusion of equity of Rs. 214.01 crores in subsidiaries and addition in
OCD’s of Rs. 110.22 crores s (net of forex loss)

2.2. Financial assets — Trade receivables

Trade receivables has decreased from Rs. 59.66 crores as at March 31, 2020 to
Rs 50.90 crores as at March 31, 2021.

2.3. Financial assets — Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents have increased from Rs 1.43 crores as at March 31,
2020 to Rs 12.42 crores as at March 31, 2021.

2.4. Financial assets - Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents increased from
Rs 7.58 crores as at March 31, 2020 to Rs 98.27 crores as at March 31, 2021
primarily due to placement of fixed deposit as margin against guarantee issued
for Crete airport and for other airports bids.

2.5 Loans

Loans have increased from Rs 430.25 crores as at March 31, 2020 to Rs 441.04
crores as at March 31, 2021.

2.6. Other financial assets

Other financial assets have decreased from Rs.32.05 crores as at March 31, 2020
to Rs 10.83 crores as at March 31, 2021.




3.

EQUITY

Total equity has increased from Rs 1328.39 crores as at March 31, 2020 to Rs
1406.67 crores as at March 31, 2021 primarily on account of issuance of
additional equity shares.

Other equity has decreased from Rs. 14,780.05 crores as at March 31, 2020 to
Rs. 14,184.90 crores as at March 31, 2021 primarily due to loss during the period
(Rs. 257.74 crores), loss on fair valuation of equity investments (Rs. 987.97
crores) and issue of Bonus CCPS B, C & D (Rs. 169.34 crores) and restatement
of CCPS A (91.52 crores). Other equity was increased by security premium of Rs,
921.72 crores received during the year on additional equity shares issued.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
4.1. Debt Securities

Debt Securities has decreased from Rs 3,276.86 crores as at March 31, 2020 to
Rs 3,060.43 crores as at March 31, 2021, primarily due to repayment of NCDs
including accrued interest and NCB issued during the year.

4.2. Lease Liabilities

Lease liabilities have slightly decreased from Rs 2.81 crores as at March 31, 2020
to Rs. 2.08 crores as at March 31,2021 .

4.3. Trade Payables

Trade payables have increased from Rs 21.69 crores as at March 31, 2020 to Rs
42.01 crores as at March 31, 2021 mainly due to provision of VPP & Special
Variable pay.

4.4. Other Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities have increased from Rs.183.31 crores as at March 31,
2020 to Rs 444.79 crores as at March 31, 2021, mainly due to issuance of Bonus
CCPS Class B, C & D and restatement of Bonus CCPS A.

NON - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
5.1. Provisions

Provisions have slightly decreased from Rs. 20.87 crores as at March 31, 2020 to
Rs. 20 crores as at March 31, 2021 in the normal course of business.

5.2. Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Deferred tax liability is Rs 3,599.21 crores as at March 31, 2021 (Rs. 3,944.72
crores as at March 31, 2020) decrease in deferred tax liabilities is primarily due
to decrease in fair value of equity investments.

5.30ther non-financial Liabilities

Other non-financial liabilities have decreased from Rs 42.68 crores as at March
31, 2020 to Rs 12.07 crores as at March 31, 2021 primarily due to reduction in
statutory liabilities.




6. OVERVIEW OF OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following table sets forth information with respect to our revenues, expenditure

and profits (loss) on a standalone basis:

(Rs. in Crores)

Particulars March 31. 2021 March 31.2020
Revenue from Operations
Interest Income 239.56 195.22
Dividend Income 10.20 95.46
Revenue from contracts with customers 98.78 103.53
Net gain on fair value changes 12.24 4.30
Other income 0.52 185.45
Total Income 361.30 583.96
Expenses
Oberatina and other administrative expenditure 125.59 48.99
Emblovee Benefit Expenses 16.88 25.10
Debreciation and amortization expenses 1.54 1.93
Finance costs 520.13 423.37
Total expenses 664.14 499.39
(Loss)/Profit before Tax (302.84) 84.57
Tax expenses/(income)
Current Tax (1.68) -
Deferred Tax Credit (43.42) 9.65
(Loss)/Profit for the period (A) (257.74) 74.92
Other comprehensive income for the year (B) 2437.56
(987.81)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1245.55 2512.48
(A+B)

7. INCOME

7.1 Interest Income from Loans and Investments

Interest income increased from Rs 195.22 crores in F.Y. 2020 to Rs. 239.56 crores
in F.Y. 2021 mainly due to increase in interest income from loans given to related

parties and exchange rate difference in OCDs




7.2 Dividend income

Income from Dividend has decreased from Rs. 95.46 crores in F.Y. 2020 to Rs.
10.20 crores in F.Y. 2021 due to non-receipt of dividend from material
subsidiaries.

7.3 Income on revenue contracts with customers

Income on revenue from contracts with customers decreased from Rs.103.53
crores in F.Y. 2020 to Rs. 98.78 crores in F.Y. 2021 primarily due to lower training
in aviation academy because of COVID - 19

7.4 Income from Fair value changes

Income from fair value has increased from Rs. 4.30 crores in F.Y. 2020 to Rs.
12.24 crores in F.Y. 2021 due to higher income earned from surplus funds
invested in mutual funds.

8. EXPENDITURE
8.1 Finance Cost

Increase in finance cost is mainly for higher interest on NCBs, additional interest
on NCDs and upfront & acquisition link fee amortized on NCBs.

8.2 Employee benefits expenses

The decrease in employee benefit costs from Rs.25.10 crores in March 20 to
Rs.16.88 crores in March 21 is mainly on cost reduction measures.

8.3 Other expenses

The increase in other expenses from Rs. 48 .99 Crores in March 20 to Rs. 125.59
crores in March 21 is mainly to net exchange differences on restatement of OCD’s
of Rs. 73.31 crores.

8.4 Tax expenses

Tax expense/ (credit) mainly comprises of current tax expense and deferred tax
expense / (credit). There is an increase in tax expenses/(credit) in March 21 of
(Rs. 54.74 crores) as compared to (Rs. 9.65 crores) in March 20 mainly due to
creation of deferred tax asset on business losses.

9. Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

The OCI decreased from Rs.2,437.56 crores in March 20 to (Rs.987.81 crores)
primarily on account of loss in fair valuation of equity investments.

Internal control systems and their adequacy:

The Company’s internal financial control framework has been established in
accordance with the COSO framework to ensure adequacy of design and operating
effectiveness of operational, financial and compliance controls. The effectiveness of
the internal controls is regularly reviewed and monitored by the Management
Assurance Group (MAG) during audits.

The Company has put adequate policies and procedures in place, which play a pivotal
role in deployment and monitoring of the internal controls. These controls and




processes have been embedded and integrated with SAP and/or other allied IT
applications, which have been implemented across all Group companies.

MAG continuously assesses opportunities for improvement in all business processes,
policies, systems and controls, provides its recommendations, which add value, and
improves overall organization’s operations and control effectiveness.

Respective Business/Company CEOs are responsible to ensure compliance with the
policies and procedures laid down by the management. As far as possible, emphasis
is placed on automation of controls within the process to minimize deviations and
exceptions. It helps the organization to accomplish its objectives by bringing a
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes. Process owners take responsibility
for implementation of measures to mitigate risks.

MAG is responsible for undertaking internal audits across the group and they are
assisted by outsourced audit firms. The internal audit scope covers inter alia, all
processes and functions, as per the annual audit plan reviewed and approved by the
Audit Committee in the beginning of every financial year.

In every quarterly Audit Committee of the Board, key audit issues including corrective
and preventive action plan along with action taken report on previous issues are
presented.

Material Developments in Human Resources:

COVID-19 pandemic has been one of the biggest challenge in recent times impacting
human lives and disrupting businesses in equal proportions. The primary focus of the
Company during FY 2021 was to ensure the health and wellbeing of the employees
and their families while ensuring minimum disruption to the business operations.
Utmost care has been taken to ensure that there is a sustained focus on
Strengthening HR Operations, Sustain People Processes and Support the overall
growth at Airport sector under such challenging times. There was a huge participation
of employees across several people initiatives including and not limited to Annual
Appraisal, Goal Settings, R&R, Skip Level meetings, Employee communication Town
Halls. Some of the key highlights of FY 2021 are given below:

(1)Focus on Covid Management:

While responding to the serious challenges imposed by the Covid Pandemic,
health and well-being of each of our employee and their families has been the
first priority of the Company. All the efforts taken, the policies making and
facilities that added basis every day new learning, is a pure reflection of our
values and beliefs. The group exhibited its values in all the actions executed
during this sensitive environment. Some employees safety and welfare
initiatives at Airport, Project Sites and Offices, are as below:
(a) Introduction of remote working policy ensuring that there is limited number
of employees in the office premises thereby reducing the chance of spread
of infection and ensuring business continuity.




(b) Proper care was taken to ensure the safety of the employees who are
working at offices, site offices and Airports by:

(i) Disinfection and sanitization of all work spaces, equipment and
employee vehicles periodically.

(ii) Frequent communication to employees on the health and safety
measures to be followed and by clear demarcations to ensure physical
distancing at work and associated areas.

(iii) Thermal screening at all entry points of offices to ensure 100% coverage
and screenings

(iv)To safeguard the interest of employees, their families and society at
large, company conducted weekly RTPCR exercise as a practice in the
company premises for all the employees who are attending regular
duties at office premises

(c) Corporate tie-ups are in place for employees and family members who are
impacted from COVID, having mild symptoms and are under home isolation
for treatment.

(d) 24X7, employee emergency help line is available across locations to cater
to any requirements of employees arising out restricted mobility and
administrative restrictions or their medical exigency.

(e) Vaccination of the employees and their family members is one of the key
priorities of the management. Vaccination drives have been undertaken
across locations to ensure maximum vaccination coverage.

() To ensure the mental wellbeing of the employees in some cases,
experienced counsellor is on board and the helpline number is accessible
for employees who are willing to talk and share. Lifestyle, household and
office related stress and issues has seen a generic surge during lockdown
periods thus the helpline is created to alleviate the mental stress arising
out of same.

(g) Frequent employee communication has been another key highlight of the
covid management scenario. The senior management via frequent CEO
Town Halls, Win Over Worries (Engaging sessions on how the business
works) has communicated frequently to the employees about the current
business scenario, seek feedback on the response on the crisis and overall
addressing of employees apprehensions

(h) We ensured close partnering with Contractors & stakeholders to ensure
health, safety & well-being measures for workers in our construction sites.

(2)Strategic Partnership with ADP:

In the middle of the pandemic the Partnership with ADP was solidified. Key
activities undertaken by the Company were as under:

(a) Strengthening the Organisation Structure of the and on-boarding of key
leaders.




(b) Closely working with ADP Team to ensure seamless experience by
supporting in:
(i) Policy benchmarking
(ii) Support during expatriation and on-boarding
(iii) Acculturation within GMR Ecosystem and familiarization with GMR

Values & Belief

(c) Working with ADP Team to create a framework to facilitate exchange of
talent between two companies which will enable two companies to leverage
the capabilities of their talents

(3)Learning & Development:

Learning at GMR Airports Level has been conducted under four umbrellas:

(a) Daksh: These focus on developing foundational work skills
(b) Nipun: Focusing on functional skills development

(c) Saksham: Focusing on Managerial Skills Development

(d) Netritva : Focusing on Leadership development

Over and above these initiatives Multi-Tier Leadership Development has been
taken place via Programs like: LEAP (at DIAL), CATAPULT (at GHIAL),
introduction of Project Management learning course (Airports Sector
Construction) and several knowledge sharing forums aimed to develop next
level of leaders. Participants are prepared to take on higher cross-functional
responsibilities and drive a high-performance culture in the organization. We
continued to build talent pipeline through our flagship cadre based program
‘Aarambh’, a structured initiative for Management Trainees & Graduate
Engineer Trainees.

We continued with the AAAE (American Association of Airport Executives)
Certified Member (C.M.) Program which is for individuals at all levels of airport
management to enhance their expertise in the field. This gives holistic training
and assessment of the individuals in Airport Operations, Maintenance, Finance
and Management.

Blue Ocean Strategy Workshop: The Purpose of this program was to focus on
creative and innovative mindset, not for just survival through a rapid recovery
of revenue, cash-flow and profitability in the short run, but also sustainability
in the long run. To aim at identification & creation of Blue Ocean Business
opportunities. 30 talented participants, in 10 cross-functional teams, went
through 6 days of simulation driven sessions working on 10 projects.

‘Being GMR' is a frontline training program for our colleagues in Guest Relations
& Passenger Experience areas, aimed to create delightful experience for
customers.




Apart from the above programs, we continued with ‘HARMONY’- a program
aimed towards enriching gender diversity & dialogue.

(4)Talent Management & Succession Development:

Talent Management & Succession development has been one of the key focus
of GMR Group. Continuing to the tradition, successors had been identified for
the identified critical roles across the businesses. In some cases the successors
had been elevated for the key roles in the upcoming business unit. This
reinforces the GMR Philosophy of promoting and developing its employees.

Benchmarking and improving our Organization Structure efficiencies is a
continuous journey aimed to provide the best value for our stakeholders. We
continued with this practice evolving newer insights.

(5)Talent Acquisition — (Internal Job Posting)

Talent Acquisition plays a key role in the company’s growth and development.
We aim to work with the best talents from the industry and to provide career
growth opportunities to the existing employees. During Covid crisis, primary
focus had been towards promoting the internal talents of the Company. This
has an added advantage of motivating the employees over and above reducing
the cost of external recruitment. We also on-boarded senior level talent in key
areas such as Smart City, Innovation, Passenger Experience etc.

(6)Employee Engagement & Recognition:

Employee engagement is a key focus area for the Group. Annual engagement
survey conducted across all the major business units to gauge the employee
sentiment during the pandemic. Frequent Town Halls, Skip level meetings were
also conducted to ensure continued communication with the management
during such challenging times. Appreciation of Frontline Employees via. ‘Covid
Warrior’s award, rewarding Employee of the Year and Star of the Month Award
keep employees motivated and optimistic during such challenging times.




Form No. AOC -1 Annexure -1

(Pursuant to First proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial of / i panies / joint ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries (Rs. in crore)
. . Turnover - Other ) Other Total % of
$.No Name of ths Subsidiary Reporting period ity Gl || qtipees || R || arpmnet| @amns f || P || Bowitm i | WO || o, [T o || cometmie | PO | it
currency Reserves Liabilities N taxation taxation taxation B OCI q g Dividend
Operations) income (OCI) income (Net) income $
1 GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited Aprl ('11223'2' N March INR 156.00 (14832) 240.22 23254 9.78 6020 @1.61) - @1.61) 020 - 0.20 (21.40) - 100%)
2 GMR Airport Developers Limited April 02'12(2)'2)21' March INR 10.20 60.09 157.48 87.19 14.85 14721 3284 8.27 2457 0.62 0.16 047 25.04 - 100%
3 GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited Aprl ('11223'2' N Mazch INR 378.00 1,755.06 10,723.85 8,590.79 972,57 44123 (230.04) (78.99) (151.05) (80.61) (43.58) (37.03) (188.08) - 63%
4 GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited April 02'12(2)'2)21' March INR 90.50 (15.92) 324.94 25036 31.46 87.08 1.27) 175 3.01) 0.14 - 0.14 (2.88) - 100%
5 GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited Aprl ('11223'2' N Mazch INR 51.60 (4.61) 213.48 16649 8.45 19.26 0.08 045 0.37) 0.03 - 0.03 (0.34) - 100%
6 Delhi International Aitport Limited April 013'12;2)21' March INR 2,450.00 10482 19,759.06 17,20424 121057 242347 (483.14) (165.73) (317.41) 199.63 69.86 12977 (187.64) - 64%
7 Delhi Acrotropolis Private Limited <55 April ('1%12‘2'?)‘2’ . March INR 0.10 ©0.16) B 0.06 B B . . B . - B . . 100%
8 Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited April 013'12;2)21' March INR 8144 (11.04) 174.56 10416 10.90 4816 (27.49) (6.24) (21.25) 0.08 0.02 0.06 (1.19) - 90%
) GMR Hyderabad Airport Power Distribution April 01, 2019 - March R
Limited *++* 31,2020 - - B - - - - B B B B B - B -
10 GMR Aero Technic Limited April 02'12(2)'2)21' March INR 0.10 0.01 0.65 0.54 - 047 0.32) 0.00) 0.32) - - - 0.32) - 100%)
11 GMR Air Cargo and Acrospace Engincering Limitcd| P! ('11223'2' N Mazch INR 473.83 (47153) 524.36 522.06 229 325.65 5.62 (0.06) 5.68 0.24 0.06 017 5.85 - 100%)
] . — Janwary 01, 2020 - } } N "
12 GMR Airpore Singapore Pre Limited (GASPL) @) # | 700 21 ) UsD 314 0.88 14.94 10.92 - 018 (18.82) - (18.82) 017 - 017 (18.66) - 100%
) January 01, 2020 -
13 GADL (Mautitius) Limited (2) Devember 31. 2020 UsD
14 GMR Airports (Mauritius) Limited (a) January 01, 2020 - USD 1.10 (1.08) 0.06 0.04 (3.04) (3.04) 0.09 0.09 (2.95 100%
MR Airports (Mauritius) Limited (3 Devembes 31,2020 . X . . - - ! - ! X - . 95) -
) o January 13, 2020 - ] L
15 GMR Airports Greece Single Member S.A. (b) Devember 31. 2020 Euro 0.22 (0.55) 0.09 0.42 - - 052 - ©0.52) 0.03) - (0.03) 0.55) - 100%
GMR Visakhapatnam International Airport Limited May 19, 2020 - _ ) _ »
16 p Maneh 31, 2020 INR 450 432 12.36 3.54 404 - 0.18) - ©0.18) - - - ©0.18) - 100%
November 25, 2020 -
7 3 rderaba Assets e ; ) . X .09 - - - ! - ! - - - . - 7
17 GMR Hyderabad Airport Assets Limited # Nawch 31, 2020 INR 0.10 ©.01) 0.09 ©0.01) ©0.01) ©0.01) 100%
GMR Nagpur International Airport Limited April 01, 2020 - March
18 ¢ . X . - - Y - - .
(GNIAL) # 31,2021 INR oot ©03) oot .03 .00 ©0.00) - ©0.00) - 100%
GMR Kannur Duty Free Services Limited April 01, 2020 - March
19 Y g . 14 . - 0.93 . - - -
(GKDFSL) 31,2021 INR 100 019 38 373 0 o1 (©0.11) - ©0.11) - 100%
01,2020 -
20 January 01, 7. 9. A - - .47 - .5 -
GMR International Airport BV (a) December 31, 2020 UsD 3 619.68) 1,860.74 217311 (133:47) (133.47) @53) 253 (13600 - 100%
April 01, 2020 - March
21 g 5 : 03. 05 - . 0 - -
GMR Goa International Airport Limited # 31,2021 INR 38450 (1512 80301 433.63 5 2D 001 (4.22) - (4.22) - 99.99%
» April 01, 2020 - March 5000
Delhi Duty Free Setvices Private Limited 31,2021 INR - 249.67 540.94 21127 - 27203 (39.58) 9.44) (30.14) 038 0.10 0.28 (29.86) - 66.93%

Notes:

1.The annual accounts of the Subsidiary Companies and the related detailed information will be made available to the members of the Company and the subsidiary companies seeking such information at any point of time.

The annual accounts of the subsidiary companies will also be kept for inspection by any member in the registered office and that of the subsidiary companies concerned.

2 * Investments except investment in Group entities (Subsidiaries / Joint ventures / Ass

4.+ Indicate

entities sold during the year

5. ##++ Dissolution of GMR Hyderabad Airport Power Distribution Limited, WEF March 13, 2021, consequent to striking off of the Compan
6. #*++Dissolution of GADL (Mauritius) Ltd, WEF December 25, 2020, consequent to striking off of the Company’s name by ROC.
THekix An application (Form STK-2) was made on August 11, 2020 with the Registrar of Companies (ROC), Delhi secking its approval for re

ates).

8. Details of reporting currency and the rate used in the preparation of consolidated financial statements.

For Conversion

Reporting Cutrency R - -
Average Rate (in Rs)| _ Closing Rate
a 740717 73.0700
b 84.9275 89.8375

9. # indicates the names of subsidiaries which are yet

to commence operations

108 Percentage of Shareholding Includes direct holding as well as indirect holding

For and on Behalf of GMR Aitports Limited

Sd/-
Grandhi Kiran
Kumar

Joint Managing
Dircctor & CEO
August 27, 2021

Vice Chairman
August 27, 2021

Sd/- Sd/-

G.R.K. Babu Sushil Kumar Dudeja

Chief Financial Officer  Company
August 27, 2021 Sccretary
August 27, 2021

s name by ROC-Telangana..

moval of name of the Company (i.e. Delhi Acrotropolis Private Limited) from the Register of Companies, being maintained by the ROC



Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and JointVentures

Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the l\fetwonh Profit / (Loss) for the |OCI for the year (Rs.
.. Reason why the attributable to . .
. company on the year end Description of how . . . year (Rs. in crore) in crore)
S No |[Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Latest audited = there is significant assoclate./]olnt Shareholding as
Balance sheet date Amount of Investment in : venture is not per latest . . n :
. . ) Extend of influence . . Considered in Considered in
Number in crore | Associates/Joint Venture . consolidated audited Balance S e
. Holding % Consolidation Consolidation
(Rs. in crore) Sheet
Associates
Holding more than
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal 20% Capital and
1 [Management India Private Limited 31-Mar-21 291 29.12 26.00% | Agreement NA 287.48 23.22 (0.08)
Holding more than
Travel Food Services (Delhi T3) 20% Capital and
2 |Private Limited 31-Mar-21 0.56 5.60 40.00% | Agreement NA 15.81 (2.22) 0.05
Holding more than
'TIM Delhi Airport Advertisement 20% Capital and
3 |Private Limited 31-Mar-21 0.92 9.22 49.90% | Agreement NA 78.03 111 0.05
Holding more than
20% Capital and
4 |DIGI Yatra Foundation 31-Mar-21 0.00 0.00 37.00% Agreement NA (0.65) - -
GMR Bajoli Holi Hydro Power 20% Capital and
5 |Private Limited # 31-Mar-21 10.83 108.33 20.14% Agreement NA 670.45 (0.95) 0.04
Holding more than
Delhi Aviation Services Private 20% Capital and
6 |Limited 31-Mar-21 1.25 12.50 50.00% | Agreement NA 45.04 5.66 (0.01)
Holding more than
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Private 20% Capital and
7 |Limited 31-Mar-21 4.26 42.64 26.00% Agreement NA 248.57 (3.23) (0.00)
GMR Logistics Park Private Limited Holding more than
#(Write a note wrt to date of became 20% Capital and
8 [associate) 31-Mar-21 1.77 17.72 30.00% | Agreement NA 58.40 (0.01) -
Holding more than
Laqshya Hyderabad Airport Media 20% Capital and
Private Limited 31-Mar-21 0.98 9.80 49.00% | Agreement NA 46.63 0.10 0.02
Holding more than
GMR Megawide Cebu Airport 20% Capital and
10 JCorporation December 31, 2020 213.38 1,726.66 40.00% | Agreement NA 1,241.22 (110.45) (0.02)
Holding more than
Heraklioncrete International Airport 20% Capital and
11 |[SA # December 31, 2020 3.79 235.29 21.64% Agreement NA 651.99 (0.08) -
Megawide GMR Construction
JV(Only agreement has been made,
12 |actual stake is not transfer yet) December 31, 2020 9.00 59.54 50.00% NA 62.51 - -
Holding more than
20% Capital and
13 |Mactan Travel Retail Group Co. December 31, 2020 7.00 10.50 50.00% | Agreement NA 15.33 (1.44) -
Holding more than
20% Capital and
14 |SSP-Mactan Cebu Corporation December 31, 2020 7.00 10.46 50.00% | Agreement NA 22.68 (2.34) -
1. # indicates the names of Joint ventures /Associates which ate yet to commence operations
2. %% Disposed off during the year
3. GMR Logistics Park Private Limited became Associate w.e.f. April 16, 2020.
For and on Behalf of GMR Airports Limited
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Grandhi Kiran Kumar G.B.S. Raju G.R.K. Babu Sushil Kumar Dudeja

Joint Managing Director & CEO
August 27, 2021

Vice Chairman
August 27, 2021

Chief Financial Officer
August 27, 2021

Company Secretary
August 27, 2021
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Annexure-III

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Report
[Pursuant to clause (0) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to
be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

The Company has a well-defined Policy on CSR as per the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
which covers the activities as prescribed under Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013. Owing to the average net
losses in the last three years, the Company was not required to spend any amount towards CSR Activities.
However, the various subsidiary companies have engaged in various CSR activities.

2. The Composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR"”) Committee is as under:

Sl. | Name of the Designation / Number of meetings | Number of meetings of
No. | Director Nature of of CSR Committee CSR Committee attended
Directorship held during the year | during the year
1 Mr. RSSLN Independent One (1) One (1)
Bhaskarudu Director
(Chairman of the
CSR Committee)
2 Mr. Srinivas Joint  Managing One (1) Zero (0)
Bommidala Director(Member
of the CSR
Committee)
3 | Mr. L. Prabhakara Rao | Whole time One (1) One (1)
Director
(Member of the
CSR Committee)




6.

7.

Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board
are disclosed on the website of the Company: https://www.gmrairports.com/investor.aspx?sec=3

Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014: Not Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
ear, if any:

Sl. No. | Financial| Amount Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any (in
Year available for | Rs)

setoff from
preceding
financial
years (in Rs)
1. 2020-21 Nil Nil

Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5):
Amount in Rs.

Financial Year Net Profits/ (Loss)

2017-18 5,27,00,000
2018-19 (2,61,98,00,000)
2019-20 (6,81,00,000)
Total Profit / (Loss) for 3 years (2,63,52,00,000)
Average Profit / (Loss) per year (87,84,00,000)

In view of the loss incurred by the Company during the financial year 2020-21, average of the three immediately
preceding financial years has resulted into loss calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
hence the Company was not statutorily required to contribute to CSR activities during the financial year 2020-21.


https://www.gmrairports.com/investor.aspx?sec=3

9.

However, the various subsidiaries and Associates of GAL were actively engaged in the CSR activities across
different locations where the GMR Group operates. The CSR spend of the subsidiaries and Associates of GAL for
the financial year 2020-21 was Rs. 24.40 Crore.

a
b.
o
d

(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: Not applicable

Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): NIL
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL
Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL
Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): NIL

Fund

Total Amount |Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the Amount transferred to any fund specified
Financial Total Amount transferred to under Schedule VII as per second proviso to
Year. (in Rs.) (Unspent CSR Account as per section section 135(5).

135(6).

Amount. Date of transfer. Name of the |Amount. Date of transfer.

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not Applicable

§1 (2) |(3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
Sl..Name| Item | Local | Location |[ProjectAmountAmoun| Amount Mode of Mode of
No|of the| from area of the |duratiolallocate|t spent|Transferr Implementati|Implementatio
Proje|the list|(Yes/N| project n d for |in the ed to on - Direct n - Through
ct of o) the |[current Unspent | (Yes/No). | Implementing
activiti project|financi CSR Agency
es in Stat| Distri (inRs.| al Account Nam CSR
Schedu e ct Lakh) | Year | for the e |Registrati
le VII (in Rs. |project as on
to the Lakh) per number.
Act




Section
135(6)
(in Rs.
Lakh).

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1|(2) ((3) (4) |(5) (6) (7) (8)
)
SI..Name| Item Local | Location of the Amount Mode of Mode of
N [of the| from area project. spent implementa| Implementation through
o.|Projec| the list | (Yes/ for the tion implementing agency.
t of No). project |- Direct
activities (in Lakh). | (Yes/No).
in
schedule State. |District. Name. CSR
VII to registration
the Act. Number.
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : NIL

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): NIL

g) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL

Sl.
No.

Particulars

Amount (in Rs.)




9.

(i) [Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) NTL

(ii) [Total amount spent for the Financial Year NIL

(iii) |Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NIL

(iv) |Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous|NIL
financial years, if any

(v) JAmount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] NIL

(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable

Sl.
No.

Year.

Preceding
Financial

Amount
transferred
to Unspent
CSR Account
under
section 135
(6) (in

Rs.)

Amount spent
in the

Amount transferred to any fund
specified under Schedule VII as
per section 135(6), if any.

Amount remaining
to be spent in
succeeding

reporting

Financial Year financial

(in Rs.). Name of Amount (in [Date of years. (in
the Fund |Rs). transfer. |Rs.)

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): Not

Applicable
(1)|(2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sl. |Projectt Name of | Financial Project |Total amount Amount Cumulative | Status of
No. 1ID. the Year in duration | allocated for spent on amount the project
Project. | which the the project | the project | spent at the -
project was (in Rs) in the end of Completed
commenced. reporting reporting /0ngoing
Financial Financial
Year Year
(in Rs) (in Rs.)




10.1In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired
through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): Not Applicable: NIL

Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s):

(a) Amount CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(b) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered,
their address etc.

(c) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the
capital asset).

11.In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three
Financial Years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount
in its Board report.

Not Applicable

For GMR Airports Limited For GMR Airports Limited
Sd/- Sd/-

R.S.S.L.N. Bhaskarudu Grandhi Kirankumar
Chairman, CSR Committee Joint Managing Director& CEO
Independent Director DIN No. 00061669

DIN No. 00058527

Date: May 27, 2021
Place: New Delhi



COMPANY SECRETARIES

“s Arun Kumar Gupta & Associates

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31*'MARCH, 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 1o.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Renumeration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

GMR AIRPORTS LIMITED

SKIP HOUSE;, 25/1, MUSEUM ROAD,
BANGALORE, KARNATAKA 560025

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of all applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by GMR AIRPORTS LIMITED
(hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the GMR AIRPORTS LIMITED's books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31t March, 2021 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made herecinafter. Other  material compliances are listed in
Annexure A attached to this report.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, registers, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by GMR AIRPORTS LIMITED for the financial year ended on
315 March, 2021, according to the provisions of:

()  The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made

thereunder;
(1) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder:

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and

Tel. : 011-45629812, Mobile : 9811835475, E-mail : csarungupta@gmail.com



(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘'SEBI Act'):-

a)
b)
)

d)

h)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable

The Securities and FExchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; Not Applicable

['he Securities and I'xchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulation, 2014; Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2016; Not Applicable; and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations,
2018; Not Applicable.

[ have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
(erstwhile Listing Agreement) entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock

Exchange Limited & National Stock Exchange of India Limited. (The Company was

listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) July 8, 2019 on issuance of denominated,
rated and listed Non-Convertible Bonds)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company

and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-

check basis, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to

the Company:

(a) The Income Tax Act, 1961;
(b) Goods and Service Tax (GST) Laws ;




(c) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (Chapter I1IB) read with the extant Master Circular

and prudential norms issucd by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI) and as applicable to a
systemically important non-deposit accepting core investment company registered with

RBI under section 45-1A of the RBI Act as a non-banking financial company.

Based on the information received and records maintained by the Company, I further
report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act., changes are as
follows:
(a) Appointment of Mr. Augustin De Romanet De Beaune as an Additional Non-
Executive Director of the Company.
(b) Appointment of Mr. Philippe Pascal as an Additional Non-Executive Director of
the Company.
(c) Appointment of Mr. Xavier Hurstel as an Additional Non-Executive Director of
the Company.
(d) Resignation of Mr. Gratien Georges Lucien Maire from the position of Non-
Executive Director of the Company.
(e) Resignation of Mr. Olivier Pierre Guichard from the position of Non-Executive

Director of the Company.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance (in the case of
meeting held on shorter notice, one independent Director was present in the meeting in
terms of the compliance of the Act) and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting. I further report that the Company has been
sending agenda notes to Directors as per the provisions contained in its Articles of
Association, which is in compliances with the provisions of the Act. Majority decision is
carried through while the dissenting member’s views, if any, are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.




4. Ifurther report that during the audit period:

(a) The Company in its Board meeting held on 24 December, 2020 allotted 1330 listed,
rated, redeemable, non-convertible Bonds of face value of Rs. 10,000,000/- each
fully paid up on private placement basis.

(b) The Company by way of Circular Resolution passed on July 7, 2020 allotted
50,801,774 Series B, 42,334,812 Series C and 76,202,661 Series D, non-cumulative
compulsorily convertible preference shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each by way of
Bonus issue.

(c) The Company by way of Circular Resolution passed on July 7, 2020 allotted
78,279,463 fully paid equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each by way of Private
Placement Basis.

(d) The Company has obtained consent of the Members by way of Special resolution in
its Extra Ordinary General meeting on the following dates:

(i) July 07, 2020: Following, are the resolutions:
» Approval for issuance of Series B, Series C and Series D Bonus CCPS.
e Approval for Alteration of Articles of Association of the Company.

e Approval for Issuance of Equity Shares on a Private Placement Basis.

(e) During the financial Year 2020-21, the Company has not made any Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) contribution, as based on the calculation of average net profits
of the Company during the three immediately preceding financial years viz. 2019-20,
2018-19 and 2017-18, the Company is not mandatory required to spent on CSR.

For ARUN KUMAR GUPTA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

@/
(ARUN'KUMAR GUPTA)

Proprietor
Membership No: F5551
Certificate of Practice No: 5086
UDIN: F005551C000748964

Place: Delhi
Date: 06/08/2021



Annexure ‘A’

Annexure to the Secretarial Audit Report

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the examinations carried

out by us and explanations furnished and representations made to us by the Company, its

officers and agents, | report that the Company has, during the financial year under review,
complied with the provisions of the Act, the Rules made there under and the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company with regard to:

10.
11.
12.
15.

14.
15.

Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary
entries therein;

Contracts, Common Seal, Registered Office and Publication of name of the Company;
Forms, Returns, Documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of
Companies, Regional Director, Central Government, and such other authorities;
Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Directors, Auditors and
Registrar of Companies;

Constitution of the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee;

Appointment, Re-appointment, Retirement of Directors including Whole-time
Directors and payment of remuneration is in compliance of the Act.

Shareholders have given their consent for the amendment in the articles of association
of the Company and various approvals for issuance of non-convertible bonds.
Disclosures requirements in respect of their eligibility for appointment, declaration of
their independence, compliance with the code of conduct for Directors of GMR
Airports Limited;

Related party transactions which were in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s
length basis and were placed before the Audit Committee for their review/approval
as and when required;

Appointment and remuneration of Statutory Auditors;

Notice of the meetings of the Board and Committees thereof;

Minutes of the meeting of the Board and Committees thereof;

Notice convening 28" Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2020 and the
Extra Ordinary General Meetings held during the year and holding of the meeting on
those date(s);

Minutes of General Meeting(s);

Approval of the Members, Board of Directors, Committees of the Board of Directors
and Government Authorities, wherever required;




16.

17.
18.
19.
20.
21.

Form of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020 as prescribed under part I of schedule
11 of the Companies Act, 2013 and requirements as to Profit & Loss Account for the
vear ended on that date are as per Part Il of the said schedule and the financial
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March, 2020 is in
conformity with the format prescribed under schedule V of the Act;

Report of the Board of Directors for the financial year ended March 31, 2020;

Annual Return as per the provisions of Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013;
Declaration and payment of dividend;

Borrowings and registration of charges;

Investment of Company’s funds and inter-corporate loans and investments.

33 3 o 0k o o
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Annexure - VI
Disclosure of Managerial Remuneration for
Financial Year ended March 31, 2021

a) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the company for the financial year:

Name of the Director (Mr./Mrs.) Ratio of Director's remuneration
to the median remuneration of
the employees of the Company
for the financial year

Mr. G. M. Rao, Chairman 0.02

Mr. G.B.S Raju ~ Vice Chairman 0.05

Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar - Managing 8.59

Director & CEO _

Mr. Srinivas Bommidala - Joint 8.39

Managing Director

Mr. I. Prabhakara Rao 3.26

Mr. K. Narayana Rao N.A

Mr. N. C. Sarabeswaran - Independent 0.19

Director*

Mr. R. S. S. L N. Bhaskarudu. - 0.20

Independent Director

Ms. Siva Kameswari Vissa - 0.19

Independent Director

Mr. Augustin de Romanet De Beaune N.A.

Mr. Philippe Pascal N.A.

Mr. Xavier Hurstel N.A.

The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the
financial year:

Name of the Director and Key Percentage increase/
Managerial Personnel (Mr./Mrs.) (decrease) in remuneration in
' the financial year

Mr. G. M. Rao, Chairman* -
Mr. G.B.S Raju - Vice Chairman¥* -
Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar - Managing 10%
Director & CEO :
Mr. Srinivas Bommidala - Joint 10%




Managing Director

Mr. I. Prabhakara Rao?

Mr. K. Narayana Rao

N.A.

Mr. N. C. Sarabeswaran - Independent
Director*

Mr. R. S. S. L. N. Bhaskarudu -
Independent Director*

Ms. Siva Kameswari  Vissa -
Independent Director*

Mr. Augustin de Romanet De Beaune

N.A.

Mr. Philippe Pascal

N.A.

Mr. Xavier Hurstel

N.A.

G.R.K. Babu - Chief Financial Officer?

Deepanjali Gulati - Company Secretary
* K

Saurabh Jain - Company Secretary***

*Sitting fees paid to the Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors. There is no

increase in sitting fees paid to Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors.

**Degpanjali Gulati has resigned from the position w.e.f July 31, 2020.

**¥Mr. Saurabh Jain was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company who had also

resigned w.e.f. close of working hours of February 26, 2021.

§ There is no change in the remuneration for FY 2020-21.

b) The percentage increase/{decrease) in the median remuneratlon of employees

c)

d)

in the financial year: 8.04%

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on March

31, 2021: 81 employees

Average percentile/percentage increase already made in the salaries of
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year, its
comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration,
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for

- increase in the managerial remuneration:

Average percentile/percentage increase already made in the salaries of

0.2%

‘employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year was




e)

Average percentile/percentage increase already made in the salaries of the
Managing Director/Executive Director of the Company in the last financial year
was. 10%.

Note: Salary of Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar - Joint Managing Director & CEQ and Mr. Srinivas
Boramidala - loint Managing Director of the Company was increased during the FY 2020-21 as
per the approval of Board of Directors & Shareholder as given in their respective meeting(s) and
as perthe HR policy of the Company.

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the
Company:

It is affirmed that the remuneration is as per the ‘Remuneration Policy for Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and other employees’ adopted by the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of
GMR Airports Limited

Grandhi Mallikarjuna Rao
Non-Executive Chairman
DIN: 00574243
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' : Annexure -~ VIII
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(A) Conservation of energy:

() The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: NA
(ii)  The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: NA
(iii) ~ The Capital Investment on Energy Conservation Equipment’s : NA

(B) Technology Absorption: |

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption : NA

(i) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution : NA

(iii)  in case of imported technology {imported during the last three years
reckoned from the beginning of the financlal year): NA

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development.: NA

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Information regarding the Foreign Exchange Earned in terms of actual inflows during
the year and the Foreign Exchange Qutflow during the year in terms of actual cutflow
is given in the Note 46 & 47 given in the Notes to Accounts of Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2021.

For and on behalf of the Board of
GMR Airports Limited

ﬂx»—f_____;—??

Grandhi Mallikarjuna R';::
Non-Executive Chairman
DIN : 00574243




Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
215t Fioor, DLF Square
Jacaranda Marg, DLF Phase |l
Gurugram - 122 002

India

T +81 124 462 B0G0
F+81 124 462 BOO1
indepandant Audttor's Report

To the Members of GMR Alrports Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial 8tatements
Qualifisd Opinion

. Wa have audiied the accompanying standalone financial statements of GMR Alrports Limited ("the Company’), which
comprise the Belance Sheat 2s at 21 March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensiva
Incoms), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary
of the significant accounting policles and other explanatory Information

» In our opinion and to e best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the affects
of the matter dascribed in the Basls for Gualifiad Opinlon section of our report, the aforesald siandalone financial
statements give the Information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) Inthe manner $o0 required and give a true
and falr view In conformity with the accourting principles generally accepted In Indla Including Indlan Accounting
Standards (Ind AS") spacifiad under saciion 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of tha Company a= at 31 March 2021,
and Hts profi{inciuding other comprehensive Incoma), Its cesh flows and the changes bn aquity for the year ended on
that date.

Basils for Qualified Opinlon

. As detalad In note 49 to the Standalone inancial statemants, the Company has lssued Bonus Compulsory Convartible
Preference Shares Series A, Beries B, Series C and Series D (hereinafter together referred as "Bonus CCPS") to
shareholders of the Company pursuant to the terms of the Shareholders' Agreement entared between the shareholders
of tha Company, the Company and Aéroports de Parle 8.A which are baing camiad at face value. In our opinlon, basis
the terms of such Bonus CCPS, the accounting treatment is not in eccordance with Ind AS 108, Financial Instruments,
as the liabllly towards thase Bonus CCPS should be recognisad st their fair value. Had the Company appliad the
appropriats accounting treatmant for thesa Bonus CCPS, 'Other equity’ would have bean lower by Rs. 1,271.34 cromes,
and ‘Other finencial limbilty’ would have been higher by Re, 1,271.34 crores as at 31 March 2021.

. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act, Ouwr
responsibiliies under thoss standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements saction of our report. Wa are Independent of the Company In accordance with the Code of Ethics
Issued by the Institute of Charered Accountants of india (“ICAI’) together with the sthical requinaments that are relevant
to our audlt of the financlal statements under the provisions of the Act and the nules thereunder, and we have fuliiled
our other ethical reapongibliities In accondance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. Wa balleve that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriste to provide a basis for our qualified opinion,

May Audht Mattar

Key sudit mathers are those matters that, In our professional judgment, were of mozt significance In our audlt of the
standalons financial statemants of the current parod. Thesa matiers were addrassad In the context of our audit of the
finmncial statements se & whole,-and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide & separate opinkon on
" Main Sl

In addition to the mmminﬂummﬂuﬂiﬁﬂw-ﬂhﬂ.mhmd&hminudthen‘nﬂerdamhad
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our repert.

Chanered Accountants



Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Key aucit matter

How our sudit addressed the key audit
maiher

node 11 and note 42 for tha related dsclosurss)

1. Fair valus messurament of Investments In eouity shares and sstimation of provigion on opticnaly
convartbhk debenturea (Refor nole 4.1 (b), note 4.1 () and note 4.1 {f} for the accounting pollcy and

As at 31 March 2021, tha Company has imestments in
unquoted agquity shares of its subsidiaries and joint vanture
amounting to INR 19,680.72 ¢crores which are camied af falr
value and imvestments in apltionally convertible debentures
('OCLY) of one of the subsldiary amounting to INR 2,168.65
crohas which are carmad at amortiasd cost

Determining the falr value of such unquoted Investmants
ahd the provisbon as par [nd AR 109 Financlal Instrumants’
on the OCDw iy determined by applying valuation
techniquas which has besn parformed by indapendant
valustion eparts, applying applicable  valuation
methodologies.

The determination of fair values/ provision on OCDs
imvoives significant menagement assumptions, juigements
and estimates which Include unobasrvabla Inputs such as
future cash flows and Judgments with respact to estimation
of passanger fraffic Al trafflc movement and rates, future
outcomes of ongoing Ilgations as detallad In nobs 59(b) of
the accompanying standslone financial statements.

The valusion of thess Nvasiments and determining
requinite prowivion for OCDs vas considered to be the aren
which required significant euditor sthention and was of most
signiicanca Inthe audi of standalona financial statemeanis
due fo the materiality of these vesiments to the
standalone financlal statements and complexdty Involved In
thas valuation of thase Inveaitmants and hance we hava
debermined this as & key audit matter for coarent year awdit,

We draw attenfion to note 598} of the accompanying
Standalona Financial Statements, which describes the
uncertalinfles dus to the outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic
and management's svalugtion of its impact on the
azsumptions underiying the vakiation of Investments in the
alport sector which are carmed af far valse In the
Standalones Financlal Statements a8 at the balance shest
date. Further, wa alto draw attantlon to nobe 53(b) In
ralation to carrying valus of Invasimants In tha subglidiaries
as menlioned in the aforsssid note, which e depandent
o the uncaraintias relating ko the fulere outcome of the
engoing mutters aw further desiyibed in the aioresmd noebe,

Owr sudit procedures to sssess the
reasonableness of fair veluston of equity
invastmants’ and provision on OCDs ncludad
the: following:

= Obtalned an understanding of managament's
processes and controls for determining the
fair value and provision and tested the design
and operating effectiveness of auch controls;

« Camiad out assessmant of forscasts of fubrs
cash flows prepared by the management,
avaluating the assumptons and estimates
ussd In such foracasts Includng sconomic
and financial data;

Evaluated the Company's valuatlon
methodology in determining the fair value of
the Investiment. In making this asssssment,
we also assessad tha professional
competencs, chleciivity and capablifies of
the wvalusion expsit engaged by the
managament;

»Engaped awdior's walustion experts to
ascariain the appropristanass of tha vakiation
mathadology inciuding the allocation made to
diITerenI: irvesiments and the concluded fuir
value;

« Engured the appropriatansas of the camying
value of these imvestments in the financial
sialemeants and the galn or losa necognised In
tha financial statemeants as a result of such
fair valuation;

= Compared the camying value of OCDs with
tha fair value and assessad ths adaquacy of
provision made for the OCDy;

= Ohtalnad appropriata management
reprasantations with respact to the underying
valuation raporl

» Assagsad the appropriatensss and adequacy
of related disclosures I the standalons
financlal statements In accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

Information other than the Financlal Statements and Auditor's Report therson

. The Company's Bowrd of Directors is resgioneible for the ofhver information, The other information comprises the

Information Included In the Annual Report but does not Include the standalone financial statemants and our awdiltor's
report thareon. The Annual Report Is axpacted to be made avallable to uz after the date of this sudiior's report

Charetred Accoulitants
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Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Our opinkon on the standalones financial statemants doss not cover the other Information and wa will not express any
form of assurance conclugion thereon.

in eonnection with our audit of tha standalons financlal statements, our reaponsibility Is to read the other Information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing »o, consiler whether the other information is materialiy
Inconslstant with the standalone finenclal statements or our knowledge obtained In the audh or otherwise appears o
ba mahsrially mizatatsd.

When wa read the Annual Report, If we conclude that thera |s & material mizstaternent therain, we are required to
communicats the matter to thosa charged with govermance.

Reaponsibiifiea of Management and Thoss Chargad with Govemance for the Standalone Financial
Stetemonts

The sccompanying standaions financial statements have bean approved by the Company’s Boand of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Direciors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(6) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of thesa standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
parformanca Including othar comprahansive Incoms, changss In squity and cash flows of tha Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally sccepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also Includes mainisnance of adequats accounting records in accordance with the provialona of the
Act for safeguarding of the assats of the Company and fir préventing and detecling frauds and other imegularities;
selection and application of appropriate sccounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are ressonable and
prudent; and design, Implamentation and maintenance of adaquate intemal financial controls, that wsrs operating
efiectively for ensuring the accurscy and completensss of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
m“‘r;l"l of the financial statemnents that give & true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to or afTor.

in preparing the financlal stetements, management = responsible for azsessing the Company’s abllity to continue as
a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concam and using the going concem basls of
wccounting unless management either intends o liguidats the Company or fo cease operations, or has o realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors |s also responslble for oversesing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibliities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Cur objectives are to obtaln reasonabla assumance about whather the financial statemants ag a whola are frea from
material misstaternent, whether dus to fraud or error, and to issue an suditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurancs, but is not a guarantee that an sudit conducted In accomdanca with
Standards on Auditing will slways detect a material misstatement when it sxists. Misstatements can ariss from fraud
or smor and are considerad material if, individually or in the aggregate, they couki reesonably be sxpected to influence
the aconomic dacislons of usera takan on the basls of thesa financial siataments.

12. As part of an sudit in sccordance with Standards on Auditing, we sxercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skapticlam throughout the audit. We also:

+  [dentify and assess the risis of material misstatement of the financial stabements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and oblain audit evidence that is suficlent and
appropriate to provide a basls for our opindon. The risk of not detecting & material misstetement resuiting from
fraud is higher than for one resulfing from smmor, as fraud may invoive collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepragentations, or the override of internal control

+ Obtain an understarxiing of internal confrol relevant to the wudit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriste In the circumstance. Under section 143{3)(]) of the Act, we are also responaible for axpressing our
opinion on whether iw Company has sdequaie intemal financial controls with reference to financis! stetements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controla.

Chanered Accountants
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14.

16.

16.

17.

18.

Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

* Evaluate the approprinteness of accounting policies used and the reasonebleness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropristeness of mansgement's use of the going concem basie of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exdsts related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ablity b conlinua as a going concem. If wa concluda that a material
uncertminty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report o the related disclosures in the financial
stataments or, If such disciosurss are Inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions ane basad on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. Howewer, fulure events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to confinue as & going concem,

» Evaluste the overall presentation, struchure and content of the financial statemants, inciuding the disclosurss, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying fransactions and events in & manner that achieves fair
presantation.

We communicate with those chamged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of tha audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficlancles In Intemal conirol that we identify during
our sudit

We also provide thosa chamged with govemance with a sislement that we have compled with relevant ethical
regquirsments regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relstionships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our iIndepandence, and where applicable, related safegusrds.

From the matiters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine tho=e makiers that were of most
significance In the audit of the financial stalaments of the cumanl perdod and are tharefore the key audlit matiers. Vs
describe these matiers in our auditor's report unless liw or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in exiremely rare crcumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because

the advarse consaquances of doing 20 wolld reasonably be expactad to outwelgh the public Interest banefits of auch
communication.

Report on Other Lagal and Ragulatory Requiramsiits

As required by section 187(18) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has pald remuneration to
Its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits lald down under saction 197 raad with
Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditar's Repert) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) lssued by the Central Government of Indie
inu;ugﬂ::dinn 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the malters specified in paragraphs
3and4 Order.

Further to cur comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the
extent applicable, that

i) we have sought and obtalned all the Information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belaf
were nacassary for the purposs of our audit of the accompanying standslone financial stataments;

b} except for the effects of tha matter deacribad In the Basis for Qualified Opinlon saction, In our opinion, proper
books of account as required by kaw have basen kapt by the Company so far as it appears from our sxamination
of thome books and proper returns adequate for the purpesas of our sudit have been recaived from the branches
not visitad by us;

¢) the slandalone financial stataments dealt with by this report are In agreament with the books of sccount,

d) excspt for the effacls of the 'mm':l.ar.'dmﬂhad In the Basls for Qualified Opindon sactlon, In our opinion, the
sforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act;

g) the matter described in' paragraph 3 under the Basis for Qualified Opinion s&ction, in our opinion, may hive an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;
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f) on the basis of the written represeniations received from the directors snd tmken on record by the Board of
Directors, nona of the dinactors |3 dsqualfiad az on 31 March 2021 from belng appeintad as a director In tarms

of section 184(2) of the Act

g we have algo audited the intemal financlal conirols with refersnce to finsnclal statements of the Company as on
A1 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
endad on that date and aur report dated 31 May 2021 as par Annexura B axpraszad modiflad opinien; and

h) with respact to the other matters to bs Included In the Audlior's Report In sccordance with rule 11 of the Companles
{Audit and Audiiors} Rules, 2014 {az amendad), In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according

o the explenalions given to us:

. sxcept for the sffact of the matter dascribed In paragraph 3 of the Basls for Qualifisd Opinlon saction, tha
standalone financial sisterments, as detailed in Note 38{i), disclose the impact of panding |tigations on the
standalone financlal poaltion of the Company as at 31 karch 2021;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contrechs including derivetive contrects for which thers were any
material foresasable lopaes as at 31 March 2021;

jiil. thers wem no amounts which wen required to be transfermed to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021;

k. the disclosure nequirements relating to holdings as well a9 dealings In spacifled bank notes wene applicable
for the pariod from 8 Nowambar 2016 to 30 Decamber 2018, which are not ralevant to thess standalons

fnancial stetements, Henee, reporting wuncer this cause is not applicable.

For Wallesr Chandiok & Co LLP

Chertered Accountants
Firm's Reglstration No.: 001076N/NE00013

A Le—.

Anamiira Das

Pariner

Mamber=hlp No.: 0521581
UDIN: 21062 191AAAAIHEBEE

Plsce: Gunigram
Date: 31 May 2021
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Annaxume A to the Indepsndent Auditor's Report of sven dabe to the mambers of GHMR Alrports Limitsd, on
the standaione financial statements for the year snded 31 March 2021

Annexure A

Basad on the audit procaduras parformed for the purpose of raporting a trus and falr view on the financial statemants
of the Company and taking into consideration the informudion and explanations given to us and the bookes of account
and other records examined by us in the normal course of sudit, and to the best of our knowledge and bellef, we report
that

{l) {(a) The Company has maintalnad proper racords showing full particulars, including quantitative detaills and
sltuation of fixed assets.

{b) All fixed assats have not besn physically verifled by the management during the year, however, there
Is a regular program of verification once In three years, which, In our opinion, Is reasonable having
ragard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticad
on such varificatian.

(c) The Gtle deeds of all the immovable propertiss (which are included under the head ‘right to use assaty’
) ara held In the name of the Company.

(i) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are
not applicable.

{{1}] The Company has not granted any loan, sscured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Limbility
Partnerships {LLPs) or other partias coversd In the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3{iii}a), 3iii)(b) and 3{iiii{c} of the Order are not applicable,

(] In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Seclions 185 and 186 of the Act In respect
of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

(v) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any dsposits within the meaning of Sectlons 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposity) Rules, 2014 (a3 amended). Accordingly, the
provislona of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

{vi)The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost recorde under sub-section {1} of Section
148 of the Act, In reapact of Company's services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{vi) of the
Order are not applicable.

{vil}{a) The Company |a regular In dapositing undisputed statutory dues Inciuding provident fund, employaes’
state Insurance, Income-tax, sales-tax, ssrvice tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, valus added tax,
czes and other material stwhdory dues, as applicable, to the appropriate authorities. Further, no
undlsputed amounts payable In reapsct thareof wers outstanding at the year-end for a peried of mona
than six months from the date they become payable,

{b) The dues outstanding In respact of Income-iax, sales-tax, sarvice-tax, duty of customs, duty of excisa
and value added tax on sccount of any dispute, are as follows:
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of GHMR Alrports Limited, on

the standalons financial stafemanta for the ysar snded 31 March 2021

Statement of Dispuied Duss
Nambs of Mahirs of Amount | Amount pald Pariod to Forum whars
the statute | dues Xin under Protest | whikhthe |dspulsls
Crorea) | {(¥)(inCrores) | mmount pending
ralates
Income-tax | Income-tax 2340 048 | Assessment | Commissioner
Act, 1981 yaar 2016- | Income-iax
17 ADDaalE
Nams of Naturs of Amount | Amount pald | Pericdta | Forum where
the statirte | dues (e, ] under Protest | whichthe | disputels
Crares) | {)(InCrores) | mmount panding
rolates
incometax | Income-tax 256.23 2052 | Assssament | Commisalonar
Act, 1961 yoar 2017- | Income-tax
18 Appeals
Tha Financa | Service Tax 418 - | April 2014 - | Tha
Act, 1984 July 2017 Commissioner

{vill) The Company has not defaulted In repayment of debentures during the year. The Company did not have

®)

g B 8 B

E;

alfered

any outstanding loans or borrowings to any bank or financial instiuion or govermmeant during the year.

The Company did not ralee moneys by way of inlitsl public offer or further public offer {including debt
Insiruments) and did not have any harm Inans outstanding during the ysar. Ascordingly, the provislons of
clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable,

No fraud by the Company or on the company by Hs officars or smpioyses has bsen noticad or reported during
the period covered by our audit.

Managerial remuneration has besn pald (andy provided by the company In accordance with the requists
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion, tha Company s not a Nidhl Company. Accordingly, provisions of ciauss 3(dl) of the Onder ars
not applicable,

In our apinion all transactions with the related parties are in complisnce with Sections 177 and 188 of Act, where
, @nd the requisite detalls have been disclosed In the financial statements sic., as required by the

appiicable
applicable Ind AS.

During the year, the company has made private placement of shares. |n respect of the same, In our opinion, the
company has compllad with the requiramant of Section 42 of tha Act and the Rules framed tharaunder. Further,
in our epinion, the amounts so raised have been used for the purposes for which the funde were raised, During
the year, the company did not make preferential allotment/ private placement of fully/partly convertible
debaniuras.

in gur opinlen, the company has not enterad Into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons
connactad with them coverad under Ssction 182 of the Act.

AcCountants



Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Annaxuns A toths Indapandsnt Audibor's Report of evan date to the mambers of GHR Alrporis Limited, on
the stancialons financial statements for the year sided 31 Barch 2021

fxvi) The compary in required ta be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and such
reglsiraion has baen obtalned by the company.

For Walkear Chandiok & Co LLP
Chertered Accountarrte
Firm's Reqlsiration No.: 001078N/NS00D13

Alle

Aramitra Des
Pariner
Mambarshlp Na.: 082191

Place: Delhi
Data: 31 May 2021
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Annexurs [l

Anneore Il to the Independent Auditor's Report of even debe o the members of GMR Alrporte Limiked, an the
standalona financlal statementa for the year andad 31 March 2021

indapandant Auditor'a Report on the Intamal financial controla with reference to financlal stxismente under
Clauss () of Sub-asction 3 of Saction 143 of the Companlea Act, 2013 ('the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our awdit of the standalone financlal statements of GMR Alrports Limited {'the Comparmy”)
as at and for the year endad 31 March 2021, wa have audied ths Intermal financial conirals with refersnce to financial
staternents of the Company we &t tart cabe,

Respanalbiiities of Management and Thoss Chargad with Govemnancs for Intsmal Financial Controls

2. The Company's Board of Directors |s reaponsible for establishing and maintaining Intemal finenclal controls
basad on the intemnal financial controls with referance to financial siatemants criteria establishad by the Company
congidering the epsertial companents of intemal control stated in the Guidance Mobe on Audit of Internad Financial
Controls over Financlal Reporting (‘the Guldanca Nota”) Issued by the Instiute of Chartered Accountants of india {the
'ICAI'. Thesa responshiitles Include the design, Implemantation and maintenance of adequata Intemal financial
controle thet were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly ard efficient conduct of the Comparmy’s business,
Including adherence to the Company’s policles, the safeguarding of lts asests, the prevention and detection of fmu:ls
and emors, the aceurscy and complatanase of tha accounting racords, and the maly preparalion of rallabis financlal
information, a3 eequired under the Act.

Audior's RasponsBility for the Al of tha niamal Financlsl Canfrale with Rafamnes 6 Financial Matamania

3. Our responsbility I3 to express an opinion on the Company's intamal financial conirole with reference to
financisl ststements based on our audit We conducted our audit in acconiance with the Standards on Audiiing lssued
by the Inslitute of Chartered Accountanis of India (1CAI" prescribed under Section 143(10} of the Act, to the extent
applicabla to an audit of Intemal financlal controls with reference to financlal statements, and the Guidanca Note on
Audit of Interngl Finanglal Controls Ower Financiel Reporting (‘the Guldance Note'} lssusd by the ICAL Thase
Standardws and e Suidance Note requine that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and parform the awdit to
cbtain reasonabla assurance about wheiher adagquate Intemal financial controls with refarence to financial statements
wers aftablished and maintained and I such controls operated sffactively In &l materal respects.

4, Cur sudit imeolves parforming procedurss to obtain audit evidencs shout the sdequacy of the intermal financial
controls with refarence to financial statemants and thedr operating effectivenaszs. Our audit of Internal financial controls
with reference to finwncial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such intemal financial controle, ussessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and opemting effectiveness of intemal
control basad on the asseasad risk. The procadures selactad depend on the awitior's judgament, Including the
wssasemant of the rieks of matersl misstatament of the financlal sistements, whether dua to fraud or srmor.

5. Wa belipve that the audit svidence we have obieined i sufficlent and appropriets to provide & basis for our
qualifled audit epinkon on the Company’s Intemal financial conirols with referenca to financlal statemants.
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Audlior's Report of sven date to the members of GMR Alrporta Limied, on the
standalons financial ststamaents for the yaar ended 31 March 2021

Meaning of Intsmal Financial Conirols with Reference to Financial Statements

g8. A company's Intemal financial controls with referance to financial statemenis I= & process designed to provide
reasonable aasirance ragarding tha raliabliity of financial reporting and tha praparaiion of financial siatemants for
extarngl purposas In accordance with generally sccepted accounting principles. A company's iIntamal financial controls
with reference te financlal statemerts Include thosa policles and procadunes that {1) pertain to the malntenance of
recorde that, In reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflact the frantactions and disposiiions of the assets of tha
company; (2) provide regsonabke sesurance thut ransections we recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
finenclal statemants In accordance with generally accepiad accounting princlples, and that recelpts and expenditures
of the company are being mada only In accondance with authorisetions of mansgemant and directors of the company;
ard {3} provide ressoruble wssurance reganding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, uee, or
disposiiion of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financlal statemants.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal CGontrols with Reference to Finenclal Sintements

7 Becausa of the Inherent Imitations of Intermnal financial condrols with refarence to financial satemants, including
the powsibility of collesion or mproper management override of controls, material misslaterments due to ermor or fraud
may ococur and not be detected. Also, projactions of any evaluation of the Intarnal financial controle with referance te
financial statamsnts to fsturs pariods are siub|ect to the risk that the Intermal financial controls with refarsnce to financlal
statemenis may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procaduras may datarlorate.

Qualified opinion

5, Acconding to the information and explanations given 1o ue amkl based on our eudit, the following maberial
weakness hes bzen observed in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s intemnal financial controls with reference
to financlal statemants as at 31 March 2021:

The Company’s intemnal financlal control systern owver fair valuea measurement of He llabllty relating to Bonus
Compulsorily Converible Preference Shares Series A, Series B, Series C and Series D {iogether hersinafter refermad
s ‘Banus CCPSY), ae fully explained in note 48 to the standalone finencial stabements, were not operating effecively,
which has resulted In such Bonus CCPS not being measured at thalr falr value In accordance with tha applicable
eccounting standards, and il coneequentinl impact on the accompanying standalone financial stedements.

9. A 'material weakness' Is a deflclency, or a combination of deficlencles, In Intemnal financial controls with
rafaranca te financial atatemants, such that thers |3 a reasonable posaibliity that & matarial misstatemant of tha
company's annual or interim finencial statements will not be preventad or detected on a timely basis.

14. In our opinion, the Company have maintained, in all materlal respects, adequate Intemnal financlal controls with
refarence to finpnclal statements as ot 31 March 2021, basad on the Internal financlal confrols with referance o
financial statememnts criterin established by the Company considering the essential components of imternal control
stated In the Guidance Note Issued by the ICAI, and except for the eflfacts of the matarial weakness described above
on the achlevement of the objectives of the control criterts, the Company’s Intemal finencial controls with referance 1o
finenclal statemants were opersting effectively a= at 31 March 2021.
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Annaxure § to the Independant Auditor's Report of aven data to the members of GMR Alrporta Limitad, on the
standalons financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

11.  We have considared tha matartal weaknaas |dentifled and reportad above In determining the nature, timing,

wrrd exctent of audit tests applied in our sudit of the standalone financial sttements of the Company as ot and for the
year ended 31 March 2021, and the material weakness have affectad our opinion on the standalone financial
atataments of tha Company and we have lssusd a modified opinlon on the standalone financlal statemanta.

For Waler Chandiok & Co LLP
Chertered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 00 1078NMNE00013

Alle—.

Anamitra Das

Parinar

Membership No.: 082191
UDIN: 21082191AAAAIHEREE
Placs: Gurugram

Date: 31 May 2021
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AR Alrmarte Limited

CIN: US9OKAIY9IPLCO3IT4SS
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021

{A Ml amount in Rupees crores except for share data unless stated otherwise)

o As at As i
i Natia 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Assals
Fimancial assets

Cash and cash equivalents T 1242 143
Hank balance ather than cash and cash equivalents ] NI 738
Trade Receivables @ 50,90 .66
Lomns 10 441 430,25
Invesiments 11 11,958,156 22 95%.08
Other financial assss Iz 0.3 3203
Noo- financal assets
Curreni tax asseds {net) 891 2882
Deferred tax assets {net) 15 1546 62.59
Property, plant and squipment 14A 1.7 227
Right of Use - Assels 14B 197 269
Capital work in progress Hc - 0,84
Other noa- fioancinl pacty 13 31.9% 14,12
Tivtil Assets 1177216 23,601.38
Liahilities
Finencial Eahilities
Trade Payables 16

(i) tatnl owstanding dues of micro enlerprises and .78 0,09

small enterprises

{iiy total cutstanding dues of creditors other than 16 nn 21.60

micro enterprises and small enterprises

Dichi Becurttica 17 3060.43 127686

Lease liabilities 19 2.8 281

Othar financial lizhilities 1% 444.70 18331
Nom fimancial linbilitics

Provisions 10 20.00 10.87

Deferred tax liabilitics {net) 158 3,599.11 3,944,72

Diher Non-fnonsial Liakitilies | 12.07 4268

Total Lisbilifies 7,1R0.5% 7,452 94
Equity

Equity ghare capital 17 1,406.67 132839

ithae papiny ik 14,184.90 14, 780,03
Totul Equity 15.591.57 16,108 44
Tetal Liabilities and Equity EE.'”&“‘ 21,60 I_!E

Somumeary of sipoificant sccounting policies {refer note 4)

The sccompanying notes are an integral par of these Standnlone financin] siatements.

As por our repont of oven dete

For Walker Chandiok & Co, LLP

Chanered Accountants

Firm registration rumber: 001076M/M 300013

Ale—

Anymitrs Dag
Partner
Membership No,: 062191

Place:
Daie: 31 May 2021

For and on bebalf of the

GMR Alrpoyls Y imited

Crandhi Khln)&ﬁl:’/

Jt Managing Directer & CEO
DIN:- 00061669

PN - ACAPGZ146H

Placo:

Late: 31 May 2021

of Directars of

~m



GMH Airports Limbicd
CIN: UaS99KA1 I PLCISTISS
Stnndulone Stetement of profit snd loss for the year ended 31 March 2021

und in crores for share dain unless staied
¥ewr ended Year ended

P Nt 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Revenue from speraiom

Interest income M 139.58 195.22

Lxividend Incomme 5 1020 9546

Revenue from contracts with ceslomers 26 98.78 103 53

Nt guin oo fdr vidue chian pes 7 13,24 4.0
Total revenus from operations 360,78 0851
Oither Income 28 [ €] 18545
Total Income 36130 5396
Eupemies

Fimance Coatt m 520.13 423,37

Emgploves benefits axpenses 16.58 25.10

Deprecistion expense u 154 L9

Other expenses 135.59 48.90
Total [Expenses E6L14 400,39
(LosspProfit before tox (3L54) B4.57

Tan Fupenee 33

{1} Comrent Tan (1.68) -

(2) Deferred Tax credit (LR ] 965
{LossProfit for the period 35774 7492
Ohber Comprehensive Income 14

Tiems that will not e recinssifed to protit or kess

Re-insamacned gabnhosen] vl diined benefls plass 0 (0.24)

Livcowise lan fempei (0.05) D06

(Loss) un oyuity instrumens designinsd st FYOCH for the year (st {1.334,4%) 1ldd a3

[ncome 1 impact 145,51 {767.08)
Other Comprelessive Income (98751} 143756
Tuesl Compreaensive incame (1,245.5%5) 151248
(Loss) per equity share 15

Basic (R, (1.86) 0,46

Dilutad (Rs,) (1.86) 0,46

MNeomimal valua par shars (Ra.) 1 10,00

Summary of significant aceaunting policies (nfer note 4)

The accompenying notes are an integral pani of (rese Soandalone fnancial satements,

As per ogr repart of even dae

For Walker Chandlok & Ca, LLF
Chariered Accouniants
Firm regstration number: 001 0TGNMNS00013

A le-.

Far unil on behal of the Bosnd of Dieeciars of

Anamitrs Dy
Partner It Managing Dissciss & CEOQ
Mamberdvip Mo GAT181 DiM: DODEI669

Dage: 31 May 2021




GMR Airports Limited

CIN U65999KA1992PLC037455

Standalone cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amount in Rupees crores except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Cash flow from operating activities

(Loss) before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit/(loss) before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization

Gain on sale of current investment

Exchange differences (net)

Contingent provision against standard assets

Provision for doubtful debts and loans (net)

Deferred income on financial assets carried at amortised cost

Fair value gain/ (loss) on financial instruments carried at fair value through profit & loss

Interest income

Interest on term loan
Operating profit before working capital changes
‘Working capital changes:
Decrease /(Increase) in trade/other receivables
Decrease /(Increase) in loans
Decrease/(Increase) in other financial assets
Decrease/(Increase) in other non financial assets
(Decrease) in other non-financial liabilities
Increase in other financial liabilities
(Decrease)/Increase in provisions
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables
Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes (paid)/refunds (net)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (net of sale of capital work-in-progress)
Additional investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and joint ventures

Sale of current investments

Purchase of current investments

Investment in share application money

Purchase of optionally convertible debentures

Loan given to related parties (Net of repayment received)

Interest income

(Decrease) in other Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Net cash flow used in investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of Equity (including security premium)
Repayment of Non-convertible Debentures

Proceeds from Non-convertible bonds

Upfront fee on loan processing

Finance cost paid

Repayment of Lease liability principal

Repayment of Lease liability interest

Net cash flow from financing activities (C)

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cheques on hand
With banks
- on current account
Total cash and cash equivalents

(302.84) 84.57
1.54 1.93
(11.44) (3.75)
73.32 (175.12)
0.48 3.12
2.35 (4.87)
(0.19) (0.40)
(0.80) (0.55)
(239.56) (195.22)
520.13 423.37
42.99 133.08
6.41 (56.94)
(1.83) (0.15)
19.26 1.51
(28.33) (6.18)
(30.61) 8.37
0.70 (0.88)
(1.15) 1.89
20.36 (10.99)
27.80 69.71
158 30.70
29.38 100.41
0.73 (0.28)
(208.52) (299.58)
2,402.47 1,264.07
(2,427.51) (1,296.96)
(4.50) 10.85
- (58.78)
(11.00) (392.18)
58.02 39.37
(90.51) 4.56
(280.82) (728.93)
1,000.00 -
(1,306.14) (743.86)
1,330.00 1,670.00
(68.95) (69.28)
(691.47) (227.75)
(0.87) (0.74)
(0.14) (0.09)
262.43 628.28
10.99 (0.24)
143 1.67
12.42 143
- 0.00
12.42 143
12.42 143
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GMR Airports Limited

CIN U65999KA1992P1L.C037455

Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Rupees Crores, except otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

GMR Airports Limited ('the Company') was incorporated on 6 February 1992, as an investing company.
The Company holds majority of its investments in group companies with the objective to consolidate
and expand its airport sector. In earlier years, the Company got registered as Non-Banking Financial
Institution i.e. Systematically Important Core Investment Company (CIC-ND-SI), and has been granted
certificate of registration by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide letter number DNBS (BG) No. 912/
08.01.018 /2013-14 dated 22 April 2014.

These financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors
passed in board meeting held on 31 May 2021.

2. Basis of preparation

These Standalone Financial Statements comprises of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Standalone
Statement of Cash Flows, Standalone Statement of changes in Equity and a summary of Significant
Accounting Policies and selected explanatory notes (collectively the “Standalone Financial
Statements”).

These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 has been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirement of Division III of Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS Compliant Schedule IIT)
as applicable to standalone financial statements. The accounting policies followed in preparation of the
Standalone Financial Statements are consistent with those followed in the most recent annual financial
statements of the Company, i.e. for the year ended 31 March 2020.

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an
accrual basis except for fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) instruments, and
financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), all of which have
been measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all
values are rounded to the nearest Crores, except when otherwise indicated.

3. Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a
net basis in all of the following circumstances:

e The normal course of business

e The event of default

e The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies
4.1. Accounting policy
a. Financial Instruments: Initial Recognition

(i) Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and
the business model for managing the instruments, as described in Notes 4.1 (b)(i)(I) and 4.1 (b)(i)(I)
Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value (as defined in Note 4.1 (f), except in the
case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVTPL, transaction costs are added to, or
subtracted from, this amount. Trade receivables are measured at the transaction price.

(ii) Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets
and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

e Amortised cost, as explained in Note 4.1 (b)(i)
e FVOCI (Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income), as explained in Note 4.1 (b)(ii)
e FVTPL (Fair value through profit and loss) in Note 4.1 (b)(iv)

b. Financial assets and liabilities
(i) Bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables and financial investments at amortised cost

The Company measures Bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables and other financial investments at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

e The financial a sset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

The details of these conditions are outlined below.
L. Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher
level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as

e How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business
model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel

e The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed

e How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

e The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s
assessment

If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Company's original
expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in
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that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly
purchased financial assets going forward.

1L The SPPI Test (Solely payments of principal and interest)

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial
to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’, for this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may
change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or
amortisation of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies
judgement and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is
denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in
the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In
such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

(ii) Equity Instruments at FVTOCI

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless
the Company’s management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its equity investments as equity
instruments at FVOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of definition of Equity under Ind AS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined
on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised in profit or loss as dividend income when the right of the payment has been established,
except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject
to an impairment assessment.

(iii) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued, and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on issue funds,
and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. A compound financial instrument which contains both a
liability and an equity component is separated at the issue date.

The Company had issued financial instruments with equity conversion rights and call options in the
previous years. When establishing the accounting treatment for these non-derivative instruments, the
Company first establishes whether the instrument is a compound instrument and classifies such
instrument’s components separately as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with Ind
AS 32. When allocating the initial carrying amount of a compound financial instrument to the equity
and liability components, the equity component is assigned as the residual amount after deducting from
the entire fair value of the instrument, the amount separately determined for the liability component.

(iv) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have
been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be



GMR Airports Limited

CIN U65999KA1992P1L.C037455

Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Rupees Crores, except otherwise stated)

measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an instrument at FVTPL upon
initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met. Such designation is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements in fair value of
liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair
value are recorded in the own credit reserve through OCI and do not get recycled to the profit or loss.
Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance
cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction
costs being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured
at FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest rate as explained in Note 4.1 (i).

(v) Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements (within Provisions) at fair value,
being the premium/deemed premium received. After initial recognition, the Company’s liability under
each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The premium/deemed premium is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the life of the guarantee.

c. Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business
line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified. The Company did not reclassify any of its financial
assets or liabilities in year ended 31 March 2021 and in 2019-20.

d. De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
(1) Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The
Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for de-recognition.

The Company is said to have transferred the financial asset if, and only if the Company has transferred
its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset.

A transfer only qualifies for de-recognition if either:

e The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or
e The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally
and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

(i1) Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
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substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

e. Impairment of financial assets
(i) Overview of ECL principles

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost e.g. deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on-Trade
receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

1) All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected
life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

ii) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is
designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.
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f. Determination of fair value
The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments —Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted
quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access
to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient
trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities
and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments—Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the
entire period of the instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable
inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit
spreads. In addition,  adjustments may be required for the condition or
location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued
instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which are significant
to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments —Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant
to the measurement as whole.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and
model calibrations. However, the base models may not fully capture all factors relevant to the valuation
of the Company’s financial instruments such as credit risk (CVA), own credit (DVA) and/or funding
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costs (FVA). Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated
with its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that
estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in
order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial
instruments. The Company estimates the value of its own credit from market observable data, such as
secondary prices for its traded debt and the credit spread on credit default swaps and traded debts on
itself. Details of this are further explained in Note 42.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

g. Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentational currency

The financial statements are presented in INR which is also functional currency of the company.
(ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the spot rate of ex-
change ruling at the date of the transaction. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an
average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the functional
currency at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. All differences arising on non—trading
activities are taken to other income/expense in the statement of profit and loss.

h. Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is
recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. The Company recognises revenue from contracts with
customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more
parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that
must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that
has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation
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Income from consultancy services

Income from consultancy services and business support services are recognised on a pro-rata basis over
the period of the contract as and when services are rendered.

Income from aviation academy

Income from aviation academy is recognised on a pro-rata basis over the period as and when services
are rendered.

Interest Income

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial
assets other than credit-impaired assets.

Interest income on all trading assets and financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL
recognised using the contractual interest rate in net gain on fair value changes.

The effective interest rate method

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost, debt instrument measured at FVOCI and debt
instruments designated at FVTPL. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises
interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over
the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged
at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments, penalty
interest and charges).

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit
risk. The adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset
in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently
amortised through Interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend Income

Dividend income (including from FVOCI investments) is recognised when the Company’s right to
receive the payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This is generally when
the shareholders approve the dividend.

Contract Assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer (which
consist of unbilled revenue). If the Company performs by transferring services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional.
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Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting
policies of financial assets in Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

i. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Company’s cash management.

j- Property, Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life
are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight—line method to write down the cost of property and
equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Land is not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

Asset category S?hedule i .
Life of Assets (in years)
Office Equipments 5
Computer 3
Furniture & Fixtures 10
Plant & Machinery 15
Vehicles 8-10

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate,
depreciates certain items of building over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated
useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to
be used.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in
other income /expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The date



GMR Airports Limited

CIN U65999KA1992P1L.C037455

Notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Rupees Crores, except otherwise stated)

of disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control of that
item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in
Ind AS 115.

k. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.

1. Retirement and other employment benefits

Defined Benefit Plan:

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The Company recognises contribution payable as expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service. If contribution payable to the scheme for service received before reporting date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting
the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, the excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the
prepayment will lead to a reduction in the future payment or a cash refund.

1) Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined benefit scheme. The Company
contributes a portion of contribution to Delhi International Airport Limited ('DIAL') Employees
Provident Fund Trust (the 'Trust'). The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if
any, between the return from the investments of the Trust and the notified interest rate. As such, the
amount to the extent of loss in the Trust, if any, is accounted by the Company as provident fund cost.

ii) Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the
contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period when the contributions to
the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to
the respective trusts.

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation which is funded through policy taken from Life Insurance
Corporation of India ('LIC'"). The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined
using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet
date. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at
15 days salary (based on last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods. Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
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1) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
i1) The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:

1) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements; and

i) Net interest expense or income

Compensated absences including sick leaves which are not expected to occur within twelve months
after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability
at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date. Such long-term
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss
and are not deferred. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet; to the
extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting
date. Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a
period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability

m. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Commitments:
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company determines the level of provision
by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the
liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

1) A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will not be required to settle the obligation

i) A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

iii)) A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is
remote.

Commitments

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion
of assets. Provisions, contingent liabilities, and commitments are reviewed at each reporting date.

n. Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
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Current income tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 1961

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(in other comprehensive income). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

1) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

i) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

1) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

i1) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (in
other comprehensive income). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCIL.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Taxes, cess, duties such as sales tax/ value added tax/ service tax/ GST etc. paid on acquisition of
assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:

1) When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item, as applicable

i1) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

0. Segment Reporting

The Company has only one reportable business segment, which is Investment activities. Accordingly,
the amounts appearing in the financial statements relate to the Company’s single business segment.

p- Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

q. Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR') expenditure

The Company has opted to charge its CSR expenditure during the year to the statement of profit and
loss.

r. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

s. Lease

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.
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Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

iii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery
and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

5. Significant accounting judgements

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
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Judgements

In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

5.1. Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business
model test (refer note 4.1 (b)(i)(I) and 4.1 (b)(i)(I1)). The Company determines the business model at a
level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the
performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for
their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the
asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business
model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the
classification of those assets.

5.2. Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they
are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding
value adjustments, correlation and volatility. For further details about determination of fair value please
see Note 4.1 (f) and Note 42.

5.3. Discounting rate

The Company has considered incremental borrowing rate of Airport sector for measuring deposits,
being financial assets and liabilities, at amortised cost till 31 March 2020. From period starting from 1
April 2020; management has considered revised incremental borrowing rate of airport sector for all the
deposits given/received post 31 March 2020; and the impact has been duly accounted in standalone
financial statements.

5.4. Effective Interest Rate Method (EIR)

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 4.1 (h), recognises interest income / expense
using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected
behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at
various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty
interest and charges).
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This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-
cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee income/expense
that are integral parts of the instrument.

5.5. Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

5.6. Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value
less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted
at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of
the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounting cash flow (DCF) model. The cash flows
are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the
Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s
performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for
the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation
purposes.

6. Significant accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

6.1. Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

6.2. Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element
of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case
and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where
the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be
made, a contingent liability is disclosed.
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Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the
Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and
historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these
estimates.

For further details on provisions and other contingencies see Note 4.1 (m) of the Summary of significant
accounting policies and Notes 20 and 38.

6.3. Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the
gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate
for plans operated, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those
mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases, and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 37 (ii).
Provision for Leave encashment

The present value of leave encashment is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of discount rate, future salary increases, and withdrawal rates. Due to
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, provision for leave encashment is
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

6.4. Lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option
to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive
for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its
control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

(The space has been intentionally left blank)
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Note 7: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Balance with banks

In Current accounts 12.42 1.43
Cash on hand - 0.00
Total 12.42 1.43

Note 8: Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents
. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money/pledged with bank 98.27 7.58
(Refer note 38)
Total 98.27 7.58
*Fixed deposits and other balances with bank earns interest at fixed rates.
Note 9: Trade Recievables
. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Unsecured considered good 50.94 59.73
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Receivables — credit impaired - -
50.94 59.73
Provision for impairment for :
Unsecured considered good [Refer note 48(b)] (0.04) (0.07)
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Receivables — credit impaired - -
Total 50.90 59.66

Debts due by directors or other officers of the NBFC or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due
by firms including limited liability partnerships (LLPs), companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or

a member are separately stated.

For terms and condition related to related party receivables refer note 39.

Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30-90 days.

Trade Recievables due from companies in which any director is partner, director, or a member:

Name of the entity

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

Delhi International Airport Limited

Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited

Gmr Air Cargo And Aerospace Engineering Private Limited
Tim Delhi Airport Advertisement Private Limited

GMR Aerostructure Services Limited

Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited

1.03 0.85
0.19 0.17
0.60 0.17
- 8.85
0.67 1.41
3.13 4.59
0.13 -
1.95 1.77
7.70 17.81




Note 10: Loans at amrotised cost (Refer note 36B)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Unsecured Loan repayable on demand (Refer note 39) 436.00 427.18
Security deposits (Refer note 39) 5.04 3.07
Total Gross 441.04 430.25
Less: Impairment loss allowance - -
Total Net 441.04 430.25
Loans in India
Others 441.04 430.25
Total Gross 441.04 430.25
Less: Impairment loss allowance - -
Total Net 441.04 430.25
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Note 11: Investments

As at 31 March 2021

At fair value

Through other

Particul Subtotal Total
artiewars Amortised Cost ~ comprehensive Through profit ubtotd ot

. or loss

income
A) In India
Equity Instruments* - 19,660.72 - 19,660.72 19,660.72
Mutual funds** - - 158.79 158.79 158.79
Commerical papers** - - - - -
Total gross (A) - 19,660.72 158.79 19,819.51 19,819.51
B) Overseas
Debt Securities# (Refer note 53) 2,168.65 - - - 2,168.65
Total gross (B) 2,168.65 - - - 2,168.65
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss (C) - - - - -
Total Net D = (A)+ (B) - (C) 2,168.65 19,660.72 158.79 19.819.51 21,988.16
As at 31 March 2020

At fair value
Particulars . Through otl}er Through profit Subtotal Total
Amortised Cost  comprehensive

. or loss

income
In India
A) Equity Instruments* - 20,779.15 - 20,779.15 20,779.15
Mutual funds - - 97.09 97.09 97.09
Commerical papers** 24.41 - - - 24.41
Total gross (A) 24.41 20,779.15 97.09 20,876.24 20,900.65
B) Overseas
Debt Securities# (Refer note 53) 2,058.43 - - - 2,058.43
Total gross (B) 2,058.43 - - - 2,058.43
Less: Allowance for Impairment loss (C ) - - - - -
Total Net D= (A)+(B)-(C ) 2,082.84 20,779.15 97.09 20.876.24 22,959.08
*More information regarding the valuation methodology can be found in Note 41 and 42.
The Company has designated its equity investments as FVOCI on the basis that these are not held for trading and held for strategic purposes.
*Financial Assets- Investment in Equity
Investments recorded at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Number of shares (in Crores) Amount

Particulars As at As at As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Investments recorded at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Unquoted equity shares fully paid up
Investment in subsidiaries

GMR Airport Developers Limited 1.02 1.02 297.39 278.79
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 23.81 23.81 6,809.80 6,623.20
Delhi International Airport Limited 156.80 156.80 10,781.00 11,958.65
GMR Goa International Airport Limited 38.45 18.90 533.90 471.96
GMR Airports (Mauritius) Limited 0.02 0.02 0.90 0.92
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 3.26 3.26 223.60 257.71
GMR Airports International B.V 0.10 0.10 8.20 25.57
GMR Nagpur International Airport Limited 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01
GMR Kannur International Airport Limited 0.10 - 1.00 -
GMR Vishakhapatnam International Airport Limited 0.45 - 4.50 -
Total 224.01 203.91 18,660.30 19,616.81
Investment in joint venture
International Airport of Heraklion, Crete, Concession SA 1.61 1.52 221.30 221.25
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 1.36 1.36 778.10 940.07
2.97 2.88 999.40 1,161.32
Other investment
Investment in GMR Airport Developers Limited on account of fair - - 1.02 1.02
valuation of financial guarantee
- - 1.02 1.02
226.98 206.79 19,660.72 20,779.15
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a. During the year ended on 31 March 2021, the Company has made an equity investments in GMR Vishakhapatnam International Airport Limited, incorporated on 19 May 2020, Rs.9.00 crore

including Rs.4.50 crore towards share application money (31 March 2020: NIL) in order to cater to the financial requirement of the subsidiary {Refer note 36}

b. During the year ended on 31 March 2021, the Company has made an equity investments in GMR Kannur Duty Free Services Limited, incorporated on 20 November 2019, Rs.0.99 crore (31
March 2020: 0.01 crore represents share application money) in order to cater to the financial requirement of the subsidiary. {Refer note 36}

c. During the year ended on 31 March 2021, the Company has made an equity investments in GMR Airports International B.V, incorporated on 28 May 2018, Rs. Nil (31 March 2020: Rs.7.36
crore) in order to cater to the financial requirement of the subsidiary. {Refer Note 36}

d. During the year ended on 31 March 2021, the Company has made an equity investments in GMR Nagpur International Airport Limited, incorporated on 22 August 2019, Rs. Nil (31 March
2020: Rs.0.01 crore) in order to cater to the financial requirement of the subsidiary. {Refer note 36}

e. During the year ended on 31 March 2021, the Company has made an equity International Airport of Heraklion, Crete, Concession SA , incorporated on 12 February 2019, Rs. 14.04 crore (31
March 2020: 217.22 crore) in order to cater to the financial requirement of the joint venture as per the concession agreement. {Refer note 36 and 38(i)(b)(iv)}.

f. During the year ended on 31 March 2021, the Company has made an equity GMR Goa International Airport Limited, incorporated on 14 October 2016, Rs.189.00 crore (31 March 2020:
Rs.81.50 crore including Rs.6.50 crore towards share application money) in order to cater to the financial requirement of the subsidiary as per the sponsor support agreement. {Refer note 36 and

38(1)(b)(V)}-
**Financial Assets- Investment in Mutual funds and commercial papers

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss

As at As at Face value Amount

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 (Rs.) As at As at

(Units) (Units) 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss
a) Investments in mutual funds (unquoted)
ICICI Prudential Liquid - Plan Growth - 1,229,663.93 100.00 - 35.97
Tata Overnight Fund - Direct Growth Plan 233,020.77 - 1,000.00 25.31 -
UTI Overnight Fund - Direct Growth Plan 75,818.73 - 1,000.00 21.37 -
UTI Liquid Cash Fund-Direct Growth Plan - 61,537.85 1,000.00 - 20.00
Aditya Birla Sunlife Liquid Fund - Growth Direct Plan 164,217.94 626,400.39 100.00 18.27 20.02
Aditya Birla Sunlife Liquid Fund - Growth Regular Plan - 293,272.91 100.00 - 9.32
Axis Overnight Fund - Direct Growth Plan 58,313.33 - 1,000.00 6.34 -
Axis Liquid Fund - Direct Growth Plan - 23,909.84 1,000.00 - 5.27
Axis Liquid Fund -Regular Growth Plan - 25,372.76 1,000.00 - 5.57
Kotak Overnight Fund - Direct Growth Plan 450,747.23 - 1,000.00 49.49 -
L&T Overnight Fund - Direct Growth Plan 10,016.23 - 1,000.00 1.61 -
SBI Overnight Fund - Direct Growth Plan 108,605.03 - 1,000.00 36.40 -
Baroda Liquid Fund - Plan A Growth - 4,145.64 1,000.00 - 0.94

1,100,739.26 2,264,303.32 158.79 97.09
b) Investments in commercial papers (Unquoted) at Amortised cost
SREI Infrastructure Finance Limited - 500.00 500,000.00 - 24.41
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 1,100,739.26 2,264,803.32 158.79 121.50
#Financial Assets- Investment in debt securities
Investments carried at amortised cost

Amount

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Investments in Optionally convertible debenture

240,850 (31 March 2020: 240,850) OCD of USD 1,000 each fully paid up

in GMR Airports International B.V (Netherlands) IRR- 9%
Total investments in Optionally convertible debenture

2,168.65

2,058.43

2,168.65

2,058.43

During the year ended on 31 March 2021, the Company has made an investments in optional covertible debenture of GMR Airports International B.V, incorporated on 28 May 2018, Rs.NIL

(31 March 2020: 58.78 crore) {Refer note 53}
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Note 12: Other financial assets

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Non Trade Receivables- Considered good [net of provision for
doubtful debts [31 March 2021: Rs. 2.31 crores (31 March 2020: 0.72 25.54
Rs. 0.25 crores)] (Refer note 39)
Investment in share application money# 4.50 6.51
Unbilled Revenue 5.61 -
Total 10.83 32.05
# Includes :-

Application Money paid to the GMR Vishakhapatnam International Airport Limited for which shares alloted on 26 April 2021. (In
FY 2020, Application Money paid to the GMR Goa International Airport Limited amounted to Rs. 6.50 Crore and application
money paid to the GMR Kannur Duty Free Services Limited amounted to Rs. 0.01 Crore for which shares alloted in FY 2021.)

Note 13: Other non financial assets

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Prepaid Expenses 1.36 0.74
Advance other than Capital Advance:

Advance to employees 5.27 0.94

Advance to suppliers:

Others 0.31 0.08
Other Recoverable:

Others - 12.36

Related parties (Refer note 39) 17.86 -
Balance with government authorities 7.19 -

Total 31.99 14.12
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(All amount in Rupees crores except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 14A: Property, plant and equipment

Particulars

Plant & Computers Furniture Motor vehicles Office Leasehold Total

Machinery and printers and fixtures equipment Improvement *
Cost
At1 April 2019 0.01 0.46 0.15 1.09 2.36 6.75 10.82
Additions - 0.27 0.04 0.00 0.71 - 1.02
Disposals - 0.20 - - 0.09 - 0.29
At 31 March 2020 0.01 0.53 0.19 1.09 2.98 6.75 11.55
Additions 0.00 0.06 - - 0.05 - 0.11
Disposals - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2021 0.01 0.59 0.19 1.09 3.03 6.75 11.66
Depreciation
At 1 April 2019 0.00 0.20 0.04 0.24 1.26 4.49 6.23
Charge for the year 0.00 0.18 0.02 0.16 0.72 2.26 3.34
Disposals - 0.19 - - 0.10 - 0.29
At 31 March 2020 0.00 0.19 0.06 0.40 1.88 6.75 9.28
Charge for the period 0.00 0.20 0.03 0.14 0.30 - 0.67
Disposals - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2021 0.00 0.39 0.09 0.54 2.18 6.75 9.95
Net Block
At 31 March 2020 0.01 0.34 0.13 0.69 1.10 0.00 2.27
At 31 March 2021 0.01 0.20 0.10 0.55 0.85 0.00 1.71

* Depreciation charge on leasehold improvement has been allocated by the Company to its Subsidiaries as per the cost allocation methodology approved by the board of directors (Refer

note 39).

Refer note 38 (i) (a) for Capital commitments.

Note 14B. Right of use Asset

Office
Buildings ~ CAUIPMENS g opiies Total
incl
Computers
Cost
As at 1 April 2019 [Refer note 58¢)] 5.46 0.02 0.10 5.58
Additions - - - -
Disposals - - - -
At 01 April 2020 5.46 0.02 0.10 5.58
Additions 2.30 - - 2.30
Disposals 0.87 - - 0.87
At 31 March 2021 6.89 0.02 0.10 7.01
Depreciation
As at 1 April 2019 [Refer note 58¢)] - - - -
Charge for the year 2.85 0.01 0.03 2.89
Disposals - - - -
At 01 April 2020 2.85 0.01 0.03 2.89
Charge for the year 2.56 0.01 0.03 2.60
Disposals 0.45 - - 0.45
At 31 March 2021 4.96 0.02 0.06 5.04
Net Book value
At 31 March 2020 2.61 0.01 0.07 2.69
At 31 March 2021 1.93 0.00 0.04 1.97
Note 14C. Capital Work in Progress
CWIP
Cost
As at 1 April 2019 -
Additions 0.00
Disposals -
At 31 March 2020 0.84
Additions 1.66
Transferred to Kannur Duty Free Services Limited 2.50

At 31 March 2021
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Note 15: Deferred tax:

Balance sheet

Profit & Loss

As at As at Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Deferred tax liability
on account of fair valuation of investments 0.35 0.15 0.20 0.13
on account of disallowance w/s 43B 0.05 (0.06) 0.11 0.10
Ind-AS adiustments of Borrowing cost - 12.41 (12.41) 1241
Gross deferred tax liability (A) 0.40 12.50 (12.10) 12.64
Deferred tax asset
Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation / amortisation charged for the financial reporting (0.02) (0.24) 0.22 (0.50)
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss but allowed for tax purposes on pavment basis 2.19 241 (0.22) 0.26
Provision for standard asset 2.62 2.50 0.12 0.52
Provision for doubtful debts and advances - - - (1.70)
Provision on business loss 101.57 70.42 31.15 4.47
Gross deferred tax assets (B) 106.36 75.09 31.27 3.05
Net deferred tax asset(liability) (B-A) 105.96 62.59 4337 (9.59)

of deferred tax liabiliti )
Asat Asat

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening balance 62.59 72.18
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in statement of profit or loss 43.42 (9.65)
Tax expense during the year recognised in OCI (0.05) 0.06
Closing balance 105.96 62.59

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by

the same tax authority.

te 15a. Deferred tax | y:

Balance sheet

Profit & Loss

As at As at Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Deferred tax liability
on account of fair valuation of investments 3.599.21 3.944.72 (345.51) 707.09
Gross deferred tax liability 3,599.21 3,944.72 (345.51) 707.09
Reconciliations of deferred tax liabilities/assets(net)
Asat As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening balance 3,944.72 3.237.62
Tax (income)/expense during the year recognised in statement of profit or loss (345.51) 707.09
Closing balance 3,599.21 3.944.72
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Note 16: Trade Payable

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2020

Trade Payable
Due to Micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 45)
Trade Payable-Related Party (Refer note 39)
Others

Total

Notel7: Debt Securities at Amortised cost

2.78 0.09
4.78 4.20
34.45 17.40
42.01 21.69

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2020

(Refer note 43 & 56 for maturity profile and note 36B)

Secured
Non convertible debentures* (NCD)- Nil debentures of Rs 100,000
each at IRR 15% (31 March 2020: 130,614)

Non convertible bonds** (NCB)- 1,670 bond of Rs 10,000,000 each
(31 March 2020: 1,670)

UnSecured

Non convertible bonds** (NCB)- 1,670 bond of Rs 10,000,000 each
(31 March 2020: 1,670)

Non convertible bonds*** (NCB)- 1,330 bond of Rs 10,000,000
each (31 March 2020: Nil)

Total gross (A)

Debt securities in India
Debt securities outside India
Total (B)

- 1,541.80

- 1,735.06
1,702.30 -
1,358.13 -
3,060.43 3,276.86
3,060.43 3,276.86
3,060.43 3,276.86




*During previous year, Non convertible debentures are secured by Hypothecation of assets of the Company. Further, on
11 June 2020 the Non convertible debentures were secured by creation of pledge on certain shares of Delhi International
Airport Limited ("DIAL") and GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited ("GHIAL") held by the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, Non-Convertible debentures were fully repaid and accordingly hypothecation of
assets of the Company and pledge created on shares of DIAL and GHIAL were released.

**The company has amended the terms of existing Non convertible bonds ("NCBs") of Rs. 1,670 Crores (raised during
the year ended 31 March 2020 in multiple tranches) vide Board approval date 9 December 2020 and has extended the
tenure of bonds by another 36 months which are now repayable as on 28 Deceember 2023.

Out of this, (a) on Rs. 1,450 Crores, running coupon will be 6% p.a payable half yearly and redemption premium will be
6% p.a. for first year, 7% p.a. for second year and 7.2875% p.a. for third year and

(b) On Rs. 220 Crores, running coupon was payable at 8% p.a and redemption premium at 5.45% p.a till 30 January
2021. Thereafter, from 31 January 2021, running coupon will be 6% p.a. and redemption premium will be 6% p.a. for
first year, 7% p.a. for second year and third year.

During previous year, Non convertible bonds were secured by Hypothecation of assets of the Company. Further, on 18
June 2020 these Non convertible bonds were additionally secured by pledge of certain shares held by Company in its
subsidiaries Delhi International Airport Limited ("DIAL") and GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited
("GHIAL"). The Hypothecation of assets of the Company and pledge created on shares of DIAL and GHIAL in favour of
NCB holders were released at the time of extension of tenure of NCB facility in Dec’2020.

Rating of the above mentioned Non-Convertible Bonds of Rs. 1,670 Crores is CARE A-, negative (Single A Minus;
Outlook: Negative) assigned by CARE Ratings Limited vide thier report dated 10 March 2021

**During the year ended 31 March 2021, the company has raised money by issue of unsecured, redeemable, Listed non-
convertible Bonds (NCBs) amounting to Rs. 1,330 crores which were initially subscribed by DB International (Asia)
Limited (Rs. 665 Crores) and Varde holdings Pte Limited (Rs. 665 Crores) in single tranche vide Board approval date 9
December 2020 for 18 months which are repayable as on 24 June 2022.

On entire Rs. 1,330 Crores, running coupon will be 6% p.a and 5.90% p.a. will be paid as redemption premium at the
time of maturity.

Rating of the above mentioned Non-Convertible Bonds of Rs. 1,330 Crores is CARE A-, negative (Single A Minus;
Outlook: Negative) assigned by CARE Ratings Limited vide thier report dated 10 March 2021.



GMR Airports Limited
CIN U65999KA1992PL.C037455

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amount in Rupees crores except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 18: Other financial liabilities

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Liability component of CCPS (Refer note 49)
Financial guarantee (Refer note 39)
Non Trade Payables

Total

Note 19: Lease liabilities (Refer Note 58¢)

442.86 182.00
- 0.07
1.93 1.24
444.79 183.31

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Lease liability - ROU Building
Lease liability - ROU Office Equipments Incl Computers
Lease liability - ROU Vehicles

Total

Note 20: Provisions

2.03 2.72
0.00 0.01
0.05 0.08
2.08 2.81

Particulars

As at

As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Provision for employee benefits
Leave encashment
Gratuity [Refer note 37(ii)]
Superannuation
Provision for Contingent assets [Refer note 48(a)]

Total

Note 21: Other non-financial liabilities

8.11 9.70
1.38 1.13
0.09 0.11
10.42 9.93
20.00 20.87

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Statutory Dues Payable
Goods and Services Tax Payable
Withholding Tax Payable
Provident Fund Payable
Others

Contract Liabilities
Deferred / unearned revenue*

Total

- 9.29
11.59 32.69
0.36 0.36
0.00 0.00
0.12 0.34
12.07 42.68

*Deferred/unearned revenue as at 31 March 2021 represents 'contract liabilities' due to adoption of Ind AS 115.
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Note 22: Equity Share capital

Details of authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

Equity Shares

Preference Shares

[Authorized share Capital No. of Shares Rs. In crores No. of Shares Rs. In crores

At 01 April, 2019 1,400,000,000 1,400.00 16,000,000 1,600.00
Increase / (decrease) during the year 100,000,000 100.00 (1,000,000.00) (100.00)
At 31 March, 2020 1,500,000,000 1,500.00 15,000,000 1,500.00
Increase / (decrease) during the period - - - -
At 31 March, 2021 1,500,000,000 1,500.00 15,000,000 1,500.00

a) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitles to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in
Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the
holders of the equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the shareholders.

b)  The reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

Particulars

As at 31 March 2021

No. of shares Rs. In crores

As at 31 March 2020

No. of shares Rs. In crores

Equity Share at the beginning of year 1,328,390,007 1,328.39 1,328,390,007 1,328.39

Add:

Equity Share allotted during the year 78,279,463 78.28 - -
Equity share at the end of year 1,406,669,470 1,406.67 1,328,390,007 1,328.39

heidi

¢)  Shares held by holding C ries

y and their

Name of the shareholder

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

No. of shares % of holdi No. of shares % of holdi
GMR Infrastructure Limited, Holding Company (GIL)
54,86,01,089 (31 March 2020 : 98,94,35,414) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 548,601,089 39.00% 989,435,414 74.48%
GMR Infra Developers Limited (Wholly-owned subsidiary of GIL)
16,88,00,336 (31 March 2020 : Nil) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 168,800,336 12.00% - 0.00%
Dhruvi Securities Private Limited (Wholly-owned subsidiary of GIL)
Nil (31 March 2020: 6,989,926) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each - - 6,989,926 0.53%
Total Equity shareholdi 717,401,425 51.00% 996,425,340 75.01%

d)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder

As at 31 March 2021
No. of shares % of holding in the class

As at 31 March 2020
No. of shares % of holding in the class

GMR Infrastructure Limited; Holding Company 548,601,089 39.00% 989,435,414 74.48%
GMR Infra Developers Limited (Wholly-owned subsidiary of GIL) 168,800,336 12.00% - 0.00%
AEROPORTS DE PARIS 353,783,144 25.15% - 0.00%
GMR Infra Services Private Limited (formerly known as GMR SEZ Infra 335,484,897 23.85% 331,964,667 24.99%
Total 1,406,669,466 100.00% 1,321,400,081 99.47%

Shareholding of GISL has been transferred during the previous year to ADP (Note. 50)

e)  Asperrecords of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding

represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.
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23: Other equity

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

i) Security Premium reserve

Opening balance

Issue of Equity shares (Refer note 50a)

Bonus Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (Refer note 18)
Adjustment of Fund raising expenses (Refer note 58a)

Net Balance as at year end

ii) Special Reserve U/s 45-1C of RBI
Opening balance

Amount transferred during the year
Net Balance as at year end

iii) Capital Reserve

Opening balance

Amount transferred during the year
Net Balance as at year end

iv) Retained earnings

Opening balance

Add: Net (loss)/profit for the year

Add: Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (net of tax)
Less: Transfer to special reserve u/s 45 IC of RBI Act

Net balance of Retained earnings

v) Other Comprehensive Income

(Loss)/Gain on equity instruments designated at FVOCI for the period (net)
Opening balance

Movement during the year

Income tax impact

Total

Total reserve and surplus (i+ii+iii+iv+v)
Nature and purpose of reserve

Securities premium reserve

318.28 500.28
921.72 -
(260.86) (182.00)
(10.46) -
968.68 318.28
81.05 66.07
- 14.98
81.05 81.05
0.23 0.23
0.23 0.23
394.93 335.17
(257.74) 74.92
0.16 (0.18)
- (14.98)
137.35 394.93
13,985.56 11,547.82
(1,333.48) 3.144.83
345.51 (707.09)
12.997.59 13.985.56
14,184.90 14,780.05

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

FVOCI equity investments

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the FVOCI equity
investments reserve within equity. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.

Capital Reserve

The Company recognizes profit or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments to capital reserve.

Special Reserve

The Company, being registered as non-banking financial institution, is required to transfer 20% of net profits to special reserve in accordance with Section 45IC of RBI Act. The said reserve can be used

only for the purpose as may be specified by the bank from time to time.
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Revenue from Operations

Note 24: Interest Income

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

On financial assets
measured at Amortised

On financial assets
measured at Amortised

cost cost

Interest on loan to related parties (Refer note 39) 55.34 35.84
Interest income from Investments

Optionally convertible debentures (Refer note 39) 183.53 155.87
Interest on deposits with Banks 0.69 3.51
Total 239.56 195.22

Note 25: Dividend Income
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Dividend from group companies (Refer note 39) 10.20 95.46
Total 10.20 95.46
Note 26: Revenue from contracts with customers
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Consultancy revenue 96.56 95.92
Aviation Academy revenue 2.22 7.61
Total 98.78 103.53
Note:
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

(i) Company earns revenue from customer contracts
Within India
Outside India

(ii) Timing of rendering of services:
service rendered at a point in time
service rendered over a point of time

(iii) Set below is the revenue recognised from:
Amount included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the period
Performance obligation satisified in previous period

98.78 102.73
- 0.80
98.78 103.53
98.78 103.53
98.78 103.53
0.34 0.48
0.34 0.48
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(iv) Contract Balances
Receivables

- Non Current

- Current

- Loss Allowance (Non Current)
- Loss Allowance (Current)

Contract Assets

Unbilled Revenue

- Non Current

- Current

- Loss Allowance (Current)

Contract Liabilities

Advance Received from Customers
- Non Current

- Current

Increase/ Decrease in net contract balances is primarily due:

50.18

59.81

50.18

59.81

0.12

0.34

0.12

0.34

The movement in receivables and in contract assets is on account of invoicing and collection.

Note 27: Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Gain on sale of mutual funds (including fair valuation change) 12.24 4.30
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 12.24 4.30
Fair Value changes:

-Realised 11.44 3.75
-Unrealised 0.80 0.55
Total Net (loss)/ gain on fair value changes 12.24 4.30

Fair value changes in this schedule are other than those arising on account of accrued interest income/expense.
Note 28: Other Income
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Exchange difference (net) - 175.12
Miscellaneous income 0.32 9.92
Interest income on financial asset measured at amortised cost
Financial guarantee 0.07 0.15
Security deposit 0.13 0.26

Total 0.52 185.45
Note 29: Finance Costs*

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

On financial assets
measured at Amortised

On financial assets
measured at Amortised

Debt Securities
Brokerage fees
Bank Charges
Others

Total

cost cost
415.97 387.78
90.45 35.27
12.05 0.09
1.66 0.23
520.13 423.37
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Note 30: Employee Benefits Expenses *

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Salaries and wages 14.78 22.75
Contribution to provident and other funds 1.73 1.47
Gratuity (0.09) 0.16
Staff welfare expenses 0.46 0.72
Total 16.88 25.10
Note 31: Depreciation expense *
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment [Refer note 14 (a)]
Depreciation on Right of Use Asset [Refer note 14 (b)]

Less: Transfer/ Allocation to subsidiaries

Total

Note 32: Other expenses®

0.67 3.34
2.60 2.89
(1.73) (4.30)
1.54 1.93

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Legal and professional fees

Travelling and conveyance

Lease Rent

Bidding Expenses

Repair & Maintenance others

Rates and taxes

Communication cost

Charities & Donations

CSR Expenditure (Refer note B)
Remuneration to auditor (Refer note A)
Directors sitting fees

Training Expenses

Contingent provision against standard assets
Provision for doubtful debts and loans
Bad debts written off

Exchange differences (net)

Logo fees

Electricity and water charges
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

* Above expenses are net of allocation/ recovery done

35.05 25.65
1.13 8.23
2.41 1.75
0.45 0.00
1.09 0.22
3.32 1.42
0.61 0.06

- 0.03
- 0.61
0.90 1.12
0.22 0.25
1.71 232
0.48 3.12
2.35 0.32
- 0.06

73.32 -
1.05 1.46
0.00 0.11
1.50 2.26

125.59 48.99
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Note A: Remuneration to Auditor

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

As auditor
Statutory audit of Company
Limited Reviews
In other capacity
Other services (including certification charges)
Reimbursement of expenses

Note B: Details of CSR expenditure:

0.08 0.08
0.12 0.09
0.65 0.87
0.04 0.08
0.89 1.12

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
a) Gross amount required to be spent during the year Nil 0.61
[Particulars In Cash __ Yet to be paid in cash|
b) Amount spent during the year ending on 31 March, 2021: In cash
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
i1) On purposes other than (i) above - 0.61
¢) Amount spent during the year ending on 31 March 2020: In cash
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
- 0.61

ii) On purposes other than (i) above
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Note 33: Tax Expenses
The major components of income tax expense for the period ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Current income tax:
Previous Year- Income tax charge (1.68) -
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous period - -
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (43.42) 9.65
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss (45.10) 9.65
OCI Section

Year ended Year ended
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the period: 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Re-measurement gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans 0.05 (0.06)
(Loss)/Gain on equity instrument designated at FVOCI for the period (net) (345.51) 707.09
Income tax charged to OCI (345.46) 707.03
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Accounting profit before tax (302.84) 84.57
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 25.17% (31 March 2020 : 25.17%) (76.22) 21.29
Tax effect of income that are not taxable in determining taxable profit:

Income exempt under Income tax - 24.03
Change in Tax rate - (9.79)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit:

Donations - 0.16
Other non-deductible expenses 31.12 2.44
Tax expense (45.10) 9.65
Income tax expense recorded in the statement of profit and loss (45.10) 9.65
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Note 34: Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

Particulars Year emded Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Re-measurement gain/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 0.21 (0.24)
Income tax effect (0.05) 0.06
(Loss) on equity instruments designated at FVOCI for the year (net) (1,333.48) 3,144.83
Income tax impact 345.51 (707.09)
Net Impact (987.81) 2,437.56

Note 35: (Loss)/ Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit for the period attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares

outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to equity holder (after adjusting for dividend on the convertible preference shares)
by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on

conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars Year emded Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(Loss)/Profit attributable to equity holders for basic and diluted earnings: (A) (257.74) 74.92
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing loss/earning per 1,385,866,435 1,328,390,007
share (B)

Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for diluted EPS (C) 1,385,866,435 1,328,390,007
Basic earning per share (A/B) (1.86) 0.56
Diluted earning per share (A/C) (1.86) 0.56
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36. A. Public disclosure on liquidity risk as at 31 March 2021 pursuant to Regulation 19 “Guidelines on Liquidity
Risk Management Framework” for Non-Banking Financial Companies as per Master Direction- Core

Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016:

(i) Funding concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings):

S.no Number of Amount in % of Total % of Total
Significant (Rs. in Crore) Deposits Liabilities*
Counterparties
1 4 3000.00 Not Applicable 13.17
*includes equity and other equity

(ii) Top 20 large deposits (Amount in Rs. Crore and % of total deposits);

The company being a Non-Banking Financial Institution i.e. Systematically Important Core Investment Company

(CIC-ND-SI) registered with Reserve Bank of India does not accept public deposits.

(iii) Top 10 borrowings (Amount in Rs. Crore and % of total borrowings)

S.no Amount % of Total
(Rs. in Crore) Borrowings
1 3000.00 100

(iv) Funding concentration based on significant instrument/product:

S.no. Name of the instrument/product Amount % of Total
(Rs. in Crore) Liabilities*
1 Non- Convertible Bonds 3,000.00 13.17
*includes equity and other equity
(v) Stock Ratios:
S.no. Particulars %
(a) Commercial paper as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and None
total assets
(b) Non-Convertible debentures (Original maturity of less than one None
year) as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets
(c) Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total public funds, total None
liabilities and total assets

(vi) Institutional set up for liquidity risk management:

As per the requirement of Master Directions-Core Investment (RBI) Directions, 2016 and guidelines on Liquidity
Risk Management Framework, the Board have constituted Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) & Risk
Management Committee in its meeting held on June 25, 2020, Further, the framework on Liquidity Risk
Management have also been approved by the Board in its meeting held on August 21, 2020.

Both the above mentioned Committees are actively performing their function as per the terms of reference of the
Committee as approved by the Board. (Also refer note 43- Liquidity risk section)
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B. Additional disclosure as per Master Direction- Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,

2016:

(i) Loans and advances availed by the CIC inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid: (Refer note 17)

As at 31 March 2021: Amount Amount Overdue
Outstanding

(a) Non-Convertible Bonds: Unsecured 1,702.30 -

(b) Non-Convertible Bonds: Unsecured 1,358.13 -

As at 31 March 2020: Amount Amount Overdue
Outstanding

(a) Debentures: Secured 1,541.80 -

(b) Non-Convertible Bonds: Secured 1,735.06 -

(ii) Break-up of Loans and Advances (net of provisions): (Refer note 10)

Particulars

Amount Outstanding
As at 31 March 2021

Amount Outstanding
As at 31 March 2020

(a) Secured

(a) Unsecured 441.04 430.25
Total 441.04 430.25
Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as per above:
As at 31 March 2021 Secured Unsecured Total
Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - 0.01 0.01
(b) Companies in the same group - 436.00 436.00
(c) Other related parties - 1.23 1.23
Other than Related Parties - 3.80 3.80
Total - 441.04 441.04
As at 31 March 2020 Secured Unsecured Total
Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - - -
(b) Companies in the same group - 428.30 428.30
(c) Other related parties - 1.95 1.95
Other than Related Parties - 0.00 0.00
Total - 430.25 430.25

(The space has been intentionally left blank)
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(iii) Break up of Investment: (Refer note 11)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Current Investment:

(1) Units of Mutual Funds (Quoted) 158.79 97.09
(i) Commercial Papers (Unquoted) - 2441
Total (a) 158.79 121.50
Long Term Investment (Unquoted):

(1) Shares: Equity 19,660.72 20,779.15
(i1) Debentures and Bonds 2,168.65 2,058.43
Total (b) 21,829.37 22,837.58
Total (a+b) 21,998.16 22,959.08

(iv) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both
quoted and unquoted): (Refer note 11)

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

Category Fair Value Book Value Fair Value Book Value
(Net of (Net of
Provisions) Provisions)

Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries (Investment in 20,829.97 4,901.02 21,676.26 4,589.80
Equity and Debentures)
(b) Companies in the same group - - - -
(c) Other related parties 999.40 330.52 1,161.32 316.48
(Investment in Equity)
Other than Related Parties 158.79 157.38 121.50 120.89
(Investment in Mutual funds
and Commercial Papers)
Total 21,988.16 5,388.92 22,959.08 5,027.17
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(v) Other Information

S.no | Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

@) Gross Non- Performing Assets

(a) Related parties - -

(b) Other than related parties - -
(ii) | Net Non- Performing Assets

(a) Related parties - -

(b) Other than related parties - -
(iii) | Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - -

(The space has been intentionally left blank)
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37. Retirement and other employee benefits
Employee benefits

i) Defined Contribution Plan

Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Benefits (contribution to):

Employer’s contribution to Provident & Other fund 0.53 0.13
Employer’s contribution to Superannuation fund 1.20 1.34

ii) Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity expense

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit plan which is funded through policy taken from Life Insurance Corporation of
India and Liability (net of fair value of investment in LIC) is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. Every employee who has completed five years
or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days’ salary (based on last drawn basic salary) for each completed
year of service.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the standalone statement of
profit or loss/OCI and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for defined benefit plans/obligations:

Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost) for the year ended 31 March 2021:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Current Service Cost 0.38 0.36
Interest Cost 0.08 0.07
Past Service Cost - -
Net benefit expense 0.46 0.43
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the year ended 31 March 2021
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Actuarial loss due to DBO experience (0.22) 1.44
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO financial assumption changes 0.00 0.21
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during the year (0.22) 1.65
Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate 0.01 (1.41)
Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in OCI (0.21) 0.24
Balance Sheet

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Defined benefit obligation 4.74) 4.39)
Fair value of plan assets 3.36 3.26
Benefit liability (1.38) (1.13)
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020

Opening defined benefit obligation 4.39 3.75
Interest cost 0.29 0.26
Current service cost 0.38 0.36
Past service cost - -
Acquisition cost 0.02 (1.03)
Benefits paid (including transfer) (0.12) (0.61)
Actuarial losses/(gain) on obligation-experience (0.22) 1.65
Closing defined benefit obligation 4.74 4.39

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020

Opening fair value of plan assets 3.26 3.29
Acquisition adjustment 0.00 (1.03)
Contributions by employer 0.01 0.01
Benefits paid (including transfer) (0.12) (0.61)
Interest income on plan assets 0.22 0.19
Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate (0.01) 142
Closing fair value of plan assets 3.36 3.26

The Company has contributed Rs. 0.01 crore to gratuity fund during the year ended on 31 March 2021 (31 March

2020: Rs. 0.01 crore)

The major category of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets is as follows:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
(%) (%)
Investments with Insurer Managed Funds 100% 100%
Expected benefit payment for the year ended;

Particulars Amount

31 March 2022 0.80
31 March 2023 0.29
31 March 2024 0.65
31 March 2025 0.73
31 March 2026 0.42
31 March 2017 to 31 March 2031 3.08

(The space has been intentionally left blank)
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Experience adjustments for the current and previous four years are as follows:

Particulars As at As at As at As at As at
31 March | 31 March | 31 March | 31 March | 31 March
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Defined benefit obligation 4.74) (4.39) (3.75) (4.36) (2.21)
Plan assets 3.36 3.26 3.29 3.55 1.73
Funded status (1.38) (1.13) (0.46) (0.81) (0.48)
Experience gain / (loss) adjustment on plan 0.22) 1.65 0.60 (0.08) (0.09)
liabilities
Experience gain / (loss) adjustment on plan (0.01) 1.42 0.05 0.01 (0.05)
assets
Actuarial loss due to change in financial - - - 0.12 (0.10)
assumptions

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are shown below:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Discount rate (in %) 6.80% 6.80%
Salary Escalation (in %) 6.00% 6.00%
Expected rate of return on assets 8.00% 6.80%
Attrition rate (in %) 5.00% 5.00%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2021 is as shown below:

As at

31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Assumptions Discount rate
Sensitivity Level 1% 1%
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to increase (0.27) (0.26)
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to decrease 0.31 0.30

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Assumptions Future Salary Increase
Sensitivity Level 1% 1%
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to increase 0.19 0.18
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to decrease (0.19) (0.18)

(The space has been intentionally left blank)
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As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Assumptions Attrition rate
Sensitivity Level 1% 1%
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to increase 0.04 0.03
Impact on defined benefit obligation due to decrease (0.04) (0.04)

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.
The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 10 years (March 31,
2020:10 years).

38. Commitments and Contingencies

(i) Capital and Other Commitments:
(a) Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 March 2021 is Rs. Nil crores (31 March 2020: 2.02 Crore)

(b) Other commitments

i. Bank fixed deposits of Rs. 4.91 crores (31 March 2020: Rs. 6.95 crores) have been pledged as cash
margin with IDFC Bank. During the period ended 31 March 2021, pledge against Bank fixed deposit of
Rs. 6.95 crores was released subsequent to release of bid bond guarantee amounting to Rs. 69.45 crores
in respect of bidding for Thiruvananthapuram Airport, Guwahati Airport, Jaipur Airport, Bhogapuram
Airport & Nagpur Airport. Further, pledge against fixed deposit of Rs. 4.91 crores was provided during
the period due to additional performance security of Rs. 49.05 crores provided for Bhogapuram Airport,
Kannur Airport & additional skill acquisition programme.

ii. Bank Fixed deposits of Rs. 91.06 crores have been pledged as cash margin with HSBC bank during the
period ended 31 March 2021 against counter indemnity of Euro 10.53 Million (100% cash margin)

iii. As at 31 March 2021, the Company was required to pay Rs. 0.38 crores plus taxes to CARE as annual
surveillance fee each year (31 March 2020: Rs 0.26 crore) for its rating in relation to Bond issue.

iv. The Company has entered into the concession agreement with State of Greece and TERNA S.A. (Local
construction and energy conglomerate) for the purpose of design, construction, financing, operation,
maintenance and exploitation of International Airport of Heraklion, Crete, Concession SA. As per the
Concession agreement, the Company is required to invest total equity of Euro 70.2 Mn out of which
company has infused equity of Euro 29.68 Mn. (Rs. 235.29 crores) till 31 March 2021.

During the previous year ended 31 March 2020, the company has provided Committed Investment letter
of guarantee for Euro 42.12 Mn, through SPV partner TERNA S.A., in favour of (i) Ministry of
Infrastructures and Transport and (ii) International Airport of Heraklion, Crete, Concession SA.

Subsequent to providing of abovementioned Guarantee, GMR Airports limited has infused Euro 1.60 Mn
(Rs. 14.03 crores) in International Airport of Heraklion, Crete, Concession SA.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the company has given counter indemnity in the form of Bank
Guarantee of Euro 10.53 Mn issued by HSBC Bank in favour of Ministry of Infrastructure and Transport
(First Beneficiary) and Heraklion Crete International Airport Concession Societe Anonyme (Second
Beneficiary) as per the provision mentioned in Concession agreement to replace the guarantee already
provided through our partner TERNA on behalf of company.
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V.

Vi.

Vii.

Viii.

Company has separately executed Sponsor support Agreement in favour of lenders of GMR Goa
International Airport Limited (“GGIAL”) for securing debt facility of GGIAL, with following
undertakings:-

a) GMR Airports Limited is required to infuse equity of Rs. 657 crore in GGIAL as per the sponsor
support agreement. GGIAL is expecting Rs. 438 crore as deposit from concessioners and the
company is committed to provide support in case of any shortfall in receipt of deposits. As on 31
March 2021, GAL has infused equity of Rs. 384.5 crore.

b) Company undertakes to meet any shortfall in debt servicing up to 2 years of the actual
Commencement of Development (‘COD’) and thereafter lenders shall review the requirement for
continuation of such undertaking 3 months prior to the date of expiry of the undertaking. If based on
the review, the Company may be required to extend the undertaking for additional period of 2 years,
then it shall do so within a period of 15 days of such review else the entire rupee term loan becomes
payable by the Company (sponsors) and the borrowers, i.e., GGIAL on a joint & several basis. As at
31 March 2021, Development has not yet been completed.

¢) To bring (either on its own or through third parties) funds to meet the differential between the
Termination Payment received as per the provisions of the Concession Agreement in the event of
termination and outstanding debt, with respect to the Lenders under the Financing Documents.

d) To retain Management Control of the borrower company (GGIAL) during the tenure of the Facility.
The Company, being the sponsor shall, directly or indirectly, maintain a shareholding of not Less
than 51% of the equity shares of the GGIAL during the tenor of the Facility.

e) To fund any increase in Project Cost through equity/unsecured loans; if any.

f)  Anyunsecured loans of the GGIAL from Promoter/Company/ GMR Group Company Concerns shall
be subordinate, and any interest or principal payment will not be paid during the tenor of the Facility
unless the Restricted Payment Test is satisfied. Subordinate debt should carry ROI which shall be
lower than the prevailing ROI for the term loan.

g) Inthe event of invocation of Performance Bank Guarantee of Rs. 62 crore Company to infuse funds
to that extent.

h) To keep minimum of 23% of the equity stake of the GGIAL free of any encumbrance/negative lien.

GMR Airports Limited has committed to provide financial support to GMR Airports International B.V
(subsidiary of GAL) as and when required for a period less than 12 months.

GMR Airports Limited has committed to provide financial and other support, if necessary, to GMR
Airports (Singapore) Ptd. Limited (a subsidiary of GMR Airports International B.V, which is subsidiary
of GAL) to enable the company to operate as a going concern and to meets its obligation as and when
they fall due.

GAL and GAIBV executed the Second Amendment Agreement and other finance document(s), as
required to accede to the terms and conditions of the Initial Omnibus Agreement in order to assume the
obligations of GISPL and GIL, for GAL as Sponsor, and for GAIBV as Sponsor and Assignor and Share
Security Grantor.

(The space has been intentionally left blank)
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(ii) Contingent liabilities not provided for
Guarantees excluding financial guarantees

a)

b)

¢)

d)

e)

The Company has given corporate guarantee to Punjab National Bank for issuing counter guarantee of Rs.
300 crores (31 March 2020: Rs. 300 Crores ) in respect of Delhi International Airport Limited (formerly
known as Delhi International Airport Private Limited).

The Company has given corporate guarantee to Yes Bank for issuing term loan of Rs 100 Crores in earlier
year (31 March 2020: Rs. 100 Crores) in respect of GMR Airport Developers Limited. The said term loan is
fully repaid and no amount is outstanding as on 31 March 2021.

During the year, the Company has given Performance Bond Security of Rs. 46 crore (31 March 2020: NIL)
to Meet concession requirement for Bhogapuram Airport.

During the year, the company has given performance security of Rs. 0.05 Crore to additional skill acquisition
programme, as a pre-condition to hand over the civil infrastructure of the transit campus of the community
skill park, Kerala.

During the year, the company has given security deposit in the form of Bank guarantee of Rs. 3 crores in
favour of Kannur International Airport Limited (Authority) for commencement of operations as per
provisions mentioned in tripartite agreement

During the year ended 31 March 2021, previously issued bid bond guarantee amounting to Rs. 69.45 crore
in respect of bidding for Thiruvananthapuram Airport, Guwahati Airport, Jaipur Airport, Bhogapuram
Airport and Nagpur Airport has been released (31 March 2020: previously issued bid bond guarantee
amounting to Rs. 50 crores in respect of bidding for Lucknow Airport, Mangalore Airport and Ahmedabad
Airport has been released).

There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident Fund
dated 28 February 2019. As a matter of caution, the company has made a provision on a prospective basis
from the date of the SC order. The company will update its provision, on receiving further clarity on the
subject.

The following long term investments have been freeze / pledged / secured by the Company towards
borrowing of the Group Companies:

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Company Name No. of equity Amm.mt No. of equity Amm.mt

(Rs in (Rs in

Shares shares

crore) crore)
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 95,36,800 66.66 95,36,800 66.66
GMR Goa International Airport Limited 18,38,55,000 183.86 8,16,00,000 81.60
D'ell?l Airport Parking Services Private 55,78,297 3421 55.78,297 3401
Limited
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Income tax matters

a)

b)

¢)

Company had received an order under section 143(3) for the Assessment year 2014-2015 relating to
disallowance under section 14A with respect to expenditure incurred for earning the exempted income
amounting to Rs. 6.77 crores. The Company filed an appeal before CIT (appeals) against the said order but
same has been dismissed by CIT (appeals). The company has further filed appeal in ITAT against said order
which has been allowed in the favour of the Company during the previous financial year and the company
has received the refund of Rs. 2.71 crores. The Company has filed an appeal before CIT(A) against order
giving effect to ITAT order under section 254 for incorrect calculation on of disallowance under section 14A
and short grant of refund and interest.

The Company has received assessment order passed by Assessing Officer (the AO) wherein the AO has made
disallowances for AY 2016-17 amounting to Rs. 54.80 crores which consist of disallowance of Rs. 33.96
crores. under section 36(1)(iii) on axis bank term loan of Rs. 380 crores.; addition of Rs. 18.70 crores under
section 14A by applying Rule 8D; disallowance of deduction under section 80G of CSR Expenses amounting
to Rs. 0.84 crores.; addition of Rs. 1.3 crores. under section 37 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for expenses
pertaining to fund raising activities. The Company filed an appeal before CIT (appeals) against the said order.

During the previous financial year, the Company has received assessment order passed by Assessing Officer
(the AO) wherein the AO has made disallowances for AY 2017-18 amounting to Rs. 60.31 crores which
consist of disallowance of Rs. 38.49 crores under section 36(1)(iii) on term loan of Rs. 380 crores and addition
of Rs. 21.82 crores under section 14A by applying Rule 8D. The Company filed an appeal before CIT
(appeals) against the said order.

Based on the internal Assessment, the management is of the view that there is no requirement of any provision to
be made in the standalone financial statements in respect of the aforementioned matters.

Other Matters

a)

b)

During the year, the Company is in receipt of demand-cum-Show Cause Notice No. 49/2020-21 Dated 23
September 2020 bearing C. No. [-26(494)/CT/Adt-11/C-16/G-24/AMR-628/GMR  Airport/149/19-20/2509,
wherein a demand of service tax has been proposed amounting to Rs. 4.19 crores along with interest and
penalty, on account of non-payment of service tax on Corporate Guarantees given to subsidiaries, group
companies or joint venture companies. The show cause notice pertains to the period from April 2014 to June
2017 i.e. covering three years and a quarter of the FY 2017-18.

Based on the legal opinion, GAL has filed the reply to the SCN on 13 January 2021 and the Order is yet to be
passed by the adjudicating authority.

During the year, the Company is in receipt of Notice GST ASMT-10 reference No. ZD070121016464X Dated
21 January 2021 for the FY 2018-19 and GST ASMT-10 reference No. ZD0703210158000 Dated 15 March
2021 for the FY 2019-20 wherein a demand of GST tax has been proposed amounting to Rs. 0.02 crores and
Rs. 0.62 crores for the FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 respectively along with interest, on account of GST ITC
difference in GSTR-2A and GSTR-3B.

GAL has filed the reply to the notices on 5 February 2021 and 5 April 2021 for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20
respectively with the Assistant Commissioner and no further communication has been received in the matter
by the company from the authority.
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39. Related party disclosures

1. Names of Related parties and description of relationship:

Ultimate Holding Company

GMR Enterprises Private Limited (formerly known as
GMR Holding Private Limited)

Holding Company

GMR Infrastructure Limited

Subsidiaries and step-down subsidiaries

Delhi International Airport Limited

Delhi Aerotropolis Private Limited'*"®

GMR Airport Developers Limited

GADL (Mauritius) Limited**!”

GADL International Limited (Cease to be Subsidiary
w.e.f. 21 May 2019)*

GMR Airports (Mauritius) Ltd.

GMR Goa International Airport Limited

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited
Hyderabad Duty Free Retail Limited®

GMR Aero Technic Limited***

GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Private
Limited***

GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited (formerly known as
GMR Hotels And Resorts Limited)®

GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited’

GMR Hyderabad Airport Power Distribution Limited® * '°
(Applied with ROC for striking off name)

GMR Hyderabad Aviation SEZ Limited’

Hyderabad Airport Security Services Limited (Liquidated
w.e.f. 13 September 2019)°

GMR Airports International B.V

Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited ''°
GMR Airports (Singapore) Pte Limited (became
subsidiary w.e.f. 24 July 2019)°

GMR Nagpur International Airport Limited (became
subsidiary w.e.f. 22 August 2019)

GMR Kannur Duty Free Services Limited (became
subsidiary w.e.f. 20 November 2019)

GMR Viskhapatnam International Airport Limited
(became subsidiary w.e.f. 19 May 2020)

GMR Airport Greece Single Member SA’
(incorporated on 13" January 2020)

GMR Hyderabad Airport Assets Limited

(became subsidiary w.e.f. 25 November 2020)*
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Joint Venture Company

International Airport Of Heraklion, Crete, Concession SA
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited'®"!

GMR Megawide Cebu Airport Corporation’

Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Pvt. Ltd.!

WAISL Ltd. (ceased to be a joint venture w.e.f. 26 June
2019)!

Lagshya Hyderabad Airport Media Pvt. Ltd.?

Delhi Aviation Services Private Limited'

GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower private Limited'

Mactan Travel Retail Group Corporation'**'?

SSP Mactan Cebu Corporation'**'?

Associate Company

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Pvt. Limited'
TIM Delhi Airport Advertisement Private Limited'
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private
Limited'

Digi Yatra Foundation'

GMR Logistics Park Private Limited'®

Fellow Subsidiaries (including subsidiaries
companies of the ultimate holding
Company (where transactions have taken
place)

GMR Aviation Private Limited

Raxa Security Services Limited

Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited

GMR Corporate Affairs Pvt. Ltd.

GMR Aero-Structure Services Limited

Dhruvi Securities Private Limited

GMR Infra Developers Limited

Kakinada SEZ Limited

GMR Business Process and Services Private Limited
GMR League Games Private Limited

Shareholder's having substantial
interest/enterprises having significant
influences over the subsidiaries/ Joint
ventures/associates

GMR Infra Services Limited (Formerly known as GMR
SEZ Infra Services Limited) ®
Aeroports de Paris S.A

Private Company in which a director or
manager or his relatives is a director or
member

JSW GMR Cricket Private Limited( formerly known as
GMR Sports Private Limited)

Enterprise owned or significantly
influenced by key management personnel
or their relatives

GMR Family Fund Trust
GMR Varalakshmi Foundation

Key management personnel

Mr. G. M. Rao (Non- Executive Chairman)

Mr. GBS Raju ( Vice Chairman)

Mr. L. Prabhakar Rao (Executive Director)

Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar (Joint Managing Director and
CEO)

Mr. Srinivas Bommidala (Joint Managing Director)
Mr. N.C. Sarabeswaran (Independent Director)

Mr. R.S.S.L.N. Bhaskarudu (Independent Director)
Mrs. Siva Kameswari Vissa ((Independent Director)
Mr. Suresh Goyal (Nominee Director)

Mr. G.R.K Babu (Chief Financial officer)

Mrs. Deepanjali Gulati (Company Secretary)'”
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Mr. Saurabh Jain (Company Secretary)”

Mr. K. Narayana Rao (Director) ®

Mr. Gratien Geoges Lucien Maire (Director) ’

Mr. Olivier Pierre Guichard (Director)’

Mr. Augustin de Romanet de Beaune (Director)"
Mr. Philippe Pascal(Director)'

Mr. Xavier Hurstel(Director)'

Eal o

a

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.
20.

Step down subsidiary/joint venture/associate of Delhi International Airport Limited

Step down subsidiary of GMR Airport Developers Limited

Step down subsidiary/joint venture of GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 10 December 2018 has approved, subject
to the required approvals, the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst GMR Hyderabad Air Cargo and
Logistics Private Limited (“GHACLPL”)(Transferor Company) and GMR Aero Technic Limited
(“GATL”)(Demerged company) and GMR Aerospace Engineering Limited("GAEL”)(Transferee/Resulting
Company) and their respective Shareholders and Creditors (“Scheme”), wherein GHACLPL will merge with
GAEL with an appointed date of 1 April 2018. The above scheme has received the approval of NCLT on 26
July 2019 and thereafter filed with the Register of Companies on 29 July 2019. Pursuant to the approve
scheme of arrangement entered into between GHACLPL, GAEL and GATL and its shareholders and as
approved by NCLT, the scheme become effective w.e.f. 1 April 2018 and the revised name of the company
is GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Private Limited.

Mr. Suresh Goyal has resigned w.e.f 25 February 2020.

Mr. K. Narayana Rao has been appointed as Director w.e.f 17 February 2020.

Mr. Gratien Geoges Lucien Maire and Mr. Olivier Pierre Guichard has been appointed as Director w.e.f 25
February 2020. Mr. Gratien Geoges Lucien Maire and Mr. Olivier Pierre Guichard has been resigned from
directorship w.e.f 24 February 2021.

Shareholding of GISL has been transferred during the current year to ADP.

Step down subsidiary/joint venture of GMR Airports International B.V

GMR Airports Limited holds 40.1% shares

GMR Airports Limited holds 17.03% shares

Step down joint venture of GMR Megawide Cebu Airport Corporation

GMR Airports International B.V holds 8.34% shares

Mr. Augustin de Romanet de Beanue, Mr. Philippe Pascal and Mr. Xavier Hurstel has been appointed as
director w.e.f 5 February 2021.

An application was made on 11 August 2020 with the Registrar of company (ROC), Delhi seeking its
approval for removal of name of the company from the Register of companies, being maintained by the
ROC.

Dissolution of GMR Hyderabad Airport Power Distribution limited, w.e.f 13 March 2021, consequent to
striking off of the Companies name by ROC — Telangana.

Ceased to be subsidiary of GAL w.e.f 25 December 2020, pursuant to dissolution order approved by the
Mauritius Government through its publication in its official Gazette under General Notice no:72 of 2021.
GMR Hyderabad Aerotropolis Limited holds 30% shareholding.

Mrs. Deepanjali Gulati has resigned w.e.f 31 July 2020.

Mr. Saurabh Jain has been appointed as company secretory w.e.f 1 August 2020 and has resigned w.e.f 26
February 2021.
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Details of transactions existing with related parties during the year ended 31 March 2021 along with balances

as at year end:

A. Transactions during the year

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Interest Income

GMR Infrastructure Limited 25.39 30.89
GMR Airports International BV 183.53 155.87
GMR Aero-structure Service Limited 4.43 245
Kakinada Sez Limited 25.52 2.42
GMR Airport Developers Limited - 0.07
Income from Aviation academy
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.58 0.34
GMR Aviation Private Limited - 0.00
GMR Airport Developers Limited - 0.27
Delhi International Airport Limited (Formerly known as Delhi
International Airport Private Limited) 0.36 -
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited - 0.00
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Private Limited - 0.07
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited - 0.01
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Pvt Ltd - 0.00
GMR Infrastructure Limited - 0.02
GMR Aero Technic Limited - 0.01
Dividend income
GMR Airport Developers Limited 10.20 9.18
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited - 59.53
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited - 14.99
Delhi Airport Parking Services Pvt Ltd - 11.76
Consultancy Income
GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited- Hyderabad Duty Free Division 3.51 3.16
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Private Limited 6.63 5.81
Delhi Airport Parking Services Pvt Ltd 6.60 6.00
Tim Delhi Airport Advertising Pvt Ltd. 2.70 4.25
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited - 7.50
GMR Airport Developers Limited 5.00 -
Other Income
GMR Airport Developers Limited (Financial Guarantee ) 0.07 0.15
GMR Infrastructure Limited (Miscellaneous income) - 5.76
Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited (Security Deposit) 0.11 -
Cost Allocation
GMR Hyderabad International Airport 14.82 21.71
Delhi International Airport Limited (Formerly known as Delhi
International Airport Private Limited) 35.61 58.31
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Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Other expenses

Rent

Delhi International Airport Limited (Formerly known as Delhi

International Airport Private Limited) 2.37 0.94
Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited 1.79 1.63
GMR Business Process And Services 0.15 0.32
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited - 0.23
Legal and professional fees

Raxa Security Services Limited 1.60 1.47
GMR Infrastructure Limited 4.18 2.32
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited - 0.17
GMR Corporate Affairs Pvt Ltd - 0.10
GMR Hospitality & Retail Limited (Formerly Known as GMR Hotels

And Resorts Limited) - 0.08
Logo fees

GMR Enterprises Private Limited (Formerly known as GMR Holding

Private Limited) 1.05 1.46
Travelling and conveyance

GMR Aviation Private Limited 1.04 7.89
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.02 0.03
Delhi International Airport Limited 0.01 -
GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited - 0.00
Training expenses

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited - 0.00
GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited (Formerly known as GMR

Hotels And Resorts Limited - 0.00
Raxa Security Services Limited 0.00 -
Electricity and water charges

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.00 0.11
Delhi International Airport Limited 0.00 -
GMR Infrastructure Limited 0.00 -
Communication expenses

Delhi International Airport Limited 0.00 -
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited - 0.01
CSR Expenditure

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation - 0.61
Repair & Maintenance Expenses others

Delhi International Airport Limited (Formerly known as Delhi

International Airport Private Limited) 0.24 1.04
GMR Airport Developers Limited - 2.33
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Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Interest on Lease Liability

Delhi International Airport Limited (Formerly known as Delhi

International Airport Private Limited) 0.14 0.08
Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited 0.10 0.26
Depreciation (Lease)

Delhi International Airport Limited (Formerly known as Delhi

International Airport Private Limited) 0.86 0.83
Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited 1.64 1.64
Miscellaneous expenses

GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited (formerly known as GMR Hotels

And Resorts Limited) 0.15 0.02
GMR League Games Private Limited 0.00 -
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited - 0.01
GMR Goa International Airport Limited (Bidding expenses) 0.05 -
Reimbursement of expenses

Delhi International Airport Limited (Formerly known as Delhi

International Airport Private Limited) 0.16 0.01
GMR Infrastructure Limited 0.00 -
Delhi Aviation Fuel Facility Pvt. Ltd - 0.07
GMR Aero Technic Limited - 0.05
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Private Limited - 0.11
GMR Megawide Cebu Airport Corporation - 1.43
Raxa Security Services Limited - 0.58
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Pvt Ltd 0.09 0.14
Wipro Airport IT Services Limited - 0.03
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 0.29 -
Celebi Delhi Cargo Terminal Management India Private 0.25 -
Limited

Recovery of expenses

GMR Infrastructure Limited - 12.43
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited - 0.05
GMR Kannur Duty Free Services Limited - 0.03
GMR Nagpur International Airport Limited - 0.03
GMR Visakhapatnam International Airport Limited 0.10 -
Remuneration to key managerial personnel*

Salary, bonus and contribution to PF

Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar 2.15 4.09
Mr. Srinivas Bommidala 2.10 4.09
Mr. 1. Prabhakar Rao 0.82 1.09
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Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Director sitting fees
Mr. N.C. Sarabeswaran 0.06 0.07
Mr. R.S.S.L.N. Bhaskarudu 0.06 0.07
Mrs.Siva Kameswari Vissa 0.06 0.07
Mr. GBS Raju 0.02 0.02
Mr. GM Rao 0.02 0.02
Loan given to
GMR Infrastructure Limited 416.00 425.00
GMR Aero-structure Service Limited 220.00 25.00
GMR Airport Developers Limited - 50.00
Kakinada SEZ Limited - 425.00
Loan refunded by:
GMR Infrastructure Limited 200.00 460.00
GMR Aero-structure Service Limited - 25.00
GMR Airport Developers Limited - 50.00
Kakinada SEZ Limited 425.00 -
Security Deposit
Delhi International Airport Limited 0.01 -
Non-current investment in subsidiary company
GMR Goa International Airport Limited 189.00 75.00
GMR Airports International BV - 7.36
GMR Nagpur International Airport Limited - 0.01
GMR Visakhapatnam International Airport Limited 4.50 -
GMR Kannur Duty Free Services Limited 0.99 -
Investment in Optionally convertible debentures
GMR Airports International BV - 58.78
Investment in Share Application Money
GMR Goa International Airport Limited - 6.50
GMR Kannur Duty Free Services Limited - 0.01
GMR Visakhapatnam International Airport Limited 4.50 -
Non-current investment in joint venture company
International Airport of Heraklion, Crete, Concession SA 14.04 217.22
Issue of class A, B, C & D Bonus CCPS
GMR Infrastructure Limited 259.48 -
GMR Infra Developer Limited 1.38 -
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(All amounts in Rupees crores, except otherwise stated)

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Issue of class A Bonus CCPS

GMR Infrastructure Limited - 135.56
GMR Infra Services Limited (formerly known as GMR SEZ Infra
Services Limited) - 45.48
Dhruvi Securities Private Limited - 0.96
Provision for doubtful debts (including non-trade receivables)
Delhi International Airport Limited 0.02 0.04
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.00 0.00
GMR Infrastructure Limited 0.08 0.01
GMR Goa International Airport Limited 2.23 0.22
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited - 0.00
Provision for doubtful advances
GMR Aerostructure Services Limited 0.04 -
Kakinada SEZ Limited - 1.70
Provision on Optionally Convertible Debentures
GMR Airports International B.V

0.44 1.56
Infusion of equity (including Security Premium)
Aeroports de Paris S.A. 1,000.00 -

(The space has been intentionally left blank)
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B. Balance outstanding as at period/year end As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Investment in subsidiary

GMR Airport Developers Limited 297.39 278.79
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 6,809.80 6,623.20
Delhi International Airport Limited 10,781.00 11,958.65
GMR Goa International Airport Limited 533.90 471.96
GMR Airports (Mauritius) Limited 0.90 0.92
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 223.60 257.71
GMR Airports International B.V (Netherlands) 8.20 25.57
GMR Nagpur International Airport Limited 0.01 0.01
GMR Kannur Duty Free Services Limited 1.00 -
GMR Vishakhapatnam International Airport Limited 4.50 -

Investment on fair valuation of Financial Guarantee

GMR Airport Developers Limited 1.02 1.02
Investment in joint venture company

International Airport of Heraklion, Crete, Concession SA 221.30 221.25
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited 778.10 940.07
Investment in Share Application Money

GMR Goa International Airport Limited - 6.50
GMR Kannur Duty Free Services Limited - 0.01
GMR Vishakhapatnam International Airport Limited 4.50 -
Trade receivables

GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited (Duty Free Division) 1.03 0.85
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Private Limited 0.67 1.41
Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 1.95 1.77
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.19 0.17
Delhi International Airport Limited 0.60 0.17
Tim Delhi Airport Advertising Pvt Ltd. 3.13 4.59
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited - 8.85
GMR Aerostructure Service Limited 0.13 -

Provision for doubtful debts- Trade Receivables

Delhi International Airport Limited 0.02 0.02

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.00 -

Non-Trade Receivables

GMR Infrastructure Limited 0.80 0.54
Delhi International Airport Limited 0.00 16.10
GMR Goa International Airport Limited 2.23 2.23

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited - 6.92
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As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Provision for doubtful debts- Non- Trade Receivables
GMR Infrastructure Limited 0.08 0.00
GMR Goa International Airport Limited 2.23 0.22
Delhi International Airport Limited 0.00 0.02
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited - 0.01
Other Recoverable
Delhi International Airport Limited 11.03 -
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 4.20 -
GMR Infrastructure Limited 1.82
GMR Kannur Duty Free Services Limited 1.87 0.03
GMR Nagpur International Airport Limited 0.03 0.03
GMR Vishakhapatnam International Airport Limited 0.53 -
Security Deposit
Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited 1.23 1.12
Delhi International Airport Limited 0.01 -
Loans
GMR Infrastructure Limited 216.00 -
GMR Aerostructure Services Limited 220.00 -
Kakinada SEZ Limited - 427.18
Provision for doubtful advances
GMR Infrastructure Limited 0.86 -
GMR Aerostructure Services Limited 0.88 -
Kakinada SEZ Limited - 1.70
Provision on Optionally Convertible Debentures
GMR Airports International B.V 8.67 8.23
Unbilled revenue
GMR Airport Developers Limited 5.00 -
GMR Air Cargo and Aerospace Engineering Private Limited 0.61 -
Investment- Optionally convertible debentures
GMR Airports International B.V 2,168.65 2,058.43
Financial Liability
Financial Guarantee
GMR Airport Developers Limited - 0.07
Liability Component of CCPS
GMR Infrastructure Limited 440.51 135.56
GMR Infra Developer Limited 2.35 -
GMR Infra Services Limited
(formerly known as GMR SEZ Infra Services Limited) - 45.48
Dhruvi Securities Private Limited - 0.96
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As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Trade payables
GMR Infrastructure Limited 2.18 0.72
Raxa Security Services Limited 0.16 0.81
Delhi International Airport Limited 0.73 0.55
GMR Business Process and Service Private Limited 0.04 0.08
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited 0.01 0.11
GMR Hospitality and Retail Limited 0.14 -
GMR Enterprises Private Limited 1.05 1.39
Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited 0.14 0.27
GMR Airport Developers Limited - -
GMR Corporate Affairs Private Limited 0.10 0.10
Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Pvt Ltd 0.00 0.00
GMR Aerostructure Services Limited - 0.02
GMR Delhi Duty Free Services Limited 0.27 -
Non-Trade payables
GMR Kannur Duty Free Services Limited - 0.01
Right of Use (Lease Asset)
Delhi International Airport Limited 1.78 0.34
Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited 0.14 1.78
Lease Liability
Delhi International Airport Limited 1.88 0.38
Grandhi Enterprises Private Limited 0.15 1.84

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties: -

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. For the period ended
31 March 2021, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related
parties (31 March 2020: Rs Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Contingent liabilities / Commitments with related parties:

The contingent liabilities and commitments in respect of related parties are provided in note no 38 above, forming
part of these standalone financial statements.

Transactions with key management personnel

The transaction with key management personnel includes the payment of director sitting fees and managerial
remuneration which are provided in note no 39 (a) & (b) above. There are no other transactions with the Key
management personnel.

'The remuneration of the key management personnel is determined by the Remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of the individual and the market trend.
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¢) Interest in significant subsidiaries and joint venture

Name of the Entity Relationship Ownership Date of Country of
interest incorporation incorporation

Delhi International Airport Subsidiary 64.00% 01 March 2006 India
Limited

GMR Hyderabad International Subsidiary 63.00% 17 December 2002 India
Airport Limited

Delhi Duty Free Services Joint 17.03% 07 July 2009 India
Private Limited Venture

(Directly)

GMR Airport Developers Subsidiary 100% 13 June 2008 India
Limited

GMR Airports (Mauritius) Subsidiary 100% 18 January 2013 Mauritius
Limited

GMR Goa International Airport | Subsidiary 99.99% 14 October 2016 India
Limited

GMR Airports International BV | Subsidiary 100% 28 May 2018 Netherlands
Delhi Airport Parking Services Subsidiary 40.10% 11 February 2010 India
Private Limited (Directly)

International Airport of Joint 21.64% 12 February 2019 Greece
Heraklion, Crete, Venture

Concession SA (w.e.f. from 6

February 2020)

GMR Nagpur International Subsidiary 100% 22 August 2019 India
Airport Limited

GMR Kannur Duty Free Subsidiary 100% 20 November 2019 India
Services Limited
GMR Visakhapatnam Subsidiary 100% 19 May 2020 India
International Airport Limited

40. Segment Information

The Company is primarily engaged in a single segment i.e. Investment Activities. The risk and returns of the
Company are predominantly determined by its principal activity and the Company’s activities fall within a single
business and geographical segment.
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41. Fair Value

The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities (except for certain other financial assets and liabilities i.e.
‘Instruments carried at fair value’) appearing in the standalone financial statements is reasonable approximation of
fair values. Such instruments carried at fair value are disclosed below:

As at 31 March 2021

Particulars FVT FVT other | Amortized | Total Total Fair
statement | comprehen | Cost Carrying | Value
of P& L sive Value
income

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents ) ) 12.42 12.42 12.42
Bank balance other than cash and cash B B 98.27 98.27 98.27
equivalents
Trade Receivables B B 50.90 50.90 50.90
Loans - - 441.04 441.04 441.04
Investments in Mutual Funds 158.79 - - 158.79 158.79
Investments in Commercial Papers } } } } }

- 19,660.72 - 19,660.72 19,660.72
Investments in JV and Subsidiaries
Investment in Optionally Convertible - - 2168.65 2168.65 2168.65
Debentures in subsidiary
Other financial assets - - 10.83 10.83 10.83
Total 158.79 19,660.72 2,782.11 22,601.62 22,601.62
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables - - 42.01 42.01 42.01
Debt Securities - - 3,060.43 3,060.43 3,060.43
Lease Liability - - 2.08 2.08 2.08
Other financial liabilities - - 444.79 444.79 444.79
Total - - 3,549.31 3,549.31 3,549.31

(The space has been intentionally left blank)
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As at 31 March 2020

Particulars FVT FVT other Amortized | Total Total Fair
statement | comprehen | Cost Carrying | Value
of P& L sive Value
income

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents ) ) 1.43 1.43 1.43
Bank balance other than cash and cash B B 7.58 7.58 7.58
equivalents
Trade Receivables ) ) 59.66 59.66 59.66
Loans - - 430.25 430.25 430.25
Investments in Mutual Funds 97.09 - - 97.09 97.09
Investments in Commercial Papers } 3 24.41 24.41 24.41

_ - -] 20,779.15 -] 20,779.15 | 20,779.15
Investments in JV and Subsidiaries
Investment in Optionally Convertible - - 2,058.43 2,058.43 2,058.43
Debentures in subsidiary
Other financial assets - - 32.05 32.05 32.05
Total 97.09 20,779.15 2,613.81 23,490.05 23,490.05
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables - - 21.69 21.69 21.69
Debt Securities - - 3,276.86 3,276.86 3,276.86
Lease Liability - - 2.81 2.81 2.81
Other financial liabilities - - 183.31 183.31 183.31
Total - - 3,484.67 3,484.67 3,484.67

Assumption used in estimating the fair values:

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

(The space has been intentionally left blank)
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42. Fair value Hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities grouped

into Level I to Level 3 as described below:

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2021:

Fair value measurement using

Quoted Significant | Significant
Financial assets & Financials Liabilities Total prices in observable | unobserva
measured at fair value active inputs ble inputs

markets

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financials Assets
Investments in subsidiaries and Joint venture 19,660.72 - - 19,660.72
Investment in Mutual Fund 158.79 158.79 - -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2020:

Fair value measurement using

Quoted Significant | Significant
Financial assets & Financials Liabilities Total prices in observable | unobserva
measured at fair value active inputs ble inputs

markets

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financials Assets
Investments in subsidiaries and Joint venture 20,779.15 - - 20,779.15
Investment in Mutual Fund 97.09 97.09 - -

a. Short-term financial assets and liabilities are stated at carrying value which is approximately equal to their

fair value.

b. Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there

are inherent limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments,
the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company
could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial
instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each reporting

date

c. Fair value of mutual funds and overseas funds is determined based on the net asset value of the funds.

d. There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2021.

(The space has been intentionally left blank)
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Reconciliation of fair value measurements of unquoted equity share classified as FVTOCI assets:

Particulars Amounts
As at 1 April 2019 17,334.74
Purchases (Investment during the year) 299.58
Re-measurement recognised in OCI 3,144.83
As at 31 March 2020 20,779.15
Purchases (Investment during the year) 215.05
Re-measurement recognised in OCI (1,333.48)
As at 31 March 2021 19,660.72

The significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement categorised with in Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are
as shown below:

Description of significant unobservable input to valuation:

Unquoted equity Valuation Significant Range Sensitivity of the
security technique unobservable (weightage input to the fair
inputs average) value
FVTOCI assets in | Combination of | Discounting  Rate | 31 March 2021: | 1% increase in the
unquoted equity | income  approach | (Cost of Equity) 10.5% to 22% discounting rate will
share and adjusted net have a significant
assets value 31 March 2020: adverse impact on
approach 12% to 22% the fair value of
equity investments.

¢ Financial risk management objectives and policies
In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates, interest rates, equity prices, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its
financial instruments. The Company has a risk management policy which not only covers the foreign
exchange risks but also other risks associated with the financial assets and liabilities such as interest rate
risks and credit risks. The risk management policy is approved by the Board of Directors. The risk
management framework aims to:

o Create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate
fluctuations on the Company’s business plan.

o Achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the financial value of the expected
earnings in advance.
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43. Risk Management

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and
other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company doesn't hold
"Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)" investments.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees
the management of these risks. The Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies
and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarised below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include loans and borrowings and deposits.

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating
interest rates of the debt and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant in place at
31 March 2021.

The analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other
post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020:
The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

e The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market
risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2020.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
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Interest rate sensitivity:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of
loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax (PBT) is
affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/decrease in basis points Effect on PBT
31 March 2021* Amount
INR 25 bp increase - Decrease in profit -
INR 25 bp decrease - Increase in profit -
31 March 2020
INR 25 bp increase - Decrease in profit -
INR 25 bp decrease - Increase in profit -

*As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 the company does not have any floating rate borrowings.
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and
the Company’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates, with all

other variables held constant. The impact on the Company’s profit before tax (PBT) is due to changes in the fair
value of asset and liabilities.

Effects on PBT

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
USD Sensitivity
INR/USD- Increase by 5% 108.12 102.87
INR/USD- decrease by 5% (108.12) (102.87)
EURO Sensitivity
INR/EUR- Increase by 5% (0.22) (0.02)
INR/EUR- decrease by 5% 0.22 0.02
AED Sensitivity
INR/AED- Increase by 5% (0.04) -
INR/AED- decrease by 5% 0.04 -
CHF Sensitivity
INR/CHF- Increase by 5% - (0.00)
INR/CHF- decrease by 5% - 0.00

(The space has been intentionally left blank)




GMR Airports Limited

CIN U65999KA1992PLC037455

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Rupees crores, except otherwise stated)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a
reasonable price. The Company's management is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management.
Management monitors the Company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash
flows.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the company's financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

Dez:n d Lenslsofll:i‘:sl 3 l::ut)(:l tlhzs 1 to 5 years >5 years Total

As at 31 March 2021

Borrowings* - - 43.36 3,045.81 - 3.089.17
Trade payables - 42.01 - - - 42.01
Lease Liabilities 0.33 0.87 0.88 - 2.08
Other financial - 0.69 1.24 442.86 - 444.79
liabilities

Total - 43.03 45.47 3,489.55 - 3,578.05
Asat 31 March 2020

Borrowings* - 54.12 3,272.04 - - 3,326.16
Trade payables 21.69 - - - - 21.69
Lease Liabilities - 0.78 1.86 0.17 - 2.81
Other financial - 0.63 0.67 182.00 - 183.30
Liabilities

Total 21.69 55.53 3,274.57 182.17 - 3,533.96

*For range of interest, repayment schedule and security details refer note 17.
Price Risk

The Company's exposure to price risk arises from investments held and classified in the balance sheet either as fair
value through other comprehensive income or at fair value through profit or loss. To manage the price risk arising
from investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assets.

Particulars Change in Effect on
Price Profit Before
tax
As at 31 March 2021 5.00% 7.94
As at 31 March 2020 5.00% 4.85
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables and other financial assets) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables- Customer credit risk is managed by Company subject to the Company’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based
on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment.
Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any services to major customers are generally covered
by bank guarantee or other forms of credit assurance.
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Financial instruments and cash deposits- Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed
by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are
made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counter party. Counterparty credit
limits are reviewed by the Company’s senior management on regular basis, and may be updated throughout the year.
The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s
potential failure to make payments.

The Company has given Corporate Guarantee to Yes Bank Limited for issuing Term Loan of Rs. 100 Crores (31
March 2020: Rs.100 Crores) in respect of GMR Airport Developers Limited. The said term loan is fully repaid and
no amount is outstanding as on 31 march 2021 [Refer note 38(ii)].
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44. Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company. The primary objective of the Company’s
capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and
the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend, payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity plus total debt. The
Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents and other
bank balances not classified as cash & cash equivalents.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Debt Securities and Borrowings (including current maturities) 3,060.43 3,276.86
Total debts (A) 3,060.43 3,276.86
Share Capital 1,406.67 1,328.39
Other Equity 14,184.89 14,780.05
Total Equity (B) 15,591.56 16,108.44
Total equity and total debt (C=A+B) 18,651.99 19,385.30
Gearing Ratio (%) (A/C) 16.41% 16.90%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure
requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in
the current year. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.
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45. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining 278 0.09
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 2.78 0.09
Interest due on above - -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 - -
of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during
each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay - -
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end - -
of each accounting year
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even - -
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of
the MSMED Act 2006

46. Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis) *
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Legal and professional fees 23.31 21.16
Bank guarantee charges 12.03 -
Training expenses 1.24 0.49
Lease rental 0.90 -
Travelling and conveyance - 6.59
Miscellaneous expenses 0.30 6.35
Total 37.78 34.59

*The above expenses are before cost allocation/recovery
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47. Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis)

48.

49.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Aviation Academy Income - 0.71
Interest income on OCD 183.53 158.84
Total 183.53 159.55

a. As per regulation 10 of the prudential norms issued by Reserve bank of India (“RBI”), every Non-Banking
Financial Institution i.e. Systematically Important Core Investment Company (CIC-ND-SI) is required to make
provision @ 0.40% (31 March 2020: 0.40%) on all standard assets and as per regulation 9 at other defined
percentages for all “sub-standard assets, doubtful assets and loss assets”.

In order to comply with the prudential norms, the Company, based on the internal assessment, has identified
only interest bearing assets to be considered for provisioning. Accordingly, the Company has created provision
on standard assets @ 0.40% (31 March 2020: 0.40%) on inter corporate deposits & optionally convertible
debenture.

b. In addition to above; management has also created provision @ 10% - 100% on the trade receivables and
other receivables (31 March 2020: provision @ 10% on the loan to related party, trade receivables and other
receivables), as per the requirement of master directions-core investments companies (reserve bank)
Directions.

During the previous year, the Company has issued 273,516,392 Bonus non-cumulative compulsorily
convertible preference shares series A each having a face value of Rs. 10 each, for an aggregate face value of
INR 2,735,163,920 as per terms of Shareholders” Agreement ('SHA'") dated 20 February 2020 among the
Company, Aéroports de Paris S.A. (‘ADP’), GMR Infrastructure Limited (‘GIL”), and GMR Infra Services
Limited (‘GISL’), and the Share Subscription and Share Purchase Agreement dated 20 February 2020
(“SSPA”) entered among ADP, GIL, GMR Infra Developers Limited, GISL and Company. These CCPS are
convertible into equity shares no later than 15 November 2024 in accordance with terms of SHA.

Further, during the Current year as part of second closing with ADP, the Company has issued Bonus CCPS
series B, C and D each having a face value of Rs. 10 each, for an aggregate face value of INR 1,693,392,470
as per terms of the revised Shareholders agreement dated 7 July 2020. Bonus CCPS Series B, C and D are
convertible into such number of equity shares in accordance with schedule 12 of amended shareholder
agreement which are dependent on GAL consolidated target EBIDTA for financial year ended 31 March 2022,
31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024. Bonus Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares Series A, Series B,
Series C and Series D are together herein referred as Bonus CCPS’.

All these Bonus CCPS are convertible into the equity shares of the Company as per the terms and conditions
specified in the SHA. These Bonus CCPS are issued to the shareholders of the Company as Bonus Shares and
are non-redeemable and can only be converted into equity shares of the Company. These Bonus CCPS are
currently recorded at the face value not at fair value in accordance with Ind As 109 ‘Financial Instruments’.
The difference between the fair value and face value being notional in nature, amounting to Rs. 1,271.34 crore
does not impact the Other Equity. Considering the terms of these Bonus CCPS, once converted, the requisite
adjustments will be made in the Other Equity.
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50. a. GMR Infrastructure Limited, the Holding Company along with other shareholders of the Company,
(together referred as “GMR Group”) had signed a share subscription and share purchase agreement with
Aeroports DE Paris S.A. (ADP) for stake sale in the Company on 20 February 2020. Pursuant to consummation
of the same, ADP would hold 49% stake (directly & indirectly) in the Company for an equity consideration of
Rs 10,780.00 crore, valuing the Company at the Base post money valuation of Rs. 22,000.00 crore. The equity
consideration comprises of’

e Rs.9,780.00 crore towards secondary sale of shares by GMR Group; and
e Rs. 1,000.00 crore equity infusion in the Company

In addition, ADP had also pegged Earn-outs upto Rs. 4,475.00 crore linked to achievement of certain agreed
operating performance metrics as well as on receipt of certain regulatory clarifications. The successful
consummation of earnouts, could increase, the Company’s valuation on post money basis to Rs. 26,475.00
crore and the Group stake in the Company to ~59%. The Group will retain management control over the
Airports Business with ADP having customary rights and board representation at Company and its key
subsidiaries.

The first tranche of Rs 5,248.00 crore for 24.99% shares of the Company (primarily through buyout of GMR
Infra Services Limited (GISL) via primary infusion of equity) had been completed on 24 February 2020. The
second and final tranche of Rs. 5,532.00 crore (including primary of Rs. 1,000.00 crore in GAL) was subject
to regulatory approvals, consents and other approvals.

Since 31 March 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 and related global responses have caused material disruptions
to businesses around the world, leading to an economic slowdown. Despite unprecedented adverse conditions,
on 7 July 2020 the Group has completed the transaction with ADP with slight modifications. As per the revised
Share Purchase Agreement (“Revised SPA”), the second tranche of the investment for 24.01% of the Company
has been structured in two parts:

e A firm amount, immediately paid at Second closing, for a total of Rs. 4,565.00 crore, including Rs.
1,000.00 crore equity infusion in the Company.

e Earn-outs amounting to Rs 1,060.00 crore, subject to the achievement of certain performance related
targets by the Company upto the financial year ended 31 March 2024.

Accordingly, ADP has increased earn-outs for the GMR Group which are now pegged at up to Rs. 5,535.00
crore compared to the earlier Rs. 4,475.00 crore. These additional Earn-outs of Rs. 1,060.00 crore are linked
to the achievement of certain agreed EBITDA metrics/ levels. The Company has received Rs. 1,000 crore as
equity infusion as part of second tranche in accordance with the terms of Revised SPA.

(The space has been intentionally left blank)



GMR Airports Limited

CIN U65999KA1992PL.C037455

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Rupees crores, except otherwise stated)

c. In terms of the Settlement Documents, pertaining to arbitration proceedings in relation to conversion of
Noncumulative compulsorily convertible participatory preference shares (‘CCPS’) A and CCPS B subscribed
by certain investors (‘PE Investors’), between the Company, Holding Company and PE investors, the Company
took approval from the shareholders in Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29 September 2018,
for issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures (‘NCD”) for an amount not exceeding Rs. 2,050 crore (Rupees
Two Thousand fifty crore) on a private placement basis for the following purposes:

e for acquisition of or investment in airports and airport related assets,

e refinancing some of the existing loans of the Company and general corporate purposes including
towards payment of any fees and expenses for issuance of the NCDs

e in order to cater to the financial requirements of the future expansion plan of the Company.

The Company vide Information Memorandum dated 15 October 2018 and 24 October 2018, circulated letter
of offer to the PE Investors for issuance of 149,000 (One Lakh Forty Nine Thousand) and 56,000 (Fifty Six
Thousand) unlisted, unrated, unsecured, non-convertible debentures redeemable not more than three years
from the date of allotment aggregating upto Rs. 1,490 crore and Rs. 560 crore respectively on private placement
basis. The PE investors subscribed the issue on 16 October 2018 and 24 October 2018 respectively, the
allotment of which was approved by the Board of Director on the same date.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, GAL repaid Rs. 1,306.14 crore (31 March 2020: Rs. 743.86 crore) out
of Rs. 2,050 crore (principal) to the debenture holders as per the repayment schedule.

As per the terms of financing documents, Company has to ensure an overall IRR of 15% p.a. at the time of
redemption of NCDs, by taking into consideration, the amount of coupons already paid on such debentures
from 31 July 2018 till the redemption of NCDs, except otherwise agreed by the Company and the Investors,
vide any of the financing document. Accordingly, interest expenses has been provided for an amount of Rs.
139.26 crore for year ended 31 March 2021 (Rs. 250.53 crore for year ended 31 March 2020).

51. The Company is in the process of appointment of new Company Secretary post resignation of the erstwhile
secretary in the month of February 2021. In the absence of the Company Secretary on the date of the adoption,
these financial statements are not signed by Company secretary as required under section 134 of the Companies
Act 2013.
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52. Unhedged foreign currency exposure

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020

Trade Payables
EUR 5,08,161 @ 85.75 (31 March 2020: EUR 2962 @ 82.77) 4.36 0.43
USD 8,44,834 @ 73.11 (31 March 2020: USD 1,61,746 @ 75.66) 6.18 1.69
AED 4,50,000 @ 19.91 (31 March 2020: NIL) 0.90 -
CHEF Nil (31 March 2020: 10,000 @ 78.29) - 0.08
Trade Receivables
USD Nil (31 March 2020: USD 87,871 @ 75.66 ) - 0.66
OCD (Investment in Optionally Convertible Debentures)
Principal USD 240,850,000 @ 73.11 (31 March 2020 USD 240,850,000 @ 1,760.85 1,822.39
75.66)
Interest USD 55,778,033 @ 73.11 (31 March 2020 USD 311,94,972 @ 407.79 236.03
75.66)

53. During the previous year, the Company entered into Subscription agreement for ‘Optionally Convertible

54.

Debenture’ (‘OCD’) with ‘GMR Airport International BV’ (on 12 October 2018). As per the subscription
agreement, GAL has agreed to subscribe OCD of maximum aggregate amount upto Rs. USD 290 million, in
one or more tranches. Face value of each OCD shall be 1000 USD, 0 % OCD. The OCD shall be redeemable
along with 9% IRR payable on the maturity date or conversion date along with the investment amount. GAL
and GAI BV, both have an option for early redemption of OCD in part or full which can be exercised anytime
during the tenure of such instrument by giving 15 days’ notice.

Accordingly, the company has subscribed OCD of USD 240.85 million (INR 1,762.70 crore) [31 March 2020:
USD 240.85 million (INR 1,762.70 crore)] and GAL has accounted for interest income of Rs. 401.88 crore (31
March 2020: Rs. 218.35 crore) on OCD, from the date of subscription to 31 March 2021, in the financial results.
The foreign exchange loss of Rs. 73.31 crore (31 March 2020: foreign exchange gain of Rs. 175.36 crore) on
reinstatement of OCD as at 31 March 2021 has been charged to P&L during the year ended 31 March 2021.

a) During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company raised money by issue of secured redeemable, listed,
rated Non-Convertible Bond (‘NCBs’) amounting to Rs.1,670 crores from Deutsche Bank on private placement
basis as follows:

Tranche Date of disbursement Board approval date | Amount (Rs. in crore)
I 28 June 2019 14 June 2019 800.00
I 26 September 2019 5 September 2019 325.00
1 26 September 2019 16 September 2019 325.00
v 30 January 2020 13 December 2019 200.00

The proceeds from these NCBs were to be used primarily for part redemption of existing ‘NCDs with Private
equity investors (PE)’, investment, debt servicing and for other general corporate purposes.

Further, the company has refinanced above NCBs of Rs. 1,670 Crores (raised during the period ended 31 March
2020 in multiple tranches) vide Board approval date 9 December 2020 for 36 months i.e. till December 2023.
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55.

Rating of the above mentioned Non-Convertible Bonds of Rs. 1,670 Crores is CARE A-, negative (Single A
Minus; Outlook: Negative) assigned by CARE Ratings Limited vide their report dated 10 March 2021

b) During the period ended 31 December 2020, the company has raised money by issue of unsecured,
redeemable, Listed non-convertible Bonds (NCBs) amounting to Rs. 1,330 crores from Deustche Bank (Rs. 665
Crores) and Varde holdings Pte Limited (Rs. 665 Crores) in single tranche vide Board approval date 9 December
2020 for 18 months i.e. till June 2022.

Rating of the above mentioned Non-Convertible Bonds of Rs. 1,330 Crores is CARE A-, negative (Single A
Minus; Outlook: Negative) assigned by CARE Ratings Limited vide their report dated 10 March 2021.

The proceeds from aforesaid NCBs were to be used for

a. Payment of all outstanding costs, fees and expenses in relation to the issuance of the Bonds; and
b. Payment of all (and not less than all) amounts under or in connection with the Existing PE NCDs and
making certain payments in connection with the Existing Bonds.

Disclosure as per Part A of Schedule V of Securities (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as regards the loans and intercorporate deposits granted to subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries,
joint ventures, associates and other companies in which the directors are interested.

Name of the Relationship Amount outstanding | Maximum amount | Investment
entity as at outstanding during | by lonee in
the year ended the share
31 March | 31 March 31 31 31 31 of the
2021 2020 March March March March Company
2021 2020 2021 2020

GMR Holding Holding 216.00 - 416.00 - 548.60

Instructure Company | Company

Limited

GMR Fellow Fellow 220.00 - 220.00 - NIL

Aerostructure Subsidiary | Subsidiary

Services

Limited

Kakinada SEZ | Fellow Fellow - 427.18 427.18 427.18 NIL

Limited Subsidiary | Subsidiary
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56. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as required as per Master Direction- Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020

Particulars Before 12 After 12 Total Before 12 | After 12 Total

Months Months Months Months
Assets
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12.42 - 12.42 1.43 - 1.43
Bank balance other than 98.27 - 98.27 7.58 - 7.58
cash and cash equivalents
Trade Receivables 50.90 - 50.90 59.66 - 59.66
Loans 203.70 237.34 441.04 428.51 1.74 430.25
Investments 158.79 21,829.37 21,988.16 121.50 | 22,837.58 | 22,959.08
Other financial assets 6.33 4.50 10.83 25.54 6.51 32.05
Non-financial Assets - -
Current tax assets (net) 28.91 - 28.91 - 28.82 28.82
Deferred tax assets (net) - 105.96 105.96 - 62.59 62.59
Property, plant and 0.67 1.04 1.71 - 2.27 2.27
equipment
Right of Use-Assets 1.05 0.92 1.97 - 2.69 2.69
Capital work in progress - - - - 0.84 0.84
Other non- financial assets 31.99 - 31.99 1.76 12.36 14.12
Total Assets 593.03 | 22,179.13 | 22,772.16 645.98 | 22,955.40 | 23,601.38
Liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables

(i) total outstanding dues 2.78 - 2.78 0.09 - 0.09
of micro enterprises and
small enterprises

(i) total outstanding dues 39.23 - 39.23 21.60 - 21.60
of creditors other than

micro enterprises and
small enterprises

Debt Securities 14.62 3,045.81 3,060.43 3,276.86 -1 3,276.86
Lease Liabilities 1.20 0.88 2.08 2.64 0.17 2.81
Other financial liabilities 1.93 442.86 444.79 1.31 182.00 183.31
Non Financials Liabilities

Provisions 2.47 17.53 20.00 1.70 19.17 20.87
Deferred tax liabilities - 3,599.21 3,599.21 - 3,944.72 | 3,944.72
(net)

Other Non-financial 12.07 - 12.07 42.68 - 42.68
Liabilities

Total Liabilities 74.30 7,106.29 7,180.59 3,346.88 | 4,146.06 | 7,492.94

Net 518.73 | 15,072.84 | 15,591.57 | (2,700.90) | 18,809.34 | 16,108.44
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The Company’s net working capital situation as on 31 March 2021 is Rs. 518.73 crores [31 March 2020: (2,700.90)
Crore].

57. The Company had provided for Current Income Tax liability for the year 2020-21 as per Income Tax Act, 1961;
considering the book profit as per financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Ind AS financial statements). For the
purpose of these standalone financial statements, the Company has considered the current Income tax expenses /
liability arrived at basis Ind AS financial statements.

58. Other Disclosures:

a) Till 31 March 2021; Company has incurred Rs. 26.36 Crores (31 March 2020: Rs. 26.38 crores) in
Connection with the proposed Initial public offer (IPO)/Upcoming fund-raising activities of its equity shares.
Considering management have called off the IPO process; Company has expensed off Rs. Nil (Rs. Nil for
the year ended 31 March 2020 & Rs. 15.90 crores for the year ended 31 March 2019) to the statement of
profit and loss and for the remaining balance of Rs 10.46 crore (31 March 2020: Rs. 10.48 crores) has been
adjusted against the securities premium generated from the fund raising activity as permitted under section
52 of Companies Act, 2013.

b) During the year ended 31 March 2020, Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has conducted an inspection under
section 45N of the RBI Act, 1934 for the financial year ended 31 March 2019. The report for the financial
year ended 31 March, 2019 has been received in the current period and reply of the same has been filed with
the RBI. Subsequently, RBI have send additional comments on our reply and the company has replied on
same to RBI. Further, During the current year RBI has conducted an inspection under section 45N of the
RBI Act, 1934 for the financial year ended 31March 2020 and has issued their report in relation to the said
inspection. The company is in process of sending reply to RBI in relation to the observations.
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in Rupees crores, except otherwise stated)

C

Leases

Company as lessee:
Assets taken on operating Lease

The Company has leases for office building, space, hiring office/IT equipment’s and vehicles under cancellable
operating lease arrangements. There are no sub leases. With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-
value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability.
Variable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are excluded from the initial measurement of
the lease liability and right of use assets.

Each lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company to sublease the
asset to another party, the right-of-use asset can only be used by the Company. Some leases contain an option to
extend the lease for a further term. The Company is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying leased
assets as security. For leases over office buildings and other premises the Company must keep those properties in
a good state of repair and return the properties in their original condition at the end of the lease. Further, the
Company is required to pay maintenance fees in few leases in accordance with the lease contracts.

The lease expenses (including lease on equipment taken on hire) pertaining of the company during the year
amounted to Rs 2.41 crores (31 March 2020: Rs. 1.75 crores).

Right of Use Assets
Particulars Buildings Office Vehicles Total

Equipment

(including

Computers)
As at 1 April 2019 5.46 0.02 0.10 5.58
Additions - - - -
Deletions - - - -
Deprec.latlion (net of  disposal) 785 0.01 0.03 2.89
/amortisation during the year
As at 31 March 2020 2.61 0.01 0.07 2.69
As at 1 April 2020 2.61 0.01 0.07 2.69
Additions 2.30 - - 2.30
Deletions 0.87 - - 0.87
Deprec.latlion (net of  disposal) 211 001 0.03 215
/amortisation during the year
As at 31 March 2021 1.93 0.00 0.04 1.97
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Lease Liability
Particulars Buildings Office Vehicles Total

Equipment

(including

Computers)
As at 1 April 2019 5.22 0.02 0.10 5.34
Additions - - - -
Disposal - - - -
Interest for the year 0.41 0.00 0.01 0.42
Repayment made during the year 291 0.01 0.03 2.95
As at 31 March 2020 2.72 0.01 0.08 2.81
As at 1 April 2020 2.72 0.01 0.08 2.81
Additions 2.30 - - 2.30
Disposal 0.44 0.44
Interest for the year 0.24 0.00 0.01 0.25
Repayment made during the year 2.79 0.01 0.03 2.83
As at 31 March 2021 2.03 0.00 0.06 2.09

Maturity profile of Lease Liability

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual

Undiscounted Payments:

Particulars Within 1 1-3 years 3-5 years Above 5 Total
year years
Lease liabilities 1.20 0.88 - - 2.08
Following amount has been recognized in statement of profit and loss account:

Particulars Amount
Depreciation/amortisation on right to use asset (net of allocation) 0.87
Interest on lease liability (net of allocation) 0.14
Expenses related to short term & low value lease (included under Other expense) 241
Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss account 3.42

¢) The Company is in the process of conducting a transfer pricing study as required by the transfer pricing
regulations under the IT Act (‘regulations’) to determine whether the transactions entered during the year ended
31 March 2021, with the associated enterprises were undertaken at “arm’s length price”. The management
confirms that all the transactions with associate enterprises are undertaken at negotiated prices on usual
commercial terms and is confident that the aforesaid regulations will not have any impact on the financial

statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation
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59. (a) With the recent and rapid development of the COVID — 19 outbreak, many countries have implemented travel
restrictions. The Company has majority of its investments in the Airport sector (through investments in
subsidiaries/joint ventures) and with respect to COVID 19 impact on the business of these entities, management
believes while the COVID 19 may impact the businesses in the short term, it does not anticipate medium to long
term risk to the business prospects. Considering the business plans of the investee companies, the management does
not foresee any material impact on the fair value at which the aforementioned investments are carried in the
Standalone Financial Statements.

b) Further, the carrying value of the investments in DIAL and GHIAL (both are subsidiaries of the Company) which
are carried at fair value are also subject to likely outcome of ongoing litigations and claims as follows:

1.

ii.

Ongoing arbitration between DIAL and AAI in relation to the payment of Monthly Annual fees for the period
till the operations of DIAL reaches pre COVID 19 levels. Basis an independent legal opinion obtained by the
management of DIAL, the Company is entitled to be excused from making payment of Monthly Annual fee
under article 11.1.2 of OMDA to AAI on account of occurrence of Force Majeure Event under Article 16.1 of
OMDA, till such time the Company achieves level of activity prevailing before occurrence of force majeure. In
view of the above, the management has not considered the Annual Fee payable to AAI for the years ended 31
March 2021 and 31 March 2022 in the cash flows used for the purposes of estimation of the fair value of
investment made by the Company in DIAL.

Consideration of Cargo, Ground Handling and Fuel farm (‘CGHF’) income as part of non-aeronautical revenue
in determination of tariff for the third control period by Airport Economic Regulatory Authority in case of
GHIAL. GHIAL has filed appeal with Telecom Disputes Settlement Appellate Tribunal (‘TDSAT’) and during
the previous year, the adjudicating authority, TDSAT, in its disposal order dated 6 March 2020 has directed
Airport Economic Regulatory Autohrity ('AERA') to reconsider the issue afresh while determining the
aeronautical tariff for the third control period commencing from 1 April 2021. In July 2020, the Company has
filed an application with the AERA for determination of Aeronautical tariff for the third control period
commencing from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2026 wherein it has contended that CGHF income shall be treated
as non-aero revenue. The management has also obtained legal opinion and according to which GHIAL position
is appropriate as per terms of Concession agreement and Airports Economic Regulatory Authority of India Act,
2008.

Accordingly, no adjustments to the carrying value of these investments are considered necessary. The impact of
the COVID 19 pandemic and ongoing litigations might be different from that estimated as at the date of approval
of these financial statements and the Company will closely monitor any material changes to the future economic
conditions

(The space has been intentionally left blank)
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60. Certain amounts (currency value or percentages) shown in the various tables and paragraphs included in these
standalone statements have been rounded ofT or truncated as deemed appropriate by the management of the

Company.

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Independent Audior's Report
To the Members of GHR Alrports Limited
Raport on the Audit of the Consolldatad Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

. Wa have audited the sccompanying consolideted financial siatements of GMR Alports Limited ('the

Holding Company’} and k= subskdlarie= {the Holding Company and ts subsldiares together refemed to
#% the Group), its associstes and joint werfures, o8& listad in Anntecure 1, which comprige the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Consoldated Statemant of Profit and Loss
{Including Othar Comprehensiva Incoma), tha Consolldated Cash Flow Statemant and the Congolldated
Staterment of Changes n Equity for the year then endad, and a summary of the significant accourting
policlaa and other explanatory Information.

. In our oginion arxd to the best of our information and acconding o the eplanations given to us and

kased on the considerstion of the reports of the other awditors on separats financial statements and on
tha othar financial information of the subsidiaries, associates and Joint ventures sxcapt for the affacts
of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforessid
coneolldated financlal statements ghve the Information required by the Companles Act, 2013 {‘Act’) In
the manner so required and give a trua and fair view In conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in Indim including Inckan Accounting Standards ('Ind AS") specified under section
133 of the Act, of the consolidated state of affalrs of the Group, [is agsociates and joint ventures, as at
31 March 2021, and thair consolicated loss {Inciuding other comprahansive income), consolidatad cagh
fiows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year endesd on thet date.

Eazly for Gualified Opinlon

. As dataBsd In nota 48H0odv) to the Consolldated financial statemeants, the Company has lasusd Bonus

Compulsory Converlible Preference Shares Series A, Series B, Series C and Series D (hereinafter
tngether refarred as "Bonus CCPS" to shareholders of the Company pursuant ko the terms of the
Sharahokierg” Agreament antersd bebuvessn the shambolders of the Company, the Company and
Adroports de Paris 5.A which are being camied at face valus. In our opinion, kasis the terms of mich
Bonus CCPS, tha accounting lnastment |8 not in accordance with Ind AS 108, Financial Instruments, as
the llabiky bwands thess Bonus CCPS should ba recognisad at their falr value. Had the Company
applied the appropriate accounting treatmant for thess Bonus COPS, 'Other equity’ would have been
lower by Rs. 1,271.34 crore, and "Othar financial llabliity’ would have been higher by Rs. 1,271.34 croma
ae &t 31 March 2021,

_harersd Accountants
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4. We conducted our audit In accordanca with the Standards an Auditing specifled undar saction 143{10)
of the Ack Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Awdity’s
Rasponslbliites for the Audl of the Consclidated Financlal Stetements secon of our mport. We ars
Indapandent of tha Company in accordanca with tha Coda of Ethics lssued by the Inelitute of Chariared
Accauntants of India {'ICAI" together with the sthical requirerments that are relevant to our audit of the
financlal statemernts under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereundsr, and we have fulflled our
other athical responalbliies in accondance with these raquiremants and the Code of Ethica. Wa ballava
that the audit evidence we have cbiained and the audit evidence obtained by the cther auditors in terms
of thelr reporte referred ko In paragraph 1% of the Other Matters secion balow, I8 sufficlent and
appropriste to provida a basls for our qualiied oplnion.

Emphaals of Maitsr

5. Utllization of funds from Pessenger 8ervice Fee (Becurity Component) Fund [(*PSF{8C} Fund™)

Ve draw attentlon to note 48{kx) to the accompanying Consolldated Financal Statements on which an
amphasls of matter has basn ghven by us along with the other joint audiion, Ma/ K.5. Rao & Co, of OMR
Hyderskad Intermetional Airport Limited, 8 subsidisry company, vide our Audit report dated 28 Apri
2021, reproduced as under:
"Wa draw attention fo Note 470Hs) to the accompanying stsndalons financial giatemeants, which
describas the uncarainty relating to outcome of lliigation pertaining to the costs related to procurement
of security aquipment, conztruction of resikiential quariers flor Cantral Industrial Sacurity Force daployad
at the Rajiv Qandhl Infernaional Alport, Hyderabad and other costs which have baen adliusted from
the PSFEC) Fund up to 31 March 2018, pending final decision from the Hon'ble High Court of
Telangara and the consaquantial Instructions from tha Minksity of Chvil Aviation.”

5. Impect on account of Covid-19 outbreak
We draw attention to Note 43)oodl) of the accompanying consolldated financlal stetements, which
describes the uncertainties due ta the outhreak of Covid-19 parkiemic and manegement's evaluation
of the Impast on the cmsolldsted finandal statements of the Group. Cur opinlon | not modifted In
raspact of this matiar.

Kay Audit Matters

7. Key audit madters are those madbers that, in our professional prdgment wed based on the considensdion
of the reporits of the other awditors on separete financlal statemenis and on the other financlal
Information of the subsidares, associates and joint venturas, were of most signficance In our sudit of
the financial statements of the cument period. Thess matters were addressad in the context of our audst
of the consolldated financlal statement= as a whols, and In forming our opindon thereon, and we do not
provida a saparate opinlon on thasza mathars.

8. In addition to the malters describad In the Basls for Qualifled Opinlon asections, we have determined the
rtbers degcribed below to be the Key audit mattens to be communicated In our report.

Koy audit matter How owr audt sddressed the key audi
mabesr
1. Racovarablility of minimum akemats tax (MAT) credit sasat
Refer i nofe 2{c)(i) for tive sceourniing policy and nole 480od) for the nencial disclosures i e
consolidafed financial slalements.
This maiiler has bean reporied as key audit mafler by the joint audiiors’ Mz K. 5.Rso & Co. and
Walker Chandiok & Co LI P of GMR Hydorabed International Aiport Limied vide #hoir audi regort
dated 28 Aprll 2021 _
GMR Hyderabad Intemational Aport Limited, | Our audit procedures in relation to assessment
subsidiary of the Holding Company, ks under tax | of MAT credit recognized and ks utlitzation ag at
holidey period untll financial yesr 2021-22 and | reporting date, inchuded, but were not Emibed to
has accumulated MAT cradlt aseet of Re. 457 28 | the following:
crore (M March 2020: Rs. 457.11) crors).
Recogniion of MAT Credit wsset reguires
| significant [udgement regarding the likellhood of

Chartered Accountants
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lts realizstion within the specified perod through
astimation of fulure Laxabla profis of the
Campany and consegquently there i a4 sk that
the MAT Cradlit aesat may not be realzed within

tha spacified pariod, I thess fulure projections
are not met.

In ordar io asasss the uliilzallon of MAT credit,
the Company hes prepared revenue and profit
projections which Involved judgements and
astimations such as agtimating saaronautical tar it
which is determined by Airpoit Economic
Regulatory Authority ("AERA"}], revenua growth,
passangar growth, proft  manging, tax
adjustments under the Income-tax Act, 1981,

Further, a5 explained In nhote 480dl), the
Subsiciary Company had filed an appeal,
challenging various aspacts of the asronautical
tariT order passad by AERA In respact of fingt
control perod from 1 Apdl 2011 b 31 Manch
2016. During the year ended 31 March 2020,
Tadecom Disputes Ssttiemant AppeBate Tribunal
(TDSAT) has directed AERA to reconsider the
lssues afrash while detarmining the aaronautical
tariff for the Third Gontral Period commencging
from 1 Aprll 2021.

¥YWe hove kientifled this as @ key audit matter for
cument year audRk owing to the materality of the
amounis Imvolved and Inhesment subjectivity In
determination of utiization of MAT credit hrough
eatimation of fulure taxable profits and projected
asronavtical tariff revanue which Imvolvad
determinetion by AERA wwd being @ subject
matter of Iiigations.

o Aasessed and tewted the design and
operating effactivanass of the Company's
controls over mscognition of the MAT Cradit;

» Understood the process and tested the
intarnal controle ower preparation of the
exable profit forecwst beased on ressonable
and supportable assumptiona and Inpuis to
tha modal used to estimate the future tmeable
profits;

¢ Undergtood and testad the contols
sumounding manegement's evaluation of
IRigations and contingent llabllites;

Challanged tha Judgements exercisad by the
management and tested the key assum piions
ugad Inciuding tha impact of COVID-19 basad
on our knowledge of the industry, publicly
avallable Information and Company's
sirategle plans;

= Compared the pricr year expected tax profite
with the actsal resulis to detarmine the
efficacy of the management's budgeting
process;

Tested the sppropristeness of the forecasted
tax Eabliity computation ag par the provisions
of the T Act, Inchuding assessment of the
eligibility of various tax exemplions availed
and MAT llabiky computation as per Saction
115JB of the IT Act

= Obtained and evelusted sensitivity analyals
parformed by the managament on aforesald
key assumptions and performed further
Iindependent senslivity analysls to determine
Impact of astimation uncartainty on the fture
taxable profite;

» Obtainad and reviewad the documents with
respect to the litigations during the year with
AERA gnd the related order lssued by
TDSAT; and

= Asssssed the appmoprisiensss and sdequecy
of the ralated discioauras In the consolidatad
firmncial staternesds in eccordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

i Valuation of derivative financial Insfrumeants.

(Refor iv nofe 2{c)(t) for the aceounting policy and note 42(b) and 47 for te financial discicsures in
the accompanying Consofidated franclal statements)

This mater fas baen noporfed as key aillf mallar by the foink avdifors’ Ms K. 8. Raa & Co. and
Walker Chandiok & Co LLP of GMR Hydsrebed infernational Airport Limited end Dathi Infemabional

Abpoit Limifed vide thelr audi reports dated 28 Aprif 2021 and 24 May 2021 rezpectively.
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The Group has entared Into dervative financial
Instruemenks la. call spraad options, coupon only
hedge and had purchased derivetive financial
Inetrumenis, l.e. cross cumency swap, coupon
only swap and call apread options, to hedge its
fareign curmency risks in relation to the long-term
bonds I|=sued In fomelgn cumency by GMR
Hyderabad Internalional Alrport Limited and Dalh
Intermational Ainport Limited respectively,

Management has designated thess darivative
fancisl instruments and the aforesaid debt at
Inttial recogniion as cash flow hedge relationahip
a8 pir ind AS 109.

The valestion of hedging Instrument s complex
and necessiiates & sophisticosted system to
record and track sach comtrect and calculates the
mlated valuations at each finandal reporting
date. Sihes valuation of hedaing Instrumants and
conglderation of hedge sffsctvensss nvolvas
both significant assumptions and judgements
such a¢ discount rates, forward exchange ratss,
future interbank rates and involvement of
managament’s axpart, and tharafors, I8 subjsct ts
an inhenert rivk of emy,

We have Identiled wvaluation of hedging
Inetrumenis a9 2 key audt meiter In view of the
significant judgements, estimates and complasdty
Imveivad.

Our audik procadures to aaseas hadgs
accounting beat the valustion of the darvativa
financial insuanenb inchuded bot were not
limited to the folowing:

s Assasged and tested tha design and
operating sffectheness of Company's key
Intemal controls over dervative financial
Ingtrumants and the ralated hadpe
accounting;

» Reviewed the management's documantation
for the designated hedge insirument which
definas the nalure of hedgea relationship;

» Conwiderad the cornsistent application of the
accounting policiez and asasssad tha hedge
accounting mathodelogles  applled; and
compared these to the equirements of Ind AS
163, Financial Instruments;

¢ Evahupied the menagement's valuabion
spacialist’a  professlonal  compstence,

eqertise and objectivity;

= Tegted the accurasy of Input data provided by
tha managament tr tha sxtsmal valuation
speciglist and aysesved the reasonability of
the assumptlons used, while valung the
hedging Instrumants;

= Involved our valugtion spacialists to test the
far valuas of derivative financial Instrumeants
and compared the results fo the
managament's resulls;

+ Assesved the appropriatencss and adequecy
of the related discioauras In the conaolkiatad
financial sistemeants in accordancea with the
applicable accounting standerds,

3. Capital work In progreea for alrport sxpanaion
(Reforfo mode 2{c)() for the atcouniing policy end nole 3, nofe 485xiE) and 480cav) for the Mnencial
fimancial stefemenis)

disciosures in ihwe accompanying Consolidated

This matier has besn reporied B8 kay sudif matter by the foinf auditors’ Mz K. 8. Reo & Co. and
Walver Chandiok & Co LLP of GMR Hyderebed Infermationad Airport Limied end Delin Infermational

Abport Limited vide their audt reparts

daisd 28 Aprif 2021 and 24 May 2021 respectively.

The saubskdlary company, GMR Hyderabad
Intarnatanal Alrport Limited, |2 In the procsss. of
expaneion of the Rujiv Gandhi Intermational
Alrport, Hyderabad and has Iotal capital work In
progreas as at 31 March 2021 amounting to Rs.
2,255 crore as explained in nobe 480cdv) to the
gccompanying consolldated financial
ststemants.

Thia has been determined as a key audlh matter
dua to the significancs of tha capltal exqpandiinine
during the year and the risk that the elements of
costs (Incheding bomowlng costs) that are eliglble
for caphialleation are appropriately capiiallsad in
accordance with the recognition oriterda providesd
In Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 23. Ouwr audit
pracedures to astass appropriste cepitalization
of such expendibure included, but were not
limited to the following:

Chartered Accountants
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Dalhl Intemetional Alrport Limied I» In the
procass of expanalon of tha alrport with a plan to
incur an amount of Rs. 8,578.13 crore, During
the cument year ended 31 March 2021, the
Company has Incurmed Rs. 3,526.12 crors as
capital expendibere towaris such capital
expansion s explained In note 48{adll) to the
accampanying conzolidatad financial
stelements.

Determining whather axpendiime mests the
capitaBzetion criterim, specifically with regard to
whether they are operational or capital In nahara,
Imadves significant management Judgemant in
ayseysing whether capitalzation is in line with
ind AS 16, Proparty, Plant and Equipment and
ths Group's accounting policy.

Further, the tariff determination by AERA for
control pariods for the asronaufical sarvices
linked to the Regulaiesd Assst Bass, which |
based on the fixed asset balance and
considenng thesa additions are significant to tha
asvet base of the Company, we have azsessad
Inappropriate capitalzation as a siynificant risk
aw part of our audit sirategy.

Further, the aforementioned capital expandiiure
hes been nded from the specific bomowings
ralsed for such purpose. Accordingly, the
bomowing cost Incurmad on such bomowings
howe been included we o capital expenditure in
accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 23,
Bormrowing Cosis.

= Azsassad the design and Implementation and

tested the operating effactivensss of key
confrols sumounding the capitalization of
costa.

» Reviewed management's capitalisation policy,
Including application of the aforesald policy, to
assass consistency with the requirements set
out by Ind AS 18, Properly, Plant and

Equipmant

« Compared the addiione with the budgets and
the ordars given to the vendors.

o Ensumed that the berrowing cost capitalized 15
as per Ind AS 23 Bomowing Coste

o Tesied the additons on a sample basis for
thelr nature and purpose to ensure that the
caphiaitration ls as par company's accounting
palicy.

= Azgegsad the approprialenaas and adequacy
of the related disclosures in the consolidated
finencial =tatements In accordance with the
applicabls accounting standards.

4. Monthly Annual Foo payablo to Alrport Authority of Inds (AAI
Rafer o Nole 480xvll) for the financiel disclosurex In Be accompamying Consolidated Francie!

afadaments.
Thizs matter tas boan

as key audi matter by the joint auditors’ M/s K. 5. Reo & Co. and

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP of Dalhi Imfernational Alrport Limifed vide thelr exd report dated 24

May 2021.

The Subsldiary of the Company, Delhl
Imtematonal Airport Limited have ongoing
Itigation / arbiration proceedings with Alrport
Authorty of Indig (AAD) in respact of Monthly
Annual Fes (MAF) for the pariod 1 Apri 2020 to
31 March 2021 for which ihe Company has
sought o be extused from making payment to
AAl ge triggered from a force mejeurs event,
which could have a significant impact on the
accompanying consolicieted financial
sitelamants, if the potential exposure were to
materializa. Further, the applcation of
accourting standards to determine the amount,
if any, to be provided as a llability or disclosad as
2 conlingant llablify, is Inharently subjsctive.

Our audht procedures [n nalaion to the
assessment of ongoing Kigation / arbitelion
procaadings In relation to MAF fae Included but
wre not limibed to the following:

= Obitained an undarstanding of managemant's
process and evalusted design,
implementstion and operating effectiveness
of management's key intemal controls over
mesesament of ltigstions/ arbitelion
procsadings &and  deisrmination  of
appropriate  accounting ireaiment In
accordance with the requirements of Ind AS
37, Provislons, Contingent llabliies and
Contingent Asgats.
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The outcomes of such Ifigation /arbitretion
proceadings Is cumantly uncertain and the
aforesaid sssessment requires  significant
judgement by the management Inchuding
interpretation of lagal rights and obligations
arising out of the underlying Operation,
Management and Agreement
datad 4 April 2006 entered with AAl, which
required involvement of both management's and
auditor's experts. Accordingly, this matier has
boan datarmined as a kay audi matter for
current year audit

The above malter I3 aiso considered
fundamental to the understanding of the users of
the accompamying consolkdated financlal
ststemants on account of the uncertalmies

= Obtained and read the summary of litigation
involved In respect of MAF payabls, the
supporting documentation including
communications exchanged betwsen the
pariies, and held dlscussions with the
management of the Company to understand
management's assessment of the matter;

= Evalugted the legal opinions obtained by the
managemant from its intemal and externsl
lagal axperts on tha likellhood of the autcoma
of the said contingencies and potential impact
of ongoing Iitigation’ arbitration proceadings
and amaunt pald under profest, basis our
understarcling of the matier obtained =s
above, and held further discussions, as
required, with such experts to seek clarity of

miating to the fulure outcome o the
preceedingaiitigation.

their legal assessments.

s Invoived independant auditors expearta to
validate the asessament of the Bkelhood of
the sutcome of contingencles and potentlsl
impact of ongolng IMigation/ amitrafion
procaedings and emount paid under protest
In order to sssess the basls used for
detarmination of appropriatensss of the
accounting teaiment and resuling
disclosuras In the consolidated financlal
sietements In  accordance with the
requiremsnts of applicable accounting
standands;

Information other than the Consolkiabed Finencial Statements and Audlior's Report therson

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
Information comprizses the Information Included In the Annual Report, but does not Include the
consolidated financial statements and our audiior's report therson. The Annual Report I8 expactad to
be made available to us fter the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinlon on tha consalidated financial statemants doas not cover the other Information and we do
nat express any form of assurance condusion thereon,

In connaction with our audht of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibiity Is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes avwilable and, in doing so, consiler whether the
other information ls materially Inconsistent with the consolldated financlal statements or our knowladge
obtained In the audit or otharvise appsars (o be materially misstaied.

When wa read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there ls a materlal misstaternent theraln, we are
raciuired to commimicata the matisr to thosa chargad with govemance.

Responsibiiiies of Managemsnt and Thoas Chargad with Govemancs for the Conaolidated
Financial Statememnts

Tha accompanying consolldated financial statements have bean approved by the Holding Company’s
Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors in responasible for the matters staled in
saction 134(E) of the Act with nespect to the preparation of thesa consolldated financial stadements that
ghve a true and fair view of the consclidaied financial position, conaolidatad financlal parformance
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Including ather comprahanahve Income, consolidatad changes In equity and consolldated cash flows of
the Graup neluding its associates and joint ventures in accordance with the sceounting principles
generally accapied In Indla, inchxding the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. The Holding
Company's Board of Directors Iz alan reaponsible for ensuring accuracy of records Inciuding financial
information consiiered necessary for the preparstion of consolidated Ind AS financial stabsments.
Further, In tarms of the provisions of the Acl, the respective Board of Directors /manegament of the
companias Included in the Sroup, ard s assoclate companles and Joint venture companies cowvaned
under the Act are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accerdance with the
provislons of the Act for safeguarding the assets and for preventing and deteciing frauds and other
imagulariies; sslaction and application of appropriate accounting polides; makdng Judgments and
estimabes that wre reasonable and prudent; and design, implementalion and maintenance of adequab:
Intemnal financial controls, that wene oparaling effactively for enzuring the accuracy and complstenass
of the accounting records, relevant io the praparation and prassntation of the financlal stataments that
give a true and fair view and are free from matesial misstaternent, whether due to fraud or emor. These
financlal statements have been ussd for the purposs of preparaiion of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesald.

In preparing the consolldated financlal statements, the respeciive Board of Directors of the companies
Included h the Qralg and of s associates and joint vanhares ars responsible for assesging the ablity
of the Group and of = associaie= and Joint ventures o continue a8 & golng concem, dsdosing, as
applicable, matters related o golng concamn and using the going concem basis of accounting unkess
tha Board of Directors alther intend to Iquidate the Group or to caase cparations, of has no realistic
altemative but to do so.

Those Bowrd of Directors e aleo responsible for ovensesing the financial reporting process of the
companies Included In the Group and of lts aasoclabes and joint vemunes.

Auditor's Reeponsdiities for the Awdt of the Anenclal Stetemernts

Our objactivaz ans to obtaln reasonable agsurance about whathar the financial statamants as a whola
are free fom meteriad mivshatement, whether due o fraud or eror, and to esue an awdibar's report that
Includes our opinion. Reasoneble assumnca Iz a high level of assurance but Is not B guarantes that an
audit conductsd In accordance with Standarde on Auditing will always detact a material misatatameant
when it exivts. Misstabemente can arise from frocd or eror ared e convidered mateniad if, individually
or In the sggregate, thay could reasonably be expacted to Influenca the economic declslons of users
takken on the basls of thess financial stataments.

As part of an audit In accordance with Standards on Audiing, we exerclze professional Judgment and
maintaln professional skepiciem throughout the audit. We alsa:

= |dariify and asaeas the fsks of materdal misstatemant of the financlal stabemeants, whether dua to
fraud or emor, deaign and parform audit procadures rasponzive ta thoas riske, and obtaln audi
evicence thet is sufficient and approprigte t provide o basiv for our opindon, The rielc of not
detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud ts highar than for one resulting from eror,
as fraud may Invoihve esliusion, forgary, intsntional omizslone, mizreprasantations, or the cverrids
of intarmal control;

» Oblalh an undarstanding of Intermal control relevant to the audit In order to deslgn awdit procedures
that sre appropriste in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Act, we are sl o
responsible for axpressing cur opinlon on whather the Holding Company has adequata Inkemal
financial controls with referencs to financial ststements In place and the operating sffactivensas of
such comtrols;

s Evauais the appropriateness of accounting policles usad and the reasonablaness of accoumting
estimates and related dinclosures made by management;

s Conclude on the appropriatenags of managemeant's use of tha going concern basls of accounting
and, bawed mﬂumditﬂiqm obtaireed, whether & matesial uncertainty exists related to events

Chartered Accountants



15b.

18.

17.

18B.

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

or condiions that may cast significant doubt on the abllity of tha Group and ks assoclatas and joint
veriures to condirue we & going concem. fwe conclude that & matedal unceriainty exisls, we we
required to drew attertion In our auditor's report to the related dsclosures In the financlal
gtaterments or, If such disclosures ara inadacuate, to moadfy our opinion. Our conclugions are
based on e audit evidence obtained wp to the date of cur auditer's raport. However, future events
or condlions may cause the Group end Ii» assoclates and |oint veniures to ceasa to conlinue as
a going concsaim; and

+ Eveluate the gveral presentation, struchue and content of the financial statements, including the
disciosuras, and whather the financial statements reprazent the underying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair preserhation,

s  Obtaln sufficlent appropriate audit evidancs reganding tha financial Information of the sntities within
the Group, and its associates and joint ventures, to sxpress an opinion on the financial satements.
Wa are responsible for the direction, supervision and parformance of the audit of financial
statermants of suich antitles Includad In the financlial stetemeants, of which we are the Indepandent
auditors, For the other entities included in the financial setements, which have besn audited by
the other audiors, such other auditors remaln reapongible for the direction, supervision and
parformance of the sucdits camed out by them. We remain solaly responsizke for our audit apinlon.

We comimunicats with those charged with govemnance ragarding, among other matters, the plannaed
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including eny significant deficiencies in
Intemal control that we Identify during our audit

Ve also provide those changed with govemance with & stetement thet we hawe complisd with relewant
ethical requirements regarding Independenca, and ko communicabe with them all relationshlips and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to baar on our iIndepsndance, and whera applicable, ralated
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemence, we determine those matters that
were of most significance In the audit of tha financlal statements of the curent perlod and are therefore
tha kay audt matters. We describe thezs maiiers In our auditor's raport unless law or reguiation
preciuies public discloare about the matter or when, in exiremely e dreumshances, we determine
that & matter should pot be communicated In our raport because the adverse consequences of doing
50 woilld reagonably be sxpacted to outwelgh the puble Intenast banefits of such communication.

Crther Matter

We have jointly audiited with another auditor, the annual financlal statemenis of 2 subsidiarias, whosae
financlal statements mflacts (hafora adusiments for consolidation) total assats of Re. 30,482 91 crone
and net assets of Ra. 4 687.89 crore as at 31 March 2021, total revenues {Including other Income) of
Re 3,108.71 crore and net cash Inflows amounting o Re. 1,704.77 crore for the year endad on that
cate, 8 consgldersd In the consolidaded financial statements. For the purpase of our awdit on the
consalidated financial statements, we have elisd upon the work of such other auditors, to the axtent of
work pariormed by tham.

15.Wa did not audlt the financial statements of 18 subsidlares {Including 4 subsidiaries consclidated for

the yaar anded 31 Daecember 2020, with a quarber [ag), whoze financial siatements reflects total assets
of Rse. 4,331.58 qore ard net aesets of Re. 242.81 crore as at 31 March 2021, total revenues of Re.
782.63 crore and net cash Inflows amounting to Rs. 8.53 crore for the year ended on that dabe, as
congidarad In tha consolidatad financlal stataments. The corsolidated financial statemants also Includa
the Group’s share of net loss (including ather comprehensive income) of Re. 113,38 crore for the year
endad 31 March 2021, as conaldenad In the consolidatad financlal statements, In reapect of 2 assaciabes
and 8 joirt venturas {hﬂudlng 3 |oint vantures consolidated for the yaar anded 31 Dacamber 2020, with
@ quarter lug), whose financial stetements have not been audited by us. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furmizhed o us by the managemeant and
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our opinion on the consolidated financlal statements, In Bo far as It relates to tha amounts and
disclosures included in respect of thess subsidiaries, associates snd joint ventures, and our report in
terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, In so far a» It relates to the aforesald subsidiaries,
sssociatas and |oint vertures, ls based solely on the reporia of the other auditors.

Further, of these subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, 4 subsidiaries, and 3 joint venhures are
Iocated outside India whose financial statements and other financial Information have been prepared In
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In thelr respective countries and which have
bsen awmditad by other audiiors under penerally accepled auditing standards applicable In thelr
respective countries. The Holding Company’s management has converted the financial statements of
such subsidiaries, assoclates and |oint ventures located outside Indla from accounting principles
genarally accapied In thair respactive couniras to accounting principles generally accapted In indla.
We have sudited fhese conversion adjusiments made by the Holding Company’s management. Our
opinion, and matiers identified and disclosad under key audit maiters sectlon above, in so far as it
relatss to fve balances and affairs of such subeldiarias, and joint ventures located outaids Indla s basad
on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the
Holding Company and audited by us.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financlal statements, and our repert on other lagal and regulatory
raquiremants balow, are not modifled In respact of the above mathers with respact to our rellanca on
the work done by and the reports of the other suditors.

20.We &d not audit the financial information of 1 subsidiary, whose finencial information reflects total
assats of Re. NIL crore and net asset= of Rs. 0.06 crore as gt 31 March 2021, total revenues of Ra NIL
crors and net cash inflows amounting o Rs. NIL crons for the year ended on that date, as considaned
in the consolidated financial statemernts. The consclideted finencial stetemernts aiso include the Group's
share of net loss {Including other comprehenslve Income) of Re 2.42 crore for the year endad 31 March
2021, 3s considerad In the consolidsted financial statements, In respact of 2 joint ventures (ncluding 2
jeint ventures consolidated for the year ended 31 Decamber 2020, with a quarter lag), whose financial
sistements have not been audited by us. Thess financial statements ane unsudiled and have baen
furmished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated finencial statements, wnd
matters identifled and dlsclosad undar key audit matters seclion above and our report In terms of sub-
saction (3) of Section 143 of the Act In so far as It raiatas to the aforesalkd subskilaries, associate and
jeint ventures, are basad solely on such unaudited financial information. In our apinion and acconding
to the Information and sxplanations given to us by the management, thass financlal statements are not
material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolldated financlal statemamnts, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requiremeants below, are not modifiad In respeact of the above maiter with respect bo our rellancs on tha
financial statements/Minancial information certified by the management.

Raport on Other Lagal and Raguistory Raquirements

21. As required by section 197(18) of the Act, based on our asudit and on the consideration of the reporte of
the other suditors, refemad to In paragraph 18 and 19, on separate financial statements of the
subgidiaries, associates and joint ventures, we report thet the Holding Company, 7 subskiiary
companies and 2 joint venturs companies covered under the Act paid remunemtion to their respective
directors during tha year In accordance with the provislons of and limits lald down under section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we report that the provisions of section 187 read with Schedule
V to the Act are not applicable to 3 subsidiary comparmy, 3 associate companies and 4 joint venture
companias coverad under the Act, since none of such companies are a public company as defined
undear saction 2(7 1) of the Act and we report that 4 subsikilary companies coverad under the Act have
not pald or provided for amy managerial remuneration during the year.
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Further, as statad In paragraph 20, financial statemants of 1 aubaldiary company covarad under tha Act
is unsudited and hes been fumished fo us by the management, and as certified by the management,
the subskilary company ls not & public company as defined under section 2(71) of the Act and
accordingly the provisions of and Imis |ald down under section 187 read with Schaduls V to the Act
are not applicable,

. As reqjuired by Saction 143 (3) of the Act, basad on our sudit and on the consideration of the report (s)
of the other auditor (s} on separste financial statements and other financial information of the
subskdlaries, assoclales and joint ventures, we report, to the exdent applicable, that:

a)

b)

)

d)

9

h)

we have sought and exept for the madter described in the Basis for Qualified Opirgon section,
obtalned all the Information and explanations which to the bast of our knowledge and bellef wera
necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesald consoliiated financial statemants;

In our opinion, proper booke of account a8 required by law relating to preparation of the afore=ald
consplidated financial statements have been kept so far as & appears from olr examination of
those books and the reports of the other sudiors, except for the effects of the metter desaibed in
paragraph 3 of the Basls for Qualified Opinion seclion with raapect to the inanclal statements of
the Holding Company;

the consolidatad financial statements deslt with by this report are In agreament with the relevant
books of account maintsined for the purpossa of preparafion of tha consolidsted financial
stetements;

exeapt for the effects of the matier described in the Basis for Quakfied Opinion section, in our
opinion, the sloreseld consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS speciied under
gaction 133 of tha Act;

the mattars described in paragraph 3, paragraph 6 and paragraph & of the Emphasis of Matber and
Bagls for Qualfled Cpinlan saction, in our opinion, may have an adwerse affect on the functioning
of the Hokling Company, GMR Hyderabad Intermational Airport Limited, a subasidiery of the Holding
Company and Delhl Intemational Arport Umited, & subsidlary of the Holkding Company

respactively;

on the basis of the written representations recalved from the directors of the Holding Company and
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reparts of the statutory
auditors of ite subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture companies covered
under the Act, nona of the directors of the Group companies, t» assoclate companlea and joint
venhure companiss covarad undar the Act, are disqualifiad as on 31 March 2021 from being
appointed as & director in terma of Section 184(2) of the Act.

the quaiification relating to the maintanance of accounts and other matters connectad tharewith
are as siated in paragraph 3 of the Basis for Qualified Opinion section with respect to the Holding
Company;

with respact to the adequacy of the iIntemal finenclal controls with reference to financlal statements
of the Holding Company, and ks subsidiary companies, associate companies and Joint vantums
companies coversd under the Act. and the opersfing sffactiveness of such controls, refer to our
saparate raport In "Annasune A'; and

with respect to the other matters to be Included In the Auditor’s Report In eccordance with rule 11
of the Companias (Audlt and Auditnrs) Rules, 2014 (as amended), In our opinion and to the bast
of our information and accarding to the Splanatons given & us and based on the consideration
of the report of the other audliors on saparsts financlal sistements s= also the other financiel
klhrmaﬂunufmaﬂl:nldlm mmupmm

L. excapiforthe niuut of the matter described in paragraph 3 of the Basis for Quallfisd Opinlon
section, the mnsulldamd flnanﬁl statements disclose the impact of pending Iitigations on
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the consolidatad financial poaition of tha Group, lts associates and Joint ventures as at 31
March 2021, ss detailed in Note 38(c) to the consclidated financial statements;

except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section,
provislon has been made In these consolldsted financlal stetements, s required under the
applicable law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, on long-term coniracts Including
derivative contracts, as detalled In note 41 to the consolidated financial statements;

Thers wens no amounts which wera required to ba tranafarmed to the Invester Education and
Protection Fund by the Hoking Company, and i subsidiery companies, sssocigie
companies and Joint venture companies covered under the Act, during the year snded 31
harch 2021.; and

v. the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well es dealings In specified bank notes
were applicabls for tha pariod from B Novembar 2016 to 30 Dacambear 2018, which are not
relevant fo thess consolidated financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is
not applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Charberad Accountants
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Annexure |l

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of GMR Airport Limited (‘the
Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to
as ‘the Group’), its associates and joint ventures as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company,
its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and joint venture companies, which are companies
covered under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, its associate
companies and joint venture companies, which are companies covered under the Act, are responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the
Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and joint
venture companies, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and
joint venture companies as aforesaid.
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of GMR Airports
Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness has been observed in the operating effectiveness of the Holding Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2021:

The Holding Company’s internal financial control system over fair value measurement of its liability
relating to Bonus Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series A, Series B, Series C and Series
D (together hereinafter referred as ‘Bonus CCPS’), as fully explained in note 48(xxxiv) to the
consolidated financial statements, were not operating effectively, which has resulted in such Bonus
CCPS not being measured at their fair value in accordance with the applicable accounting standards,
and its consequential impact on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Holding Company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on Internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the subsidiary companies, associate companies and
joint venture companies, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and
joint venture companies, which are companies covered under the Act, have in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2021, based
on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAI, and except for the effects/possible effects of the material weakness described above
on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the Consolidate financial statements of the Group
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, and the material weakness have affected our opinion on
the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and we have issued a modified opinion
on the Consolidated financial statements.
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of GMR Airports
Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Other Matter

9. We have jointly audited with another auditor, the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of 2 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects total assets of Rs. 30,482.91 crore
and net assets of Rs. 4,687.89 crore as at 31 March 2021, total revenues (including other income) of
Rs 3,106.71 crore and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 1,704.77 crore for the year ended on that
date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter with respect to our reliance upon the work of such other auditors, to the extent of work
performed by them.

10.We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates
to 12 subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the Act, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs. 2,455.73 crore and net assets of Rs. 651.47 crore as at 31 March 2021, total
revenues of Rs. 734.99 crore and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 6.60 crore for the year ended on
that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements
also include the Group’s share of net loss (including other comprehensive income) of Rs. 1.47 crore for
the year ended 31 March 2021, in respect of 2 associate companies and 6 joint venture companies,
which are companies covered under the Act, whose internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements have not been audited by us. The internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in so far as it relates to such subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture
companies have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
management and our report on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements for the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, its
associate companies and joint venture companies, as aforesaid, under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act in
so far as it relates to such subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint venture companies is
based solely on the reports of the auditors of such companies. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter with respect to our reliance on the work done by and on the reports of the other auditors.

11.We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates
to 1 subsidiary, which is company covered under the Act, whose financial information reflect total assets
of Rs. NIL crore and net assets of Rs. (0.06) crore as at 31 March 2021, total revenues of Rs. NIL Crore
and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. NIL crore for the year ended on that date. The internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of subsidiary company, which is company covered under
the Act, is unaudited and our opinion under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act insofar as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiary, which is a company covered under the Act, is solely based on the corresponding
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements reports certified by the management of
such company. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, this financial information are not material to the Group. Our report on adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Group does not include the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements assessment
in respect of the aforesaid company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter with
respect to our reliance on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements report
certified by the management.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration-No.: 001076N/N500013

Anamitra Das — B
Partner [ &
Membership No.: 062191

UDIN: 21062191AAAAII8539

Place: Gurugram
Date: 31 May 2021

Chartered Accountants
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GMR Airports Limited
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): UGS9999K A 1992PLC037455

Consalidated Statement of Prafit and Loss for (he period ended March 31, 2021

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Partienlnrs Noles e o arues Rs. in erore)
Income
Kevenue frain operations 22 163399 532143
Other operating incamc 3 83547 258.40
Other income 4 24735 533.58
Totul Tncome 3,716.81 6,713.41
Lxpenses
Revenme share piid/puyable lo concessionaire grantors 25 360.79 1.913.61
Purchases of stock-in-rade 26 0.34 B2.92
Changes in inventories of stock=-in=trade 27 16.55 (15.63)
Cost of materials consimed 28 91.19 67,21
Employce benefits expense 29 510,20 50546
Finanee cosis B} | 1,503.97 1,397.18
Depreciation and amortisation expense k¥ 334,06 867.34
Other expenses i 1,675.39 1,403.00
Lotal expenses N 4,992.49 6,221.09
(Loss)¥profit before share of prefit of asseciates and joint venture und tan and
exceptional item (1,275.6H) 492.32
Share of (loss) profit of joint ventures and associates (net) (116.81) 150.90
{Loss)/profli before mx {1,392.49) 643,22
Tax exponsen|
Curmeni, tux 572 152.89
Deferred tax ercdit (276.42) {41.41)
Total tax (credit) expenses {270.70) 111,48
{Loss) profit for the periad {1,121,79) 531.74
Other comprehensive ineonie
Ttems that will he reclnssified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on trunslation of fareign operations .29 (170.15)
Tuconme Las elliol - -
Tatal () 71.29 (170.15)
Net movemeat on cash low hedges 116,98 21442
Tncome vax ¢ffcct {25.97) [64,54)
Tatal {b) 1.0 145.88
Totul {a) + () 162.30 (24.27)
Ttema thot will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remcasurement loss on post employment defined benefit plans i.56 (5.09)
Tucome L elliect (0.61) 0.97
Totnl 195 (4.12)
Toial other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax = 165.25 (28.3%)
Telul comprehensive (loss) income for the period (956.54) 503,35
{Loss)/ profit for the period
Naon controlling {flered (226.06) 251.27
Owners of the parent (895.13) 280,47




GMR Adrports Limited
Corporate lilentity Number (CIN): U659999KA 1992 PLC0O3IT45S
Consolidated Siatement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2021

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

T . N“_‘_‘ (Rs, in crore) (Rs. in crore)

Other Comprehensive Income
Non controlling interest 3323 52.72
Owners of the parent 132,02 (8L11)

Total Comprehensive (loss) income for the period attributuble to
MNon controlling interest (191.43) 303.99
Owners of the parent (76311} 199.36

(Loss)/ earnings per equity share (Tuce valoe of Re 10 ench) !
Basic (Rs.) 33 (6.46) 2.1
Diluted (Rs.) 33 (6.46) 211

Summuary of significant accounting policies 2 ()

The accompenying avies are un integral parl of the consalidated linancial statfements

As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behall of the Board of Directors off

ICAl Firm Regisiration No. : (HIIT6NMNS00013 GMER Adrports Limived

Chartered Accountants

4 b

Annmitra Das Grandhi l{.l.ru Kumar
Partner Joint Managing Director & CLO)
Membership no: 06219] DIN: 06061660

PAN: ACAPG2 1461

Place; New Delhi Place: New Delbi
Date: May 31, 2021 Date: May 31, 2021
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GMR AIRPOR'S LIMITED

Carporate Identity Number (CIN): U659999KA1992PL.C037455
Consolidated Cash Flows Statement for the period ended March 31, 2021

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Fhriemts (Ks. in erore) (Rs. in crore)
CASIH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/ profit before tax (1,392.49) 643,22
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, right of use and amortization of intangible R14.06 867.34
Provisions no longer requined, writlen buck (8.06) (3.11)
Other income (0.62) -
Unrealiwd exchange (gains) / losses 76.49 (172.24)
Property, plant and equipment writien off / (profit) on sale of Praperty. plant and equipment 24.88 449
Pravision against advanece to Airporis Authority of India (AAT) 446.21 -
Provision / write off of doubtful advances and wade receivables 4.08 19.90
Tncome from government grani (5.27) (5.28)
Net pain on sale or fair valuation of investments (25.39) (57.33)
Finenee costs 1.503.97 1.397.18
Finance income (178.73) (264.09)
Bhare of profit of jolnt ventures and nssocintes (net) 116.81 (150,90}
Operating profit before worling eapital chanpes 1,395.4 227918
Movements in working capital :
{Decrease) Increase in trade payables and financial/other liabilities and provisions 463.76 41541
Increase in non=curment/cuwrrent financial and other assets (1,621.13) {1,461.76)
Cash generated from operations 238.57 1,232.83
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) a1ax {137.92)
Net cash Mow (used in)/ generated from operating activities (A) 280.05 1,094.91
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
mpw. ?lu:t ::!w :squlpml.ni. intungible wssets and cost incurred Wwards such (2.872.51) G.217:54)
Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible asscts 0.10 19.10
Investment in joint venture (30.38) (217.21)
Security deposit for equipment lease (401.20) -
(Purchase)/sale of investments (net) 235.40 (522.11)
Loans given to others (5.35) {124.79)
Investments in bank deposits (net) (having original matrity of mare than three months) (501,84} (S90.00)
Dividend received from joint ventures and assoviales 27.3% 74,94
Finance income received 256.80 201,86
Net cash Mow gonerated from/f{used in) investing nctivities (B) (3;251.60) (4,305,70)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings 7,371.06 741343
Repayment of horrowings (1,333.34) (R20.8R)
Lssue of equity shares (including securities premium) 1,000.00 .
Repayment of lease liubility principal {10.68) (3.8G)
Repayment of lense Huhility interest (10.90) {10.10)
Finunce costs paid (2,305.41) (1,074.59)
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution taxes) = (45.53)
Net eash flow generated from/ (used in} financing activities (C) _ 4.T10.73 5458.47
Nel incredse / (decrease) /in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) 1,739.18 1,747.68
Cash and cash equivalents ns ol beginning of the period 2,388.14 hal.46
Cush und cash equivalents on account of disposal of entity during the year (38.44) -
Cash and cash equivalents ai the end of the perind 4,068.88 2,384.14




GMR AIRPFORTS LIMITED

Carporate [dentity Nomber (CIN): USS9999KA 1992PLCO3T455
Consalidnted Cash Flows Statement for the poriod snded March 31, 2021

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Hs. in crore) {Rs. in crore)
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Ralances with banks:
= On currenl pecounts 514.84 150.26
Deeposits with original maturity of less than three months 1,552.56 2,178.38
Cheques / drafts on hand 0.10 .
Cash on hand 1.29 1.06
Balanees with banks for entity held for gale - 58.44
Tolul cash and cash equivalents 1,068.54 2,388.14
Changes in linbilities arising from finaneing netivities --
Linbilitics arising | Liabilities arising
from Floancing from Financing
Particulars Activities Artivities
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(K5 in erore) (Ry. in crore)
Al the beginning of the year 18,780.98 11,073.42
Cash Flows
Proceeds (rom bomiwings 7.371.06 741343
Repayment of bortowings (1,333.34) (820.88)
Processing Fees paid (135.33) (127.04)
Non Cash Changes
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation {196.13) 1,239.12
Changes in lair Valucs 112.56 0.29
| Others . £ 264
At the end of the year 1429950 18,780.98

Summary of significant accounting policies 2 (C)

The accompanying noles arc an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandlok & Co LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No, : 001076N/NS00013
Chartered Accountants

Anamitra Das
Parlner

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 31, 2021

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

GMR Airports Limited

: MOMLL

i Grandhi

ram Kmlar

Joint Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 0006168

f Financial Officer
: ACAPG2 146H

Place: New Delhi
Date; May 31, 2021

DIN: 0006 1669




GMR AIRPORTS LIMITED
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U659999KA1992PL.C037455
Notes to the consolidated condensed financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

1. General Information

GMR Airports Limited (‘GAL’ or ‘the Holding Company’), its subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures
(hereinafter collectively referred to as ‘the Group’) are mainly engaged in infrastructure development such as
development and maintenance of airports, various airport related activities, operating duty free shops etc.

GAL was incorporated on February 6, 1992, as an investing company. The Holding Company holds majority of its
investments in group companies involved in the operations of Airports and related business with the objective to
consolidate and expand its airport sector business. During an earlier year, the Holding Company had been registered
as Non-Banking Financial Institution i.e. Systematically Important Core Investment Company (CIC-ND-SI), and
had been granted certificate of registration by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide letter number DNBS (BG) No. 912
/08.01.018 / 2013-14 dated April 22, 2014.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
May 31, 2021.

2. A) Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the mixed approach of
division II and division III as per MCA notification dated October 11, 2018, along with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to
time.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or as a revision to existing accounting standard requires a change in accounting policy hitherto in use.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in historical cost convention on an accrual basis, except
for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount.

e Derivative Financial Instruments
o Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) which have
been measured at fair value.

B) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
March 31, 2021. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee)

e Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

o The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee.

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements.

The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the
other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,



GMR AIRPORTS LIMITED
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U659999KA1992PL.C037455
Notes to the consolidated condensed financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments
are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated statements to ensure conformity
with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities, used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date
as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on March 31. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is
different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial
information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the
financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so. In case of entities, where it is
impracticable to do so, they are consolidated using the most recent financial statements available, which has a lag
of three months, adjusted for the effects of significant transactions or events occur between the date of those
financial statements and consolidated financial statements.

Consolidation procedure:
Accounting policies of the respective individual subsidiary, joint venture and associate are aligned wherever
necessary, so as to ensure consistency with the accounting policies that are adopted by the holding under Ind AS.

a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those
of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the
assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion
of equity of each subsidiary.

¢) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may
indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements.

d) Non-controlling interest represents that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Parent Company.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

e Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

e Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

e Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

e Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

e Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

e Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

The entities considered in the consolidated financial statements in the year are listed below:



GMR AIRPORTS LIMITED
Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U659999KA1992PL.C037455
Notes to the consolidated condensed financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Percentage of
Relationship as at | effective ownership
interest held
13:)' Name of the Entity InC(‘:g:n(t)llZ t(ijzn (directly or | Accounting
’ P indirectly) as at Method
March March March | March
31,2021 | 31,2020 | 31,2021 | 31,2020

1 GMR Airports Developers | India Subsidiary | Subsidiary | 100.00% | 100.00% | Line by Line
Limited (GADL)

2 GMR  Goa International | India Subsidiary | Subsidiary | 100.00% | 100.00% | Line by Line
Airport Limited (GIAL)

3 GMR Nagpur International | India Subsidiary | Subsidiary | 100.00% | 100.00% | Line by Line
Airport Limited (GNIAL)®

4 GMR Kannur Duty Free | India Subsidiary | Subsidiary | 100.00% | 100.00% | Line by Line
Services Limited (GKDFSL)’

5 GMR Visakhapatnam | India Subsidiary | Subsidiary | 100.00% | 100.00% | Line by Line
International Airport Limited
(GVIAL)'®

6 GMR Hyderabad International | India Subsidiary | Subsidiary | 63.00% 63.00% Line by Line
Airport Limited (GHIAL)

7 GMR  Hyderabad Airport | India NA Subsidiary | 63.00% 63.00% Line by Line
Power Distribution Limited
(GHAPDL)>!?

8 GMR Logistics Park Private | India Joint Subsidiary | 18.90% 63.00% Equity
Limited (GLPPL)>®